
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
July 13, 2021 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, July 13, 2021 6:30 PM 
 

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

 

Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember 
Kerri Howell, Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City Council and 
staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.  

Due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) public health emergency, the City of Folsom is allowing for remote 
public input during City Council meetings.  Members of the public may participate by emailing 

comments to CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us and, if desired, specifically requesting that their comments 
be read into the record.  Emailed comments must be received no later than thirty minutes before the 
meeting.   Please make your comments brief. Written comments submitted and read into the public 

record must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person public 
comment at City Council meetings.  Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via 

teleconference may email CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us no later than thirty minutes before the meeting 
to obtain call-in information.  Each meeting may have different call-in information.  Verbal comments via 
teleconference must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person 

public comment at City Council meetings.  

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Kozlowski 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

1. Approval of June 22, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

2. Resolution No. 10659 - A Resolution Amending Resolution No. 10638 to Correct the Yearly Not-
To-Exceed Amount of the Agreement with Badger Meter, Inc. for the Purchase of 1-inch Water 
Meters 

3. Resolution No. 10662 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 
to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-031) with HydroScience Engineers, Inc. for Design 
Services for the Ashland Water Rehabilitation Project No. 1 

4. Resolution No. 10664 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Calpo, Hom and Dong Architects for Fire Station 34 Architectural Services and 
Appropriation of Funds 

5. Resolution No. 10665 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with FDC Consultants for Fire Station 34 Construction Management Services and Appropriation 
of Funds 

6. Resolution No. 10667 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with California Wood Recycling, Inc. dba Agromin for Organic Waste Diversion Services 

7. Resolution No. 10668 – A Resolution Accepting Three Regional Early Action Planning Grant 
Awards to Further Housing Program Goals and Appropriation of Funds  

PUBLIC HEARING: 

8. Resolution No. 10666 - A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer’s Report, Confirming the 
Diagrams and Assessments, and Ordering the Continued Levying Of Assessments for 
Maintenance and Servicing of Improvements Within the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting 
Districts for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 for American River Canyon North, American River Canyon 
North No. 2,  American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, 
Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble 
Hills Ridge II/Reflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake 
Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prospect 
Ridge, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon 
II,  Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates 
East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs 

NEW BUSINESS: 

9. Ordinance No. 1315 – An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom 
Municipal Code Pertaining to Water System Cross-Connection Control (Introduction and First 
Reading) 

10. Consideration of FY 2021-22 Funding Allocation for Homelessness Support and Direction to 
Staff on Expenditure of Funds 

11. Presentation and Public Workshop Regarding Solid Waste Rate Studies and City Council 
Direction to Staff 

Page 3



4 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council's next regular meeting is scheduled for July 27, 2021. 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

Page 4

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


Book 76 Page 82
Folsom City Council

June 22,2021

Gity Council Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, June 22,2021 5:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

GALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 5:30
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlows

. in City Council Chambers, 50
residing.

p.m
ki p

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: Kerri Howell, Councilmember (arrived during Closed Session)

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSI FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code section
54956.8: 405 Natoma Station Drive. Negotiating Parties: City Manager Elaine Andersen
on behalf of the City of Folsom, and Chris Lemmon on behalf of Action Day Learning
Center. Under Negotiation: Pr:ice and Terms of Lease

2. Performance Evaluation of Public Employee Pursuant to Government Code section
54957(bX1): Position Title: City Manager

Motion by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
adjourn to Glosed Session for the above referenced items. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla Rodriguez, Kozlowski
Gouncilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): Howell
Councilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued bjt the Ciry Council
Page 5

07/13/2021 Item No.1.



Book 76 Page 83
Folsom City Council

June 22,2021

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that no final action was taken during Closed Session

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was
adjourned at 6:30 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued fui the Ci4t Council Page 6

07/13/2021 Item No.1.



Book 76 Page 84
Folsom City Council

June22,2021

City Council Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesdayn June 22,2021 6:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Engineering and Operations Manager Mark Rackovan
Finance Director/CFO Stacey Tamagni

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Clerk Christa Freemantle announced that there were two updates for ltem 4

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

None

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued fui the Citl Coancil
Page 7

07/13/2021 Item No.1.



Book 76 Page 85
Folsom City Council

June 22,2021

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS

Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming July 2 - 4,2021 as Western
Rodeo Days in the City of Folsom

Mayor Mike Kozlowski presented the proclamation to Mary Ann McAlea from the Greater
Folsom Partnership and to Sharon Williams, who is being honored as the 2Q21 "Legend of the
Rodeo".

2. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming July 2021 as "Parks Make
Life Better" Month

Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino presented the proclamation to Rob Collins, Head Coach and CEO of
the Sierra Marlins Swim Team.

The following speakers addressed the City Council

1. Sharon Kindel in support of the proclamation and in recognition of the late Vice Mayor
Ernie Sheldon

2. Fred Kindel in support of the proclamation

CONSENT CALENDAR:

3. Approval of June 8,2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

4. Ordinance No, 1314 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City of Folsom Approving
Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement
between the City of Folsom and Dignity Health relative to the Folsom Ranch Medical
Center Project (Second Reading and Adoption)

5. Resolution No. 10619 - A Resolution Approving the City of Folsom Legislative Platform
and Advocacy Manual

6. Resolution No. 10649 - A Resolution Adopting the City of Folsom Governance Manual

7. Resolution No. 10650 - A Resolution Authorizing Public Fireworks Displays During the
Annual Folsom Pro Rodeo Activities

8. Resolution No. 10651 - A Resolution Electing the Population and lnflation Factors and
Establishing the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Appropriations Limit

L Resolution No. 10652 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Service
Agreement with Dropcountr, lnc. for Use of the Dropcountr Base Platform and the
HOME+ lrrigation Module for One Year

10. pulled for discussion

11. Resolution No. 10657 - A Resolution Authorizing the Public Works Department to lnstall
All-Way Stop Sign Control at the lntersection of Mangini Parkway and Westwood Drive

1

DRAFT - Not oficial until approued fu the Citlt Council
Page 8

07/13/2021 Item No.1.



Book 76 Page 86
Folsom City Council

June 22,2021

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve ltems 1 - 9 and 11 of the Gonsent Calendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

CONSENT GALENDAR ITEM PULLED FOR DISCUSSION:

10. Resolution No. 10654 - A Resolution Rejecting all Bids for Short or Long Term Lease at
405 Natoma Station Drive

Jennifer Lane requested this item be pulled to express her support for using the building as a
senior center.

Motion by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Kerri Howellto
approve Resolution No. 10654.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

NEW BUSINESS:

12. Resolution No. 10628 -A Resolution Adopting the Local Road Safety Plan

Engineering and Operations Manager Mark Rackovan made a presentation and responded to
questions from the City Council.

City Clerk Christa Freemantle read written comments from the following individuals:

1. Rebecca Bolin
2. Larry Moore

Motion by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Kerri Howellto
approve Resolution No. 10628.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued b1 the Ciry Council
Page 9

07/13/2021 Item No.1.



Book 76 Page 87
Folsom City Council

June 22,2021

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

CONVENE JO INT MEETING

JOINT CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Joint Folsom Gity Gouncil, Folsom Public Financing Authority Meeting

GALL TO ORDER:

The joint City Council / Public Financing meeting was called to order at7.25 p.m. in City Council
Chambers, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Finance Director/CFO Stacey Tamagni

NEW BUSINESS:

13. Folsom Public Financing Authority Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021

i. Resolution No. 10656 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Relating
to the Folsom Public Financing Authority Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021
and Approving the Form of and Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a2021
lnstallment Purchase Contracf in Connection therewith, and Authorizing Certain other
Actions Related thereto

ii. Resolution No. 21-074-PFA - A Resolution of the Governing Board of the Folsom
Public Financing Authority Authorizing the lssuance of Folsom Public Financing Authority
Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021in a PrincipalAmount not to Exceed
$9,200,000 and Approving the Forms of and Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a
2021 lnstallment Purchase Contract, a2021 lndenture and an Escrow Agreement, and
Authorizing Certain other Actions Related thereto

CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation.

DRAFT - Not oficial until Eproued b1 the Citl Council
Page 10

07/13/2021 Item No.1.



Book 76 Page 88
Folsom City Council

June 22,2021
Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10656.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

Motion by Gouncil/Boardmember Kerrl Howell, second by Gouncll/Boardmember Rosarlo
Rodriguez to approve Resolution No. 21-074-PFA.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncil/Boardmember(s):

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gou ncil/Boardmem ber(s) :

Cou nci l/Boardmem ber(s) :

Counci l/Boardmem ber(s):

Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez,
Kozlowski
None
None
None

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the joint City Council / Public Financing
Authority, the meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting at 7:30 p.m.

RECONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING

PUBLIG HEARING:

14. Resolution No. 10653 - A Resolution to Approve a Large-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map, Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, and Minor Administrative
Modifications for Transfer of Development Rights (25 Unit Transfer) and Land Use
Boundary Refinements for the Mangini Ranch Phase 3 Project

Planning and project management consultant Kathy Pease made a presentation and responded
to questions from the City Council.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comments, the public
hearing was closed.

Councilmember Kerri Howell stepped away from the dais and was absent during the vote.

Motion by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10653.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

DRAFT - Not oficial until approued b1 the Ci4t Counci/
Page 11

07/13/2021 Item No.1.



AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Book 76 Page 89
Folsom City Council

June 22,2021

Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
Councilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): Howell
Councilmember(s): None

City Clerk Christa Freemantle announced that items 15 and 16 would be presented together

15. Resolution No, 10655 - A Resolution to Approve a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map for 76 Residential Lots, and Minor Administrative Modifications for
Transfer of Development Rights (20 Unit Transfer) and Land Use Boundary Refinements
for the Mangini Ranch Phase 1C North Project and Design Review

16. Resolution No. 10658 - A Resolution to Approve a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map for 100 Residential Lots, and Planned Development Permit for MLD
Development Standard Deviations and Design Reviewforthe Mangini Ranch Phase 1C
4-Pack Project

Planning and project management consultant Kathy Pease made a presentation and responded
to questions from the City Council.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comments, the public
hearing was closed.

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriquez to
approve Resolution No. 10655.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

Motion by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriquez, second by Councilmember Kerri Howellto
approve Resolution No. 10658.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen announced the reopening of the State following the pandemic
and shared information about the reopening of City facilities. She spoke of the library's

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued b1 the Ci4t Council Page 12

07/13/2021 Item No.1.



Book 76 Page 90
Folsom City Council

June 22,2021

additional hours and the resumption of story time events. Ms. Andersen announced that music
concerts at Lion's Park will begin Friday. She concluded by inviting community members to
attend a workshop on the Active Transportation Master Plan.

COUNCIL ENTS:

Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino thanked Police Chief Rick Hillman for the Police Department's online
weekly report.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla suggested the City Council consider forming an advisory
committee consisting of residents to make improvement suggestions to the City Manager and
City Council. He talked about water usage and the drought and the possibility of offering
rebates for residents. Lastly, he spoke about the lack of use of the City's cooling stations.

Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez spoke of the upcoming hometown parade and pro rodeo
and the economic opportunity it provides to businesses. She thanked the volunteers involved in
the two events. She thanked City Manager Elaine Andersen and Fire Chief Ken Cusano for
providing the cooling stations during the heatwave. Ms. Rodriguez congratulated the Vista Del
Lago Varsity Girls Basketball team for their great season. She expressed appreciation to the
police and dispatchers for all they do. She commented about the Folsom Historic District
Association meeting she attended and their upcoming projects. She requested that a committee
be formed to discuss Historic District issues,

Councilmember Kerri Howell commented regarding traffic and speeding in Folsom. She
encouraged everyone to get their tickets soon for the pro rodeo and asked that everyone be
careful with their fireworks.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski commented about the sale of fireworks and explained how it is the
number one fundraiser for youth sports in Folsom. He thanked Folsom police for making their
way through recent challenging times. He spoke about recently seeing the Folsom Lake
Symphony perform for the first time in over a year.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Mike Kozlowski
adjourned the meeting at 8:03 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued fui the Ciry Council Page 13

07/13/2021 Item No.1.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 14

07/13/2021 Item No.1.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: 7lr 31202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10659 - A Resolution Amending Resolution No
10638 to Correct the Yearly Not-To-Exceed Amount of the
Agreement with Badger Meter, Inc. for the Purchase of 1-inch
Water Meters

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council adopt
Resolution No. 10659 - A Resolution Amending Resolution No. 10638 to Correct the Yearly
Not-To-Exceed Amount of the Agreement with Badger Meter, Inc. for the Purchase of 1-inch
Water Meters.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On June 8, 2021, Resolution No. 10638 was approved by the City Council to execute an
agreement with Badger Meter, Inc. for the purchase of f -inch water meters. The meters
obtained through this agreement will be purchased using funds from two sources, namely the
Water Meter Fund (Fund 522) andthe Water Operating Fund (Fund 520).

Following approval of Resolution No. 10638, staff identified that while the yearly amounts
from each fund were identified in both the staff report and the pre-ambulatory clauses of
Resolution No. 10638, the operative clause only included the yearly amount of $110,250
funded through the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) and omittedthe $220,500 to be funded
through the Water Meter Fund (Fund 522).

The Environmental and Water Resources Department therefore requests an amendment to the
operative clause of Resolution No. 10638 to authorize the combined total not-to-exceed
amount of $330,750 per year for five years.

I
Page 15

07/13/2021 Item No.2.



ATTACHMENT

1. Resolution No. 10659 - A Resolution Amending Resolution No. 10638 to Correct the
Yearly Not-To-Exceed Amount of the Agreement with Badger Meter, Inc. for the
Purchase of f -inch Water Meters

2. Resolution No. 10638 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Badger Meter, Inc. for the Purchase of l-Inch Water Meters and
Rejecting all Bids for l.5-Inch and 2-Inch Water Meters

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

2Page 16

07/13/2021 Item No.2.



ATTACHMENT 1

-tPage 17

07/13/2021 Item No.2.



RESOLUTION NO. 10659

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 10638 TO CORRECT THE
YEARLY NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF THE AGREEMENT WITH BADGER

METER' INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF I-INCH WATER METERS

WHEREAS, staff has identified the need to purchase water meters for installing on new
homes as required by State Law and to replace older water meters that may be reaching the end
of their serviceable life; and

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposals ("RFP") for l-inch, l.5-inch, and 2-inch water
meters were issued on March 28,2021; and

WHEREAS, Badger Meter, Inc. submitted the lowest responsive, responsible bid that
met required specification for the 1-inch meters, opened on April 13,202I; and

WHEREAS, funds will be made available in the Water Meter Fund (Fund 522) for
$220,500 per year for the next five fiscal years; and

WHEREAS, funds will be made available in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for
$l 10,250 per year for the next five fiscal years; and

WHEREAS, these meters are to be purchased using funds from the Water Meter Fund
(Fund 522) and the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for the total no-to-exceed amount of
$330,750 per year; and

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 10638 on June 8,2021approving
an agreement with Badger Meter, Inc. for the purchase of l-inch meters; and

WHEREAS, City staff has identified the need to correct the yearly not-to-exceed amount
stated in the operative clause of Resolution No. 10638 which includes the amount to be funded
by Fund 520,bvt omits the amount to be fundedby F,md 522.

NOW, THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that Resolution No. 10638 is hereby amended to correct the yearly not-to-exceed amount of the
agreement with Badger Meter, inc. for the purchase of l-inch water meters in the amount of
$110,250 from the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) and $220,500 from Water Meter Fund
(Fund 522) for atolal not to exceed amount of $330,750.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13ft day of July,202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Resolution No. 10659
Page I of2 Page 18

07/13/2021 Item No.2.



Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10659
Page2 of2 Page 19

07/13/2021 Item No.2.



ATTACHMENT 2

4Page 20

07/13/2021 Item No.2.



RESOLUTION NO. 10638

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TIIE CITY MANAGER TO
EXECUTE Alt AGREEMENT WrrH BADGERMETER' INC. FOR

THE PURCHASE OT' I-INCH WATER METERS AI\D REJECTING ALL BIDS
FOR l.s.INCH AND 2.INCH WATER METERS

WHEREAS, staffhas identified the need to purchase water meters for installing on new
homes as required by State Law and to replace older water meters that may be reaching the end

of their serviceable life; and

WHEREAS' a Request for Proposals (*RIP") for f-inch, l.5-inch, and 2-inch water
meters were issued on March 28,2021; and

WHEREAS, Zenner USA submitted a non-responsive low bid for the l-inch water meter
that does not meet the City's specifications in the RFP; and

WIIEREAS, Badger Meter, Inc. submitted the lowest responsive, responsible bid that
met required specification for the f -inch meters, opened on April 13,202I; and

WIIEREAS, based on the City need of a more comprehensive meter bid to encompass

multiple meter styles and technologies to meet operational needs, staff requests rejection of all
l.S-inch and 2-inch bids so a new request for bids, including large water meters up to l2-inch,
can be issued; and

WIIEREAS, funds will be made available in the Water Meter Fund (Fund 522) for
$220,500 per year for the next five fiscal years; and

WHEREAS, funds will be made available in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for
$110,250 per year for the next five fiscal years; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.

NOW, TIIEREFORS, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that the low bid for f -inch water meter submitted by Zenner USA is hereby rejected as being
non-responsive to the City's specifications in the RFP.

BE IT X'URTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to execute an

agreement wittr Badger Meter, Inc. for the purchase of f-inch water meters not to exceed

$1 10,250 per year for 5 years.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all bids received in response to the RFP for 1.5-

inch and 2-nchwater meters are hereby rejected.

Resolution No. 10638

Page I of2

Page 21

07/13/2021 Item No.2.



pASSED AIID ADOPTED this 8s day of June 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AyES: Courcilmember(s)r, Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla' Howell, Kodowski

NOES: Counoilmember(s)i None

ABSENT: Councilmember(s);, None

ABST,AIN: Councilmember(s): None

ATTEST:

0 h^. a*h)4n nr' *rnn nrO . '
Christa frodpftttc, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 10638
Page2of2

Page 22

07/13/2021 Item No.2.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 7lt3l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10662 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement
(Contract No. 173-21 20-031) with HydroScience Engineers,
Inc. for Design Services for the Ashland Water Rehabilitation
Project No. 1

F'ROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / COIINCII, ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and

adopt Resolution No. 10662 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. I to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-031) with HydroScience
Engineers, Inc. for Design Services for the Ashland Water Rehabilitation Project No. l.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources (EUIR) Department identifies water infrastructure
rehabilitation and replacement projects through water master plans, ongoing water condition
assessment programs, and regulatory changes. Through these efforts, portions of the water
system have been identified as needing rehabilitation or replacement in order to improve the
water distribution system reliability.

In July 2020, through Resolution No. 10495, City Council authorized an agreement with
HydroScience Engineers, Inc. to provide design services for the Ashland Water Rehabilitation
Project No. 1. The agreement with HydroScience Engineers, Inc. covered design services,
including development of plans and specifications for the rehabilitation of an existing water
transmission pipeline, Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) upgrades to an
existing Pressure Reducing Valve (PRV) station, and miscellaneous upgrades to various water

1

Page 23

07/13/2021 Item No.3.



appurtenances. Amendment No. I is for HydroScience Engineers, Inc. to provide additional

design services.

This resolution will authorizethe City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement
(Contract No. 173-21 20-031) with HydroScience Engineers, Inc. for additional design

services for the Ashland Water Rehabilitation Project No. 1.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 236 of theFolsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

The original design scope of work for the Ashland Rehabilitation Project No. 1 assumed that
trenchless rehabilitation for the pipeline, located within United States Bureau of Reclamation
(USBR) property, would be the primary method of rehabilitation. This method was initially
chosen because the pipe is located on USBR property and is located adjacent to an

environmentally protected Elderberry shrub. However, upon completion of the preliminary
design report, it was determined that all forms of trenchless rehabilitation are not feasible for
the following reasons:

between the CIPP liner and the existing coal tar epoxy lining.

Therefore, the revised design approach is to remove and replace the existing pipe through

traditional construction methods. Removal and replacement of the pipeline requires the

following additional design and environmental services:

located within USBR property.

comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) required by the United
States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) due to impacts related to the Valley
Elderberry Longhorn Beetle (VELB), a federally listed species that typically occupies

the elderberry shrub.

Other items in Amendment No. 1 that were not in the original scope of work include the

following:

for this project.

2Page 24

07/13/2021 Item No.3.



This resolution will authorize the City Managerto execute AmendmentNo. 1 to the agreement

(Contract No. 173-21 20-031) with HydroScience Engineers, Inc. for design services for the

Ashland Water Rehabilitation Project No. 1. Amendment No. 1 will be in the amount of
$139,898 and the new total contract amount, including Amendment No. 1 is $309,288.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Ashland Water Rehabilitation Project No. 1 is included in the Capital Improvement Plan

with a Fiscal Year 2021-22 project budget of $1,834,340. The Environmental and Water

Resources Department recommends that Amendment No. I to the agreement (Contract No.
173-21 20-031) for design services be awarded to HydroScience Engineers, Inc. for an

additional $139,898 for a not to exceed total of $309,288. Sufficient funds are budgeted and

available in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) in Fiscal Year 2021'22.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An environmental opportunities and constraints analysis will be performed as part of the design
process to ensure environmental compliance. The analysis will include a general approach to

the environmental compliance process, including a recommendation for arly CEQA
documentation and identification, identification of potentially required regulatory permits, and

a general mitigation strategy and cost estimate.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10662 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute Amendment

No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-031) with HydroScience Engineers, Inc. for
Design Services for the Ashland Water Rehabilitation Project No. I

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

JPage 25

07/13/2021 Item No.3.



RESOLUTION NO. 10662

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE AGREEMENT (CONTRACT NO. 173-2120-031) WITH
HYDROSCIENCE ENGINEERS,INC FOR DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE ASHLAND

WATER REHABILITATION PROJECT NO. 1

WHEREAS, the City has identified this project as a priority to maintain integrity and

operation of the water distribution system; and

WHEREAS, the rehabilitation work identified to enhance the City's water distribution
system includes rehabilitating the existing water transmission pipeline, Supervisory Control and

Data Acquisition (SCADA) upgrades associated with the existing pressure reducing station, and

upgrades to various water appurtenances; and

WHEREAS, HydroScience Engineers, Inc. by reason of their experience and abilities for
performing these types of services, are qualified to perform the required consulting services for
the project; and

WHEREAS' sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Water Operating Fund
(Fund 520) in the amount of $139,898; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-

21 20-031) with HydroScience Engineers, Inc. for Design Services for the Ashland Water

Rehabilitation Project No. I in the amount of $139,898 and the new total contract amount,

including Amendment No. 1 is $309,288.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13ft day of July 202I,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10662
Page 1 of I Page 26

07/13/2021 Item No.3.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council pass and approve Resolution No.
10664 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Calpo,
Hom, and Dong Architects for Fire Station 34 Architectural Services and Appropriation of
Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

As part of the City of Folsom Fire Department strategic plan, the Fire Department fiscal year

2021-22 budget included funding in the amount of $225,000 for architectural services to

develop a concept design for Fire Station 34, located in the Folsom Plan Area at Westwood
Drive and Old Ranch Way. The Fire Department has carefully examined the service delivery
needs of Folsom and determined that the location is optimal for a Fire Station.

Strategically located fire facilities are paramount to the delivery of emergency fire and medical

services. A new facility will ensure delivery of these services to the Folsom Plan Area.

Fire Station 34 project specifics are outlined below. All listed items will be addressed as part
ofthe architectural review and design process.

1

MEETING DATE: 7lr3l202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10664 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Calpo, Hom, and Dong
Architects for Fire Station 34 Architectural Services and
Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Fire Department

Page 27

07/13/2021 Item No.4.



Site Improvements

o Driveway access
o Drive through capabilities for apparatus bays
o Parking facility for public and employee use

o Concrete paving (entire station)
o Low maintenance, drought tolerant landscaping
o Backup generator power
o Fueling station

Buildine Desien

o Open office area with workstations and bookcases
o Captains'offtce
o Conference room
. General dormitory area with 10 separate bedrooms
o Four separate dormitory bathrooms with shower, toilet, and sink
o One public restroom
o Patio
o Kitchen
o Dining room
. Day room
o Exercise room
o Storage area for grounds equipment, facility maintenance supplies, office supplies, hose

storage, linen, suppression equipment, with work bench and cabinets
o Utility room
o 3 full drive through apparatus bays
o Electrical room
o Communications room
o Room for turnout gear (PPE) and racks
o Laundry room with washer/dryer
o Kitchen appliances: stove, three refrigerators, two dishwashers, two microwaves, sink
o Police sub-station with exterior access, workstations, restroom, and kitchen area

The overall architectural services project scope is separated into two distinct phases which will
extend beyond fiscal year 2021-22 and into fiscal year 2023-24. Phase one will begin upon
award of contract and throughout fiscal year 2021-22. Phase two will begin once the
conceptual design is accepted by the Fire Department and the City of Folsom. The phases are

detailed below:

2Page 28

07/13/2021 Item No.4.



Phase One - The conceptual design documents required to construct Folsom Fire Station
34 to accommodate a functional station to meet the current and future needs

of the Fire Department. The design documents shall include: site and floor
plans, building exterior elevations, landscape plans, and any other plans and

documents required to submit for the City of Folsom planning process.

Phase Two - All construction documents and specifications required for, plan teview,
project bidding, and project construction services for the construction of
Folsom Fire Station 34.

Architectural scope of services and responsibilities outlined per phase are:

Phase One - Construction Dr aw inss & So e c ifi c at i ons

Civil Engineering
1. Topographical and Site Plan

Architectural
1. Complete architectural site plan
2. Complete floor plan(s), elevations
3. Provide projected project cost at today's market
4. Any additional plans required as part of the special use permit process

Landscape
1. Planting plan

Construction Cost Estimate
1. Statement of current market construction cost

Phase Two - Construction Drawings & Specifications

Civil Engineering
1. Site Plan - grading, drainage, sewer, storm & water plans

Architectural
l. Complete architectural site plan and details of site architectural structures

2. Complete floor plan(s), elevations, and sections

3. Complete roof plan with roof detailing
4. Complete reflected ceiling plan with detailing
5. Architectural wall sections and details
6. Interior elevations of all millwork and fixtures
7. Complete door and finish schedules
8. Complete door and window schedule

9. Title24 documentation for building envelope

J
Page 29

07/13/2021 Item No.4.



Structural Engineering
1. Complete structural plans, partial wall sections, and complete detailing
2. Structural calculations for new and existing portions of the structure

Mechanical Engineering
1. Mechanical load calculations and sizing of all piping and ductwork
2. Mechanical drawings and details indicating mechanical distribution
3. Plumbing plans and details indicating piping for distribution and drains
4. Plans and details for fire sprinkler system

5. Plans and details for compressed air piping and distribution system

6. Mechanical schedule for equipment
7 . Title 24 energy report and calculations

Electrical Engineering
1. Lighting, power, signal and communications plans to reflect all switching and

controls
2. Distribution information on all power consuming equipment
3. Complete lighting and branch wiring layout
4. Complete fixture schedules
5. Fire alarm system
6. Title 24 lighting energy documentation
7. Electrical load calculations
8. Complete details for emergency power generator
9. Complete radio and computer wiring details
10. Use of natural lighting (for example, skylights)

Landscape
1. Planting plan
2. Irrigation plan
3. Planting and inigation details

Specifications
1. Completetechnical specifications

Bidding Assistance
1. Respond to questions from contractors during the bidding process

2. Production of addendum to the bid documents
3. Review of substitution requests for product suppliers and contractors

Construction Administration
1. Review submittals from contractors, shop drawings, and material samples
2. Respond to requests for information/clarification from contractors
3. Issue proposal requests
4. Review and process change orders
5. Review payment requests from contractors

4
Page 30

07/13/2021 Item No.4.



6. Provide project closeout services including punch list and warranty review
7. Compile maintenance manuals
8. Compile forms for compliance with Essential Services Act.

Site Visits / Progress Meetings
l. Weekly site visits / progress meetings to review progress and payment requests

2. Architect to submit a weekly written summary of progress meetings

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that
contracts for supplies, equipment, services and construction with an estimated value of $62,657
or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

Section 2.36.140, Sole Source Procurement of the Folsom Municipal Code states, that prior to
submitting a purchase request, the requesting department shall conduct a survey of available
sources to determine whether there is only 1 source for the required supply, equipment, service,

or construction item. After review of this request by the purchasing agent and the finance
director and approved by the city manager, a contract shall be awarded without competition.
The purchasing agent, or hislher designee, shall conduct negotiations, as appropriate, as to
price, delivery, and terms. The requesting department shall prepare a waiver of bid and submit
it to the purchasing agent for filing with the city clerk. (Ord.723 $ 3 (pa$, 1991)

ANALYSIS

Fire Department staff negotiated a fee proposal from Calpo, Hom, & Dong Architects to
provide the City of Folsom with building design, design development, construction documents

including, project bidding, plans and consultationthrough the permit process, and construction
services. Department staff received a quote as listed:

Company Name Phase One Cost Phase Two Cost Total
CH&D Architects $120,000 $270,000 $390.000

The Fiscal Year 2021-22 Capital Improvement Plan included architectural design process for
Fire Station 34. As part of the same design contract, the Department has included Phase Two
for the architectural firm to continue with construction design drawings into Fiscal Year 2023-
24. The Fire Department has found the fee proposal to be in order and recommends that the
contract be awarded to Calpo, Hom, & Dong Architects. Staff will use the City's standard

Professional Services agreement in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.

5Page 31

07/13/2021 Item No.4.



FINANCIAL IMPACT

The contract with Calpo, Hom & Dong Architects would be authorized for $390,000. The
architectural design phases for the project are partially included in the Fiscal Year 2021-22
Capital Improvement Plan. The funding for the architecture and the entire project is from the

combined Plan Area Capital Impact Fee Fund (Fund 472). The appropriation in Fiscal Year
2021-22 is $225,000. An additional appropriation in the amount of $165,000 will be required
to complete the project and contract. Anticipated costs for Fiscal Year 2021-22 will be

$120,000 with the remaining contract costs disbursed during Fiscal Years 2022-23 and2023-
24.

The costs for the Calpo, Hom, & Dong Architects design services contract would be as follows:

Proiect Amount Anticipated FY
Fire Station 34 Phase One $ 100,000 202r-22
Topographic Survey Update $ 10,000 202r-22
Geotechnical Report Update $ 10,000 202t-22
Fire Station 34 Phase Two $ 270,000 2022-23 &24

$ 390,000Total Project Costs

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project has been deemed categorically exempt from environmental review

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10664 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Calpo, Hom, and Dong Architects for Fire Station 34 Architectural
Services and Appropriation of Funds

2. Waiver of Bid document submitted to the City Clerk's Office

Submiued,

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

6
Page 32

07/13/2021 Item No.4.



Attachment I
Resolution No. 10664 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with Calpo, Hom, and Dong Architects for Fire Station 34 Architectural Services and

Appropriation of Funds

Page 33

07/13/2021 Item No.4.



RESOLUTION NO. 10664

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH CALPO, HOM' & DONG ARCHITECTS FOR FIRE STATION 34

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to contract for Architectural Services for Fire
Station 34; and

WHEREAS, this project was procured as sole source pursuant to the Folsom Municipal
Code, section 2.36.140, with Calpo, Hom, & Dong Architects; and

WHEREAS, funds are budgeted in Fiscal Year 2021-22 inthe amount of $225,000 in the
Folsom Plan Area Capital Impact Fee Fund (Fund 472); and

WHEREAS, m additional appropriation will be required in the amount of $165,000,
r,vhich is available in the Folsom Plan Area Capital lmpact Fee Fund (Fund 472); and

WHEREAS, the contract will be in the amount of $390,000; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Calpo, Hom, & Dong Architecture, for
the Fire Station 34 Architectural Services for a total, not-to-exceed amount of $390,000.

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is
authorized to appropri ate an additional $ 1 65,000 to the Folsom Plan Area Capital Impact Fee Fund
(Fund 472) from available fund balance.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 13n day of July 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10664
Page 1 of 1

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 34

07/13/2021 Item No.4.



Attachment 2
Waiver of Bid Memo - Calpo, Hom, & Dong

Page 35

07/13/2021 Item No.4.



Memo

To:

From:

Date:

F OlLg(}Rd

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

June 21 ,2021

Subject Waiver of Bid - Galpo, Hom, & Dong Architects

This shall serve as a "Waiver of Bid Notification" for Sole Source Procurement for
professional services contract, as required by Section 2.36.140 of the Folsom Municipal
Code.

The Fire Department is requesting to sole source Calpo, Hom, & Dong Architects for
professional services architectural design for Station 34 located in the Folsom Plan Area.

Calpo, Hom, & Dong Architects have demonstrated reliable services through design work
on Station 39 and Station 38. Maintaining a team-based approach for Fire Station design
over a multi-year time frame is key to a successful project. The Fire Department has been
extremely satisfied with the work of Calpo, Hom, and Dong Architects for the past two
projects.

The Folsom Fire Department is requesting approval for sole source procurement through
Calpo, Hom, & Dong Architects for professional services architectural design work for
Station 34 in the Folsom Plan Area. The Folsom Fire Department hereby requests this
waiver of bid be approved to remain in effect through the completion of Station 34.

The Fire Department has funds budgeted for fiscal year 2021-22for the initial phases of
the architectural design work.

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief Date

Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director Date

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

City Clerk, Original
City Manager

cc:

Date

Page 36

07/13/2021 Item No.4.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: 7lt3l202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10665 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with FDC Consultants for
Fire Station 34 Construction Management Services and
Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Fire Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council pass and approve Resolution No.
10665 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with FDC
Consultants for Fire Station 34 Construction Management Services and Appropriation of
Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Year 2021-22 fitnded the amount of $225,000 for
architectural services to develop a concept design for Fire Station 34,located in the Folsom
Plan Area at Westwood Drive and Old Ranch Way. The Fire Department has carefully
examined the service delivery needs of Folsom and determined that the location is optimal for
a Fire Station.

Strategically located fire facilities are paramount to the delivery of emergency fire and medical
services. A new facility will ensure delivery of these services to the Folsom Plan Area.

Fire Station 34 project specifics and scope of work is outlined by FDC Consultants in
Attachment #3.

I

Page 37

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that
contracts for supplies, equipment, services and construction with an estimated value of $62,657
or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

Section 2.36.140, Sole Source Procurement of the Folsom Municipal Code states, that prior to
submitting a purchase request, the requesting department shall conduct a survey of available
sources to determine whetherthere is only 1 source forthe required supply, equipment, service,

or construction item. After review of this request by the purchasing agent and the finance
director and approved by the city manager, a contract shall be awarded without competition.
The purchasing agent, or hislher designee, shall conduct negotiations, as appropriate, as to
price, delivery, and terms. The requesting department shall prepare a waiver of bid and submit
it to the purchasing agent for filing with the city clerk. (Ord.723 $ 3 (pa$, 1991)

ANALYSIS

It is desirable and advantageous to contract with the services of a professional project
construction manager to oversee the numerous planning and coordinating activities to help
ensure that this project remains on budget and is completed in the desired time frame. The

Fire Department has been utilizing FDC Consultants for Station construction projects since

2017 and recommended Mr. Fred Russell dba FDC Consultants with a proposal of $130,200
(Attachment 3).

Attachment 3 is a representation of the scope of work provided by Fred Russell, dba FDC
Consulting, defining the costs and estimated hours involved during phases of construction.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The contract with FDC Consultants would be authorized for $130,200. Design and bidding
phases for construction management consultation would be funded for $17,850 during Fiscal
Year 2021-22. The funding for this project is from the combined Plan Area Capital Impact
Fee Fund (Fund 472). Construction management costs of $130,200 and architecture costs of
$390,000 for a total project amount of $520,200 to be paid over three fiscal years. An
additional appropriation and an increase to the project budget will be required. Anticipated
costs for Fiscal Year 202I-22 will be $17,850 with the remaining contract amount disbursed

during Fiscal Years 2022-23 and2023-24.

2Page 38

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



The fiscal year costs for the FDC Consultants contract would be as follows:

Proiect Amount Anticipated FY
Desisn Phase $12,600 202t-22
Biddine Phase $5,250 202r-22
Construction Phase $109,200 2022-23 &24
Occupancy Phase $3,1 50 2023-24

$ 130,200Total Project Management Costs

The Fiscal Year 202I-22 Capital Improvement Plan included this project at an estimated
project cost of 5225,000. Anticipated costs for architectural design services and construction
management services during Fiscal Year 2021-22 arc $137,850, leaving $87,150 of
appropriated funds. A total additional appropriation inthe amount of $295,200 will be required
to complete the architectural and construction management contracts.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project has been deemed categorically exempt from environmental review

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10665 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with FDC Consultants for Fire Station 34 Construction Management
Services and Appropriation of Funds

2. Waiver of Bid document submitted to the City Clerk's Office

3. FDC Consultants scope of work and fee proposal

Submitted,

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

JPage 39

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



Attachment I
Resolution No. 10665 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with FDC Consultants for Fire Station 34 Construction Management Services

and Appropriation of Funds

Page 40

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10665

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH FDC CONSULTANTS FOR FIRE STATION 34

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to contract for Construction Management Services

for Fire Station 34; and

WHEREAS, this project lvos procured as sole souroe pursuant to tho Folsom Municipal
Code, section 2.36.140, with FDC Consultants; and

WHEREAS, funds are budgeted for this project in the amount of $225,000 in the Fiscal
Year 2021-22 Folsom Plan Area Capital Impact Fee Fund (Fund 472); and

WHEREAS, m additional appropriation in the amount of $130,000 will be required,
which is available in the Folsom Plan Area Capital Impact Fee Fund (Fund 472); and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with FDC Consultants, for the Fire Station
34 Construction Management Services for Fiscal Year 2021-22 for atotal, not-to-exceed amount
of $130,200.

NOW' THEREX'ORE' BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is
authorized to appropriate anadditional $130,200 to the Folsom Plan Area Capital Impact Fee Fund
(Fund 472) for atotal project budget of $520,200. The additional appropriation will utilize fund
balance.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 13m day of July 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10665
Page 1 of 1 Page 41

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



Attachment 2
Waiver of Bid Memo - FDC Consultants

Page 42

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



Memo

To:

From

lF(}r,s@MI

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

June23,2021

Waiver of Bid - FDC Gonsultants

Date:

Subjec't:

This shall serve as a "Waiver of Bid Notification" for Sole Source Procurement for
professional services contract, as required by Section 2.36.140 of the Folsom Municipal
Code.

The Fire Department is requesting to sole source FDC Consultants for construction
management services for Station 34 located in the Folsom Plan Area.

FDC Consultants have demonstrated reliable and thorough services from staft to finish on
Station 39 and Station 38 projects. Maintaining a team-based approach for Fire Station
design over a multi-year time frame is key to a successful project, The Fire Department
has been extremely satisfied with the work of FDC Consultants for the past two projects.

The Folsom Fire Department is requesting approval for sole source procurement through
FDC Consultants for professional services construction management work for Station 34
in the Folsom Plan Area. The Folsom Fire Department hereby requests this waiver of bid
be approved to remain in effect through the completion and occupancy of Station 34.

The Fire Department has funds budgeted for fiscal year 2021-22 for the design and
bidding phases of the project.

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief Date

Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director Date

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

Gity Clerk, Original
City Manager

cc:

Date

Page 43

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



Attachment 3
FDC Consultants Scope of Work

Page 44

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



II
I FDC Consultonts

Folsom Fire Station 34 Proiect

Thank you for the opportunity to submit a fee proposal to provide Construction Management

Services for the Folsom Fire Station 34 project'

See the attached Scope of Work for the cost summary'

Fee Schedule.

Consultants hourlY Ratel

Total Fee ProPosal:
Overtime hourlY rate:
Mileage Charges:

lnsurance Coverage:

Commercial General LiabilitY:
Automotive General LiabilitY:
Workers ComPensation:

1 million- included in total cost
1 million- included in total cost
not required'no emPloYees

$10s.00
$130,200.00
hourly rate
None

Should you have any questions feel free to call me'

SincerelY,

Fred Russell
FDC CONSULTANTS

-,;:,:-'i ,;

5640 -lhornpsorr Hill Rocrd

Plcrct:rvillc, C'A I 5 667

530-306 161/
f rJ ccc,n s r-r Ito nts(@zo lt o conr

Page 45

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



Scope of Work

Design Phase
A] Soticit proposals for project Geotechnical Engineering Services and other services required for

Project.
B. Review construction documents and specifications for enors, constructability, and value

engineering and make recommendations for changes'.

C. Coordination of all consultants dwing design and preparation of construction drawings

(civil engineer, atchitect, suryeyor, others)
p. Utitity disrgn coordination; liaison with SMUD, AT&T, Comcast for conhacting and

design work, coordination of construction and inspections.

E. Representation of City to obtain necessary rights-of-way for steet and utility easements.

Cosfi 12,600.00

BiddingPhase
A. Advertisement of bid documents.
B. Pre-bid conference.
C. Closing of bid period and evaluation of bid documents'
D. Recommendation for award of bid.
E. Assist with construction contract generation.

F. Develop and solicit proposals for Special Inspection and Inspection of Record

services.
G. Evaluation proposal and cost for Special Inspection and Inspection of Record

services, and make recommendations for awarding these services.

H. Assist with contract generation for these services'

Cost: 5,250.00

Construction Phase
A. Coordination between all City departments and divisions involved with the

construction Process.
B. Issue Notice to Proceed.
C. Pre-construction and weekly construction meeting'

D. Review and monitoring of construction schedule'

E. Review and evaluations of submittals.
F. Construction site management.
G. Manage Special Inspection testing and inspection requirement

H. Review and make rl.ommundations regarding change orders and monthly progress

payment,
I. Submit monthly progress report'

Page 46

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



costr 109,200.00

Occupancy Phase
A. Manage punch list of corrections,tfird the eollection of operatlon and wffvsntjr

manuals and as built drawings as required by the speclffcation manual.
B. Filing of the Notlce of Composition.
C. Mail<e recommendadons regardlng release of retentlon funds.
D. Obtrinirry lirral Occupancy Certficatlqn
E. Move inassistance,

Gostr 3,150.O0

Page 47

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 48

07/13/2021 Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 7lt3l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10667 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with California Wood
Recycling, Inc. DBA Agromin for Organic Waste Diversion
Services

F''ROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution No. 10667 - A Resolution Authorizing
the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with California Wood Recycling, Inc. DBA
Agromin for Organic Waste Diversion Services.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City collects through its curbside green waste collection program approximately 10,000

tons per year of clean, source separated green waste from its residents. This green waste is

currently being delivered to the Elder Creek Transfer Station where it is being processed and

used for compost and mulch. The city receives from the recycling of this material credit toward
its California Integrated Waste Management Act (AB 939) 50% diversion goal.

With the passage by the state of Senate Bill 1 3 83 (SB I 3 83) the city will be required to provide
a recycling program for residential food waste as well as green waste. These materials are

defined in SB 1383 as organic waste. The city intends to add food waste to its residential green

waste carts and pick the carts up weekly, as mandated, as opposed to the current every other
week schedule. This program is scheduled to begin in July of 2022.

To address this requirement, in the fall of 2019, the City partnered with the City and County
of Sacramento to obtain proposals from qualified vendors to provide residential organics waste

diversion services (green waste and food waste). The successful vendor(s) from this

1

Page 49

07/13/2021 Item No.6.



procurement is Agromin who is partnering with Republic Services (who owns and operates

Elder Creek Transfer Station), for a short-term anangement (six to ten years) that includes
food waste recycling with the residential green waste.

This agreement is the result of that procurement and will provide the city with organic waste

recycling/diversion services through 2027. The city will continue participating with
Sacramento City and County in the procurement for a long-term solution to organics recycling.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 236 of the Folsom Municipal Code, agreements costing 962,657
or greater shall be approved by the City Council.

ANALYSIS

Agromin provides the most cost-effective short-term option for the recycling of the City's
organic materials (food waste mixed with green waste). This contract will allow the City to
continue to recycle green waste collected from its residents and businesses, achieve compliance
withSB 1383,composttheorganicscollectedwithinthecityandreducetheshort-livedclimate
pollutants (methane and carbon dioxide) targeted by the law.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Based on actual tonnage, the Solid Waste Division collects approximately 10,000 tons per year

of green waste. Based on a 2014 statewide waste characterization study, we project Folsom
will collect about 1,500 tons per year of food waste. We will continue to recycle green waste

only until we add food waste in 2022. The proposed per ton rate for recycling of
uncontaminated green waste only will be $77 per ton under this agreement. This rate will apply
until we implement collection of food waste mixed with green waste. This is anticipated to
commence in July of 2022. The per ton rate will increase to $97 per ton for the recycling of
food waste mixed with green waste. Contamination of the organic material is addressed in the
agreement the cost of which will be calculated on a sliding scale. Typical contaminates include
plastic bags, plastic cutlery, plastic coated packaging, trash, garbage, and treated wood. This
contamination is projected at approximately 5Yo based on actual numbers provided by the
Contractor. Based on these parameters, the projected annual expense for the recycling of green

waste under this contract is approximately $770,000.00. With the addition of food waste in
2022, the projected annual expense is approximately $1,136,890.00.

2
Page 50

07/13/2021 Item No.6.



Item Cost per Ton Ouantitv Total
Clean Green Waste
(Annually to July 2022\ $ 77.00 10,000 $ 770,000,00
Food dGreen Waste
(Annually from July 2022\ 97.00 11,500 1,115,500.00

5Yo Contamination 1.86 11,500 21,390.00

TOTAL Green Waste Only $ 770,000.00

TOTAL Food dGreen Waste $ 1,136,890.00

Agromin Organics Diversion Expense Projection

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The Project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Section
15061(b)(3) (Review for Exemption) of the CEQA Guidelines.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10667 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with California Wood Recycling, Inc. DBA Agromin for Organic Waste Diversion Services

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

J
Page 51

07/13/2021 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. 10667

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH CALIF'ORNIA WOOD RECYCLINGO INC' DBA AGROMIN FOR

ORGANIC WASTE DIVERSION SERVICES

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom generates approximately 9,000 tons per year of green

waste which is currently being used as compost and mulch; and

WHEREAS' the Integrated Waste Management Act (AB 939), requires that the City
divert from landfill at least 50% of the solid waste it generates; and

WHEREAS, the City receives diversion credit for the green waste it collects; and

WHEREAS, the state passed Senate Bill 1383 (SB 1383) to reduce from landfill the
disposal of organic materials generated in the state and, among other things, thereby reduce Short
Lived Climate Pollutants; and

WHEREAS' the entity selected through the joint procurement, Agromin, has the
expertise and the means to provide organic materials diversion services; and

WHEREAS' Agromin submiued the timeliest and most cost-effective proposal to divert
the City's organic materials in the short term; and

WHEREAS' the agreement is based on a cost per ton of $77.00 through July 2022 and
then $97.00 per ton after July 2022; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to hire Agromin to manage the organic materials the City
collects; and

WHEREAS' sufficient funds are available in the Solid Waste Fund 540; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney: (as

applicable to contracts)

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with California Wood Recycling, Inc.
DBA Agromin for Organic Waste Diversion Services; and,

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13 day of July 2021, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Resolution No. 10667
Page 1 of2 Page 52

07/13/2021 Item No.6.



Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10667
Page2 of2 Page 53

07/13/2021 Item No.6.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 54

07/13/2021 Item No.6.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

7lt3l202rMEETING DATE:

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10668 - A Resolution Accepting Three Regional
Early Action Planning Grant Awards to Further Housing
Program Goals and Appropriation of Funds

X'ROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to approve ResolutionNo. 10668 - A Resolution Accepting Three Regional Early Action
Planning Grant Awards to Further Housing Program Goals and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In the 2019-20 Budget Act, Governor Gavin Newsom allocated $250 million for all regions,
cities, and counties to do their part by prioritizing planning activities that accelerate housing
production to meet identified needs of every community. With this allocation, the state

Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) established the Regional Early
Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) with $125 million to regions. REAP provides one-
time grant funding to regional governments and regional entities for planning activities that
will accelerate housing production and facilitate compliance in implementing the sixth cycle
of the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA).

The Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) is eligible to receive $6,612,880 in
REAP funds to address the greater Sacramento region's unique housing priorities and planning
needs. In March of last year, the SACOG board recommended approval of a framework for
spending an initial 25 percent of the REAP funds using an early access option provided by the
state. These early funds provided a formula allocation directly to local agencies for housing
element updates or other planning projects related to housing. The City's allocation from this
initial portion of REAP funds was $41,000 and was explicitly for use on our Housing Element
update.

Page 55

07/13/2021 Item No.7.



There were three additional REAP grant opportunities; two were non-competitive direct
allocations for qualifring projects and the third was a competitive grant. Eligible activities
were required to demonstrate housing-related planning activities and facilitate accelerated
housing production. Zomng code updates and specific plans that include an Environmental
Impact Report (EIR), as well as an evaluation of infrastructure needs and cost analyses, are

strongly encouraged because these planning activities are identified as priorities in SACOG's
Green Means Go Program. Furthermore, for the competitive grant, the project was required to
accelerate, increase, andlor intensifu housing in the City's Green Zones. The planning activity
must support the entire Green Zone or many parcels within the Green Zone.

Based on the City's current Housing Element update and the comprehensive zoning code
update, staff identified three distinct and qualifring grant projects to further the City's housing
program goals as follows:

Given our current efforts with the Housing Element update and comprehensive zoning code
update, these tasks would enhance the City's efforts to expand the City's lower-income
housing capacity to meet our RHNA obligation. In addition, the funding would also enable the
City to examine infrastructure, particularly drainage, to ensure sufficient capacity exists for
additional housing development. Furthermore, as the City considers increasing density, City
staff and the public must understand the feasibility of higher density development and how
density and development standards affect the economics of those projects. Finally, the City
must have design standards and expectations that promote attractive, high quality design for
higher density multi-family and residential mixed-use development that fit well in the
community. The grant funding would allow staff and selected consultants to pursue these
additional efforts.

On March 9,2021 City Council authorized staff to apply for these grants. Applications were
completed and the City was successful in receiving all three grant awards totaling $765,000.
This resolution has been prepared to accept the grant awards and appropriate funds.

POLICY / RULE

The City Council Adopted Resolution No. 7332 Financial Policies of the City of Folsom on
May 25, 2004. Section D - Intergovernmental Revenues, Paragraph C - Grant Project
Resolutions states, " All grants received from the Federal or State government for operating or

2

Grant Proiect Description Grant Amount
Multi-Family and Residential Mixed-Use Design, Density and Market
Feasibiliw Analvsis $e0, 000

East Bidwell Drainaee Study $100,000
Housing Element Program H-2 Implementation: General Plan and
Specific Plan Amendment and Environmental Analyses $575,000

Total Grant Funds Requested $76s,000

Page 56

07/13/2021 Item No.7.



capital pu{poses shall be recognized in separate grant project resolutions. A balanced grant

project resolution must be adopted prior to beginning the project."

ANALYSIS

The three REAP grant projects awarded will advance the City's Housing Element goal of
exploring increased densities and updated development standards for the City's Transit Priority
Areas, the East Bidwell Mixed Use Conidor, and the Town Center area of the Folsom Plan
Area Specific Plan (FPASP). Key elements of this effort are understanding appropriate design
tbr each area, establishing design standards, and understanding how design, density, and

development standards affect development economics. As previously indicated, there are two
separate non-competitive REAP grants and one competitive grant. Each of these grant projects

are sufilmarized below.

Non-competitive Grants

Grant #1 - Multi-Famil]' and Residential Mixed-Use Design. Density and Market Feasibility
Analysis: The first non-competitive REAP grant is the most flexible and provides a formula
allocation directly to local agencies for eligible activities that demonstrate an increase in
housing related planning activities and facilitate accelerated housing production. Under this
non-competitive grant, the City's formula allocation is $90,000. This grant will be used to
fund an analysis of the economic feasibility of multi-family and residential mixed-use
development at different densities on different size parcels, as well as an evaluation of the types

of design and design standards that would be attractive and suitable in the areas where the City
is considering increasing density and updating development standards to encourage more
housing development. The goal is to provide the City Council and community with an

understanding of the economics of residential development on smaller parcels (i.e., less than4
acres) and how density and development standards affect design. Furthermore, the analysis

will examine different approaches to design used successfully in other communities to address

concems over scale, height, massing, and other concerns associated with higher density
development. Ultimately, the analysis will inform future planning activities related to the

implementation of Housing Element Program H-2,referenced above.

Grant #2 -EastBidwell Drainage Studv: The second non-competitive REAP grant is available
to the City as a result of the City's participation in SACOG's 2018 Civic Lab Series, which
examined the challenges facing older commercial corridors in the region, including Folsom's
East Bidwell Street conidor between Coloma Street and Blue Ravine Road. Civic Lab Series'

goal was to identifu strategies to promote revitalization, including housing, through the
removal of barriers to infill development. Under this Civic Lab-related REAP grant, the City
is eligible to receive up to $100,000 for a drainage study to assess the extent and condition of
the drainage system along the East Bidwell Street corridor section between Coloma Street and

Blue Ravine. The area is identified in the City's 2035 General Plan by the East Bidwell Mixed
Use Overlay land use designation, which allows residential mixed-use development. The City
has identified several sites in this part of the corridor as potential sites in our Housing Element
sites inventory analysis. Thus, given current and future plans for residential mixed-use

J
Page 57

07/13/2021 Item No.7.



development along this section of East Bidwell Street, understanding the existing drainage

system condition and capacity is key to the future development of additional residential
projects on the corridor.

Competitive Grant

Grant # 3 - Housins Element Prosram H-2 entation: General Plan and Snecific Plan

Amendment and Environmental Analyses: To implement the 2021-2029 Housing Element
Program H-2, which requires the City to increase maximum densities in the East Bidwell
Mixed Use Overlay, SACOG Transit Priorities Areas, and the lolsom Plan Area Specitic Plan
Town Center, a general plan amendment and associated environmental analysis is
required. Concurrently, a FPASP specific plan amendment with environmental analysis will
be required to increase densities in the Town Center and to revise Policy 4.7 to increase the
total dwelling units allowed in the FPSAP. As previously indicated, for the competitive grant,

the project is required to accelerate, increase, andlor intensifr housing in the City's Green

Zones. Zoning code updates and specific plans that include an Environmental Impact Report
(EIR) and an evaluation of infrastructure needs and cost analyses are strongly encouraged

because these planning activities are identified as priorities in SACOG's Green Means Go
Program. Given that the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay and the SACOG Transit Priority
Areas are in the City's Green Zones, SACOG has indicated that the proposed general plan
amendment, FPASP specific plan amendment and associated environmental analyses

necessary to implement Program H-2 are eligible for competitive REAP grant activities.
SACOG's approved framework allocates 51,727,000 to this competitive grant program, with
a stipulation that no jurisdiction will receive more than one-third (or approximately $575,000).
As such, the City is eligible to receive a maximum of $575,000 with this competitive REAP
grant application.

Each of the three grant funded projects will work in tandem with other City efforts to further
the City's goal of creating additional opportunities for high-density housing to ensure the City
maintains an adequate capacity to meet the lower-income RHNA.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Regional Early Action Planning Grants Program award total is $765,000. None of the
three grant applications require a financial match. All grant funds are required to be fully
expended and reimbursed by August 30,2023. Consultant services would be funded initially
through the General Fund and reimbursed by the Regional Early Action Planning Grants

Program funds in accordance with the reimbursement schedule over two fiscal year periods;
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 and Fiscal Year 2022-2023.

The grant awards were not included in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget. An
additional appropriation will be required in the amount of $765,000 in the Fiscal Year 202I-
22 General Fund Operating Budget in the Community Development Department.

4

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Page 58

07/13/2021 Item No.7.



Grant acceptance is not considered a project under the California Environment Quality Act
(CEQA) in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(bX3). As a result, these actions
are exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10668 - A Resolution Accepting Three Regional Early Action Planning Grant
Awards to Further Housing Program Goals and Appropriation of !'unds

Submitted,

Pam Johns,
Community Development Director

5
Page 59

07/13/2021 Item No.7.



Attachment 1

Resolution No. 10668 - A Resolution Accepting Three Regional Early Action
Planning Grant Awards to Further Housing Program Goals and Appropriation

ofFunds

Page 60

07/13/2021 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10668

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THREE REGIONAL EARLY ACTION PLANNING
GRANT AWARDS TO FURTHER HOUSING PROGRAM GOALS AND

APPROPRIATION OF' FUNDS

WHEREAS, the State 2019-20 Budget Act allocated $250 million for all California
regions, cities, and counties to do their part by prioritizing planning activities that accelerate

housing production to meet identified needs of every commtrnity; and

WHEREAS' the state Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD)
established the Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) to provide one-time grant

funding to regional governments and regional entities for planning activities that will accelerate

housing production and facilitate compliance in implementing the sixth cycle of the Regional
Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA); and

WHEREAS, Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) received an advance

allocation of REAP funds to provide direct allocations to local agencies for housing element
updates or other planning projects related to housing; and

WHEREAS' on March9,202l City Council adopted Resolution 10599 authorizing City
Staff to apply for two non-competitive REAP grants and one competitive REAP grant for eligible
housing related activities to advance the City's Housing Element goals and create additional
opportunities for high-density housing to ensure the City maintains an adequate capacity to meet

the lower-income RHNA, and

WHEREAS, the total requested in REAP grants totaled up to $765,000 for the following
projects, and;

1. Multi-Family and Residential Mixed-Use Design, Density and Market Feasibility
Analysis (non-competitive grant $90,000)

2. East Bidwell Drainage Study (non-competitive grant $100,000)
3. Housing Element Program H-2 Implementation: General Plan and Specific Plan

Amendment and Environmental Analysis (competitive grant $575,000)

WHEREAS, the City received full approval/award of all three of the REAP grants

requested for qualiffing projects in the total combined amount of $765,000, with no city match
required; and

WHEREAS, grant acceptance is not considered a project under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby:

Resolution No. 10668
Page I of2 Page 61

07/13/2021 Item No.7.



1. Approves the acceptance of a total grant award from the Regional Early Action Planning
Grant Program in the amount of $765,000; and

2. Appoints the Community Development Director, as agent of the City of Folsom to
conduct all negotiations, execute and submit all documents, including, but not limited to
applications, agreements, amendments, payment requests, which may be necessary for
the completion of the aforementioned projects; and

3. Authorizes the Chief Financial Officer to increase revenue estimates and expenditure
appropriations by $765,000, the grant award, to the City's General Fund (Fund 010).

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13ft day of July 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10668
Page2 of2 Page 62

07/13/2021 Item No.7.



i !)l'il jl\rl

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution No. 10666 - A Resolution Approving
the Final Engineer's Report for the following Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal
Year 2021-2022 American River Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2,
American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs
Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills
Ridge IliReflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake
Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prospect
Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, The Residences at American River Canyon,
The Residences at American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek
Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs.

MEETING DATE: 7lt3l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10666 - A Resolution Approving the Final
Engineer's Report for the following Landscaping and Lighting
Districts for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 American River Canyon
North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American River
Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2,
Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit
No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge IllReflections II, Folsom
Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma
Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks
Ranch, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase,

The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at
American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow
Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and
Willow Springs.

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 63

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On May I I , 2021 , the City Council adopted Resolution No . 1 043 4 - A Resolution Approving
the Preliminary Engineer's Report, Declaring the Intention to Continue to Levy and Collect
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual Assessments in the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment Districts and setting the Public Hearing for American River Canyon North,
American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks,

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No.
3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge Il/Reflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No.
2,Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, NatomaValley, Prairie
Oaks Ranch, Prospect Ridge, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at

American River Canyon II, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, Willow Creek Estates

East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs. The
Engineer's Report for the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting (L&L) Districts addresses

the annual assessment for each of the City's 29 existing Landscaping and Lighting Districts.

As was the case in Fiscal Year 2020-2021, Natoma Station-Union Square L&L will not be

assessed for Fiscal Year 202I-2022 since the Homeowners' Association has elected to cover
maintenance costs at this time. In addition, Silverbrook L&L is receiving a credit as was the
case last year due to available funds in the fund balance.

POLICY / RULE

Pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 22586, an annual Engineer's Report shall be

filed with the City Clerk. The City Council is also required to adopt a resolution confirming
the diagram and assessment pursuant to Section 22631of the Streets and Highway Code.

ANALYSIS

The Preliminary Engineer's Report approved by Resolution No. 10625 described the
maintenance and servicing to be performed in the City's 29 Landscaping and Lighting Districts
for Fiscal Year 202I-2022. The establishment of annual assessments for each of the L&L
Districts requires a resolution confirming the diagram and assessment. The Engineer's Report
is in compliance with the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972; including but not limited to
Sections 22565 et seq (preparing a report that complies with the article); and Sections 22660
and 226 62 (re garding annual installments procedures/process).

Assessment to Properties

Assessments to properties within each district are the same as Fiscal Year 2020-2021, with the

exception of three districts. Broadstone 4 has 4 zones, zone A has an increase of $0.76 this
year from $33.05 last year to $38.81 this year. ZoneB has an increase of $0.72 over last year's
rate and went from $36.241ast year to $36.96 this year. Zone C has an increase of $0.70 over
last year's rate and went from $35.72to $36.42. ZoneD had an increase of $0.70 this year and

went from $35.04 last year to $35.74 this year. The last district that has a change in their

Page 64

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



assessment amount is Willow Creek Estates East No. 2. This district has 3 zones, their rates

are as follows. Zones A & B has an increase of $1.95 this year going from $97.58 to $99.53.
Lastly Zone C had an increase of $1.79 and went from $89.70 last year to $91.49 this year.

There are another eight districts that have escalators and are eligible for CPI increases that will
not be utilized this year. Those districts are American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine
Oaks No. 2, Cobble Ridge, Folsom Heights No.2, Natoma Valley, The Residences, The
Residences II, and Sierra Estates.

Installment Summary

The installment summaries describe short-term installments collected pursuant to Section
22660 of the Streets and Highways Code to meet the districts' future repair and replacement
needs anticipated to occur within an approximate five-year time frame, as well as long-term
installments collected to meet those future needs anticipated to occur within 5 to 30-year time
frames.

Comparison to Last Year

District budgets for this upcoming year will continue focusing on improvements and

restorations that support each district's commitment to water conservation, prolonging assets

life, drought tolerant landscaping, fire safety, and tree stewardship. As such, some districts will
be retrofitting centralizing inigation controllers, inventorying street trees, changing out plant
materials to drought tolerant varietals, and converting over to LED streetlights. Many of the
City's districts ire over 20years old and do not have escalators built into their rates to track
with cost-of-living increases and economic changes. As such, districts being monitored for
future outreach regarding new assessment overlay districts are Briggs Ranch (30 years old),
and Natoma Station (30 years old). The City started the first stages of outreach for an overlay
district in Prairie Oaks Ranch in the 2019-20, and2020-2021 Fiscal Years and will be having
a public hearing on the possible formation of a new district overlay for Prairie Oaks Ranch at

the July 27th City Council Meeting. If adopted the new assessment will come into effect in FY
2I-22. Staff anticipates starting outreach in Natoma Station in the 2021-22 Fiscal Year.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Each Landscaping and Lighting District levies and collects funds to cover operating and

maintenance costs. There is no fiscal impact to the City of Folsom General Fund. Below is a
sunmary of the proposed assessments for FY 202I-22. There are twenty-five (25) districts in
which the assessments remain the same, three (3) districts with increased assessments, and two
(2) districts that are being removed from the tax roll (Silverbrook because there is capacity in
the fund balance and Natoma Station - Union Square because their HOA has taken over
maintenance).

District
Annual

Assessment
per unit

Credit
or increase*

Annual
Net

Assessment

Page 65

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



American fuver Canyon North $102.94 0 $r02.94
American River Canyon North
No.2

$77.70 0 $77.70

American River Canyon North
No.3

$269.86 0 $269.86

Blue Ravine Oaks $218.60 0 $218.60

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 $213.26 0 $213.26

Brisss Ranch st22.28 0 s122.28

Broadstone $164.99 0 $164.99

Broadstone Unit No. 3 $28.07 0 $28.07

Broadstone No. 4
o Zone A
c ZoneB
o ZoneC
o ZoneD

$38.0s
s36.24
$3s.72
$35.04

$0.76*
$0.72*
$0.70*
$0.70x

$3 8,8 1

$36.96
$36.42
$35.74

Cobble Ridee $r39,64 0 $139.64

Cobble Hills Ridge
IllReflections II

$l r3,14 0 $l13,r4

Folsom Heiehts $70.88 0 $70.88
Folsom Heights No. 2*

o California Hills
o Folsom Heights No. 2

(Enclave)

$196.42

$208.38

0

0

s196.42

$208.38

Hannaford Cross $19s.78 0 $195.78

Lake Natoma Shores $ 183.s 8 0 $183.s8
Los Cerros $ 121.18 0 s121.18

Natoma Station
o Natoma Station
o Union Square

$91.71
$228.88 :

91.71

$0.00

Natoma Valley $856.37 0 $856.37
Prairie Oaks Ranch $213.61 0 $2t3.61
Prospect Ridge $1.074.97 $98.89* $r,173.86
The Residences at ARC

o The Residences at ARC
o The Residences at ARC

II

$s36.67

$l169.97

0

0

$s36.67

$l169.97

Sierra Estates $363.68 0 $363.68

Silverbrook $138.32 (takine offtax roll) 0.00

Steenlechase $157.68 0 sls7.68
Willow Creek Estates East $80.40 0 $80.40

Willow Creek Estates East No. 2
o Zone A
o ZoneB
o Zone C

$97.58
$97.58
$89.70

$1.95x
$1.95*
$ 1.79*

$99.s3
$99.s3
$91.49

Willow Creek Estates South $109.88 0 s109.88

Willow Sprinss $28. l4 0 $28. l4

Page 66

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

N/A (This does not apply as there is no environmental review aspect to the engineer's
report.)

ATTACHMENTS

l Resolution No. 10666 - A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer's Report for the

following Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 American
River Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon
North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone,
Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge

IllReflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake

Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch,

Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, The Residences at American
River Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates

East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow
Springs

2. Final Engineer's Report - The City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts, July
202r

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione, Parks & Recreation Director

Page 67

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 1

ResolutionNo. 10666

Page 68

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10666

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL ENGINEER'S REPORT, CONF''IRMING
THE DIAGRAMS AND ASSESSMENTS, AND ORDERING THE CONTINUED
LEVYING OF ASSESSMENTS F'OR MAINTENANCE AND SERVICING OF
IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE CITY OF FOLSOM LANDSCAPING AND

LIGHTING DISTRICTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2O2I-2022 FOR AMERICAN RIVER
CANYON NORTH' AMERTCAN RrVER CANYON NORTH NO.2, AMERTCAN

RIVER CANYON NORTH NO.3, BLUE RAVTNE OAKS' BLUU RAVTN$ OAKS N0.20
BRrccs RANCH, BROADSTONE' BROADSTONE NO. 4, BROADSTONE UNrT NO.3,
COBBLE RIDGEO COBBLE HILLS RIDGE II/RET'LECTIONS II, FOLSOM HEIGHTS,

FOLSOM HEIGHTS NO.2, HANNAFORD CROSS, LAKE NATOMA SHORES, LOS
CERROS, NATOMA STATION, NATOMA VALLEY, PRAIRIE OAKS RANCH,

PROSPECT RIDGE, THE RESIDENCES AT AMERICAN RIVER CANYONO THE
RESIDENCES AT AMERICAN RIVER CANYON IIO SIERRA ESTATES,

SILVERBROOK' STEEPLECHASE, WILLOW CREEK ESTATES EAST' WILLOW
CREEK ESTATES EAST NO.2, WILLOW CREEK ESTATES SOUTH, AND WILLOW

SPRINGS

WHEREAS, on May 11,2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 10625, A
Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer's Report, Declaring the Intention to Continue to
Levy and Collect Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Anrnal Assessments in the City of Folsom Landscaping
and Lighting Assessment Districts and Setting Public Hearing for American River CanyonNorth,
American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks,

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3,

Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge Il/Reflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2,

Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks

Ranch, Prospect Ridge, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American
River Canyon II, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow
Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs; and

WHEREAS, July 13,2021 at 6:30 p.m. is the day and time set for hearing objections to
the levying of said assessments as identified in Exhibit A attached to this resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Final Engineer's Report for the Assessment Districts has been made, filed
with the City Clerk and considered by the City Council and is deemed sufficient and approved.

The Final Engineer's Report shall stand as the Engineer's Report for all subsequent proceedings

under and pursuant to this resolution, Section 22500, et. seq., of the California Streets and

Highways Code and Article XIIID of the California Constitution.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:
The City Council finds that the Final Engineer's Report for the Landscaping and Lighting Districts
in full compliance with the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and, based on said Report, adopt
and approve the following actions:

Resolution No. 10666

Page I of4 Page 69

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Approve as submitted, the Final Engineer's Report filed with this City Clerk for the
City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.

Confirm and approve the diagrams and assessments as set forth in the City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts Final Engineer's Report for Fiscal Year 2021-2022

Continue to order the levy of assessments as set forth in the City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts Final Engineer's Report for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.

Order the maintenance and servicing of improvements as set forth in the City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts Final Engineer's Report for Fiscal Year 202I-2022.

Declare that the assessments set forth in the Final Engineer's Report now constitute
liens upon the lots or parcels of land described in said report.

Direct the City Clerk to file a certified copy of said diagrams and assessments with the
Auditor of Sacramento County no later than the third Monday in August202l.

Request that the Auditor of Sacramento County enter on the Sacramento County
Assessment Roll the assessment for each lot or parcel of land in the amount indicated
in the Final Engineer's Report.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13ft day of July 202lby the following vote:

AYES: Council Members:

NOES: Council Members:

ABSENT: Council Members:

ABSTAIN: Council Members:

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10666

Page2 of 4

1

2.

J

4.

5

6.

7

Page 70

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Exhibit A
OF RESOLUTION NO. 10666

CITY OF'F'OLSOM
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICTS

X'ISCAL YEAR 202I.2022

ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS

District
Annual

Assessment
per unit

Credit
or increase*

Annual
Net

Assessment

American River Canyon North $102.94 0 s102.94

American River Canyon North
No.2

$77.70 0 $77.70

American River Canyon North
No.3

$269.86 0 $269.86

Blue Ravine Oaks $218.60 0 $218.60

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 $213.26 0 s213.26

Brisss Ranch $r22.28 0 sr22.28
Broadstone $164.99 0 s164.99

Broadstone Unit No. 3 $28.07 0 $28.07

Broadstone No. 4
o Zone A
o ZoneB
o ZoneC
o ZoneD

$38.05
s36.24
$3s.72
$3s.04

$0.76*
$0,72*
$0.70*
$0.70*

$38.81
$36.96
s36.42
s3s.74

Cobble Ridee $139.64 0 $139.64

Cobble Hills Ridge
IllReflections II

$113,14 0 $r r3,14

Folsom Heights $70.88 0 s70.88

Folsom Heights No. 2*
o California Hills
o Folsom Heights No. 2

(Enclave)

sr96.42

s208.38

0

0

$196.42

$208.38

Hannaford Cross s19s.78 0 $19s.78
Lake Natoma Shores $183.s8 0 $ 183,s8

Los Cerros s121.18 0 $ 121.18

Natoma Station
o Natoma Station
o Union Square

$91.71
$228.88

0
(taking off tax roll)

$91.71
$0.00

Natoma Valley $856.37 0 $8s6,37
Prairie Oaks Ranch $2r3.61 0 $213.61

Prospect Ridse sl.074.97 $98.89* $ r.173.86

The Residences at ARC
o The Residences at ARC
o The Residences at ARC

II

$s36.67

$1t69.97

0

0

$s36.67

91t69.97

Sierra Estates $363.68 0 $363.68

Resolution No. 10666
Page 3 of 4 Page 71

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Silverbrook $138.32 (takins off tax roll) 0.00

Steeplechase $157,68 0 s157.68

Willow Creek Estates East $80.40 0 $80.40

Willow Creek Estates East No. 2
o Zone A
c ZoneB
o ZoneC

$97.s8
$97.s8
$89.70

$ I .95*
$1.95*
$ 1.79x

$99.s3
$99.s3
$91.49

Willow Creek Estates South $109.88 0 s109.88

Willow Sorines $28.14 0 $28.14

Resolution No. 10666
Page 4 of4 Page 72

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 2

Final Engineer's Report

Page 73

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Crw or Fosorvt
AMERICAN RIVER CANYON NORTH LOS CERROS

AMER|CAN Rrven Cnruyoru NoRTH 2 Nerorun SrRrtoru

AMERTCAN RtVrn Caruyoru NoRTH 3 NAToMA VALLEY

BLUE RAVINE OAKS PRAIRIE OAKS RANCH

BLUE RAVTNE OAK5 No. 2 PROSPECT RIDGE

BRre es RnrucH THE RESIDENCES AT AMERICAN RIVER CANYoN

BRoADsToNE THE RESIDENCESATAMERICAN RIVERCANYON II

BRoADsToNE UN|T No.3 SteRnn Estltrs

Bnonosrorur No.4 SILVERBRooK

coBBLE RTDGE STEEPLECHASE

CoBBLE Hrrrs Rtoe e ll/REFLEcTtoNs ll Wtrlow CReer EsrarEs ERsr

Forsov HE;GHT5 WlLLow CREEK ESTATES EAST No 2

FoLsoM HE|GHTS No. 2 Wttlow CREEK ESTATES Soutt

HANNAFoRD CRoss WlLLow SPRINGS

LAKE NAToMA SHoNCS

LaruoscRpuuc AND LIexrtrue Dtsrntcrs

Frrunl EruetruerR's RepoRt

Julv 2021

Punsuarurro rHe LamosceptNG AND Uesrtne Acr or 1972 aruo

Anrrclr XlllD op rHr Celtronruta Corusrtruloll

Erucrruren or Wonr:

SClConsultingGroup
4745 MRrue es BoULEVARD

FRrRrrero, CRltronrutR 94534
Puorur 7O7.430.4300
Fax 707.430.4319
www.scl-cc.coM

Page 74

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



(Turs Pnce lruremtouettv Lrrr Burux)

Page 75

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



PneE i

Gw or Forcom

CrvCounctt-

Mike Koslowski, Mayor

Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor

YK Chalamcherla, Member

KerriHowell, Member

Rosario Rodriguez, Member

CrY Mmlcen

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

CwAnonrev
Steve Wang, City Attorney

For-sol,r Pnnxs & Recneenot Dtnecron

Lorraine Poggione

Mu rurcrpll Lnrosclpr Senvrces MmnceR

Zachary Penas

EltcneEn or Wonx

SClConsulting Group

Page 76

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pncr ii

Tnele oF CoNTENTS

lrrnooucrtoH

Ovrnvrew....
Lrcnl Aunlvsrs

Purs & SpecrrrceloN...............

Esnmlte or Cosr mo Buocrr........

DescRrprroru or I upnovrurrurs

Dtscusstolt or Brrugrtr.,,,.....
Beurrrr Fncrons
GrrurRRL vERSUS SprctRl Beruertr.,,....,,,.,,,.,.

Meruoo or AssrssutENT,.,...........,

Asse ssue rur ApponrtoutvtENT . . . ... .

Assessmem

Assrssuew Dncmu......

ApperoxA - Buocers..

CRreeony DrscRtprt0us,,,,,..........,..
Itr,tpRovrurrut Cosrs
CuRneltr Yrnn lupnovEMENT PRolrcts ..

Apprnox B-Assessmett Rott, FY 2021-22 106

1

1

3

7

E

8

21

22

24
26

26

40

43

45

45

45

45

Page 77

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 1

lrrnooucnon

Ovenuew

The City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts (the "Districts") provide funding for

the installation, maintenance and servicing of landscaping, sidewalks, fences, walls, parks,

open space, signage, soundwalls, street lighting, and other public improvements in the City

of Folsom, Twenty-nine such districts exist as follows:

The 29 City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts are:

American River Canyon North

American River Canyon North No. 2

American River Canyon North No. 3

Blue Ravine Oaks

Blue Ravine Oaks No, 2

Briggs Ranch

Broadstone

Broadstone Unit No,3

Broadstone No,4
Cobble Ridge

Cobble Hills Ridge ll/Reflections ll
Folsom Heights

Folsom Heights No.2
Hannaford Cross

Lake Natoma Shores

Los Cerros
Natoma Station (lncluding Union Square Annexation)

Natoma Valley (Formerly Lakeridge Estates)

Prairie Oaks Ranch

Prospect Ridge

Siena Estates

Silverbrook
The Residences at American River Canyon

The Residences at American River Canyon ll

Steeplechase
Willow Creek Estates East

Willow Creek Estates East No, 2

Willow Creek Estates South

Willow Springs

These assessments were established in previous fiscal years, ln each subsequent year

for which the assessments will be continued, the Ci$ Council ("Council") must direct the

preparation of an Enginee/s Report, budgets and proposed assessments for the upcoming

fiscal year. The Engineer's Report also identifies future planned projects. After the

Cwor Folsotrl
LANDScAPING AI.|o LIeurlnG DISTRICTS

ErrrcrrueeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 78

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Peee 2

Enginee/s Report is completed, the Council may preliminari[ approve the Enginee/s

Report and proposed assessments and establish the date for a public hearing on the

continuation of the assessments, This Engineer's Report ("Report") was prepared

pursuant to the direction of the Council.

This Report was prepared to establish the budget for the improvements that would be

funded by the proposed 2021-22 assessments and to define the benefits received from the

improvements by propefi within the Districts and the method of assessment

apportionmcnt to lots and parcele, This Report and the proposed assessments have been

made pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Parl2 of Division 15 of the

California Streets and Highways Code (the "Act") and Article XlllD of the California

Constitution (the "Article").

lf the Council approves this Engineer's Report and the proposed assessments by

resolution, a notice of the proposed assessment levies must be published in a local paper

at least 10 days prior to the date of the public hearing, The resolution preliminarily

approving the Enginee/s Report and establishing the date for a public hearing $pically
directs that this notice be published,

Following the minimum 10-day time period after publishing the notice, a public hearing is

held for the purpose of allowing public testimony about the proposed continuation of the

assessments. This hearing is currently scheduled for July 13,2021. At this hearing, the

Council would consider approval of a resolution confirming the assessments for fiscal year

2021-22. lf so confirmed and approved, the assessments would be submitted to the

County Auditor/Controller for inclusion on the property tax rolls for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

lncluded is a separate but integral tool: the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting

District lmprovement Plan ("lmprovement Plan"). lt is a separate planning document that

identifies the type of upcoming improvement (e,9, re-landscaping a corridor or painting a

wall); the estimated cost; any installments required for short-term (less than five years)

and/or long term (not greater than 30 years) improvements, and the approximate schedule

for completion of the improvement, The City intends to continually update and revise the

lmprovement Plan throughout each year to reflect the current status of improvement

projects, budget updates and/or changes in priorities,

The concept of the lmprovement Plan arose from the City's commitment to comply with the

requirements of the Act as well as produce a valuable instrument that enables the City to

schedule, prioritize, and plan for needed maintenance and servicing improvements in the

districts, lt also serves as a user-friendly means for members of the public to review and

understand the use of the assessment revenues generated from each district,

Cwor FoLsoM

I-ANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICTS

Er.rcrrureR's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 79

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Paee 3

Lecru ArualYsts

SLrcol Vlrrey TnxpnyERs AssoctATtott, llc. v Smm Cum Couttrv Opel Spnce

Autnonrv

ln July of 2008, the California Supreme Court issued its ruling on the Silicon Valley

Taxpayers Association, lnc. v, Santa Clara County Open Space Authority ("SVTA vs.

SCCOSA"), This ruling is the most significant court case in further legally clarifoing the

substantive assessment requirements of Proposition 218 which was approved by

Califomia voters in 1996. Several of the most important elements of the ruling included

further emphasis that:

. Benefit assessments are for special, not general, benefit

. The services and/or improvements funded by assessments must be clearly

defined
. Special benefits are directly received by and provide a direct advantage to

property in each district

This Enginee/s Report is consistent with the SVTA vs. SCCOSA decision and with the

requirements of Article XlllC and XlllD of the California Constitution based on the following

factors:

1. Most of the Districts were formed priorto the passage of Proposition 218 and/or

with unanimous approval of property owners, Although these assessments are

consistent with Proposition 218, the California judiciary has generally referred to

pre-Proposition 218 assessments as "grandfathered assessments" and held them

to a different standard than post Proposition 218 assessments,

2. The Districts are narrowly drawn to only include the specially benefiting parcels,

and the assessment revenue derived from real property in each District is

expended only on specifically identified improvements and/or maintenance and

servicing of those improvements in that District that confer special benefits to

property in that Dishict.

3, The use of unique and nanowly drawn Districts ensures that the improvements

constructed and maintained with assessment proceeds are located in close

proximity to the real property subject to the assessment, and that such

improvements provide direct and special benefit to the property in that District.

4, Due to their proximity to the assessed parcels, the improvements and

maintenance thereof financed with assessment revenues in the District provide a

direct advantage to properties in that District, and the benefits conferred on such

property in each District are more extensive and direct than a general increase in

property values.

5. The assessments paid in each District are proportional to the special benefit that

each parcel within that District receives from such improvements and the

maintenance thereof because:

a. The specific improvements and maintenance and utility costs thereof in

each District and their respective costs are specified in this Enginee/s

Report; and

Ctwop Folsorrl
I-ANDScAPING AND LIGHTING DISTNICTS

Er.rcrruren's REPoRt, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 80

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Prce 4

b, Such improvement and maintenance costs in each District are allocated

among different types of property located within each District, and equally

among those properties which have similar characteristics and receive

similar special benefits,

Therefore, given the factors highlighted above, this Engineer's Report is consistent with

the SVTA vs, SCCOSA decision and with the requirements of Article XlllC & XlllD of the

California Constitution.

Dnnms v. Dowmowt Pomom PnoPenw

On June 8, 2009, the 4th District Court of Appeal upheld a benefit assessment for property

in the downtown area of the City of Pomona. On July 22, 2009, the California Supreme

Court denied review, ln Dahms the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special

benefit (i,e. 0% general benefit) on the rationale that the services and improvements

funded by the assessments were directly provided to property in the assessment district.

The Court also upheld discounts and exemptions from the assessment for certain

properties.

BoHaroen v. TowH oF TIBURoN

On December 31, 2009, the 1't District Court of Appeal overturned a benefit assessment

approved by property owners to pay for placing overhead utility lines underground in an

area of the Town of Tiburon, The Court invalidated the assessments on the grounds that

the assessments had been apportioned to assessed property based in part on relative

costs within sub-areas of the assessment district instead of proportional special benefits,

Beurz v. Goumv or Rvenstoe

0n May 26,2010 the 4th District Court of Appeals issued a decision on the Steven Beutz

v. County of Riverside ("Beutz") appeal. This decision overturned an assessment for park

maintenance in Wildomar, California, primarily because the general benefit associated with

improvements and services were not explicitly calculated and quantified and separated

from the special benefits.

Goloer Hrr-L NrtcHaoRHooD AssoctATtoN v. Ctw or Sm Dleco

On Septemb er 22, 2011, the San Diego Court of Appeal issued a decision on the Golden

Hill Neighborhood Association V, City of San Diego appeal. This decision overturned an

assessment for street and landscaping maintenance in the Greater Golden Hill

neighborhood of San Diego, California. The court described two primary reasons for its

decision, First, like in Beutz, the court found the general benefits associated with services

were not explicitly calculated, quantified and separated from the special benefits, Second,

the court found that the City had failed to record the basis for the assessment on its own

parcels.

Crvor Folsou
LANDScApTNG AND LTGHTtNc Dtsrntcrs
ErucrrueeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 81

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Paee 5

Cortrplnnce wtrH CURRENT LAw

This Engineer's Report is consistent with the requirements of Article XlllC and XlllD of the

California Constitution and with the SVIA decision because the lmprovements to be

funded are clearly defined; the lmprovements are directly available to and will directly

benefit property in the Assessment Districts; and the lmprovements provide a direct

advantage to property in each of the Assessment Districts that would not be received in

absence of the Assessments.

This Engineer's Report is currsistent with Eeufa Dahms and Greater Golden l/tZ because

the lmprovements will directly benefit property in each of the Assessment Districts and the

general benefits have been explicitly calculated and quantified and excluded from the

Assessments, The Engineer's Report is consistent with Bonander because the

Assessments have been apportioned based on the overall cost of the lmprovements and

proportional special benefit to each property.

lmpacr oF REcENT Pnoposrpn 218 DectsloHs

This Engineer's Report is consistent with the SVTA vs. SCCOSA, Dahms, Bonander -
Beutz and Greater Golden Hill decisions and with the requirements of Article XlllC and

XlllD of the California Constitution based on the following factors:

1. The assessment revenue derived from real property in each assessment District

within the City of Folsom is extended only on specific landscaping and other

improvements and/or maintenance and servicing of those improvements in that

assessment district

2. The use of various assessment districts ensures that the landscaping and other

improvements constructed and maintained with assessment proceeds are located

in close proximi$ to the real property subject to the assessment, and that such

improvements provide a direct advantage to the property in the assessment

district,

3. Due to their proximity to the assessed parcels, the improvements and

maintenance thereof financed with assessment revenues in each assessment

district benefits the properties in that assessment district in a manner different in

kind from the benefit that other parcels of real property in the City of Folsom derive

from such improvements, and the benefits conferred on such property in each

assessment district are more extensive and direct than a general increase in

property values.

4. The assessments paid in each assessment district are proportional to the special

benefit that each parcel within that assessment district receives from such

improvements and the maintenance thereof because:

a. The specific landscaping and other improvements and maintenance and

utility costs thereof in each assessment district and the costs thereof are

specified in this Enginee/s Report; and

b. Such improvement and maintenance costs in each assessment district are

allocated among different types of property located within each

Crv or Folsoru
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICTS

Erucrrueen's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

4
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 82

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 6

assessment district, and equally among those properties which have

similar characteristics and receive similar special benefits.

There have been a number of clarifications made to the analysis, findings and supporting

text in this Report to ensure that this consistency is well communicated.

Crvop For-sotrr

LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTNICTS

EruerrueeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClGoneultingGroup

Page 83

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 7

Pr-ms & SprcrrrcATroN

The work and improvements proposed to be undertaken by the City of Folsom

Landscaping and Lighting Districts (the "Districts") and the cost thereof paid from the

continuation of the annual assessment provide special benefit to parcels within the

Districts defined in the Method of Assessment herein. Consistent with the Landscaping

and Lighting Act of 1972, (the "Act")the work and improvements (the "lmprovements") are

generally described as follows:

Within these districts, the existing and proposed improvements are generally described as

the installation, maintenance and servicing of turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees,

inigation systems, drainage systems, street lighting, fencing, soundwalls, sidewalks,

monuments, statuary, fountains, water quality ponds, park facilities, open space, bike

trails, walkways, drainage swales and other ornamental structures and facilities, entry

signage, street pavers, art work, and monuments and all necessary appurtenances, and

labor, materials, supplies, utilities and equipment, as applicable, for property owned or

maintained by the City of Folsom. Any plans and specifications for these improvements

have been filed with the City of Folsom and are incorporated herein by reference.

"Maintain" or "maintenance" means the fumishing of serulbes and

materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation, and seruicing

of any improvement, including:

(a) Repair, removal, or replacement of all or any paft of any

improvement.
(b) Providing for the life, growth, health, and beauty of landscaping,

including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, fertilizing, or treating for

disease or injury,

(c) The removalof trimmings, rubbish, debris, and other solid waste.

(d) The cleaning, sandblasting, and painting of walls and other

improvements to remove or cover graffiti.

"Sewice" or "seruicing" means the furnishing of:

(a) Hectric current or enerry, gas, or other illuminating agent for any
public lighting facilities or for the lighting or operation of any other

improvements,
(b) Water for the irrigation of any landscaping, the operation of any

fountains, or the maintenance of any other improvements.

The assessment proceeds from each District will be exclusively used for lmprovements

within that District plus lncidental expenses. Reference is made to the Estimate of Cost

and Budget, Appendix A and to the additional plans and specifications, including specific

expenditure and improvement plans by District, which are on file with the City,

CrY or FoLsoM

LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTNrcTS

Eruerruren's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 84

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Paee 8

Esrulre oF CoSTAND BUDGET

Descnrpnoru op lmpnoveMENTs

Following are descriptions of improvements for the various City of Folsom Landscaping

and Lighting Districts.

Amenrcrr Rven Cmvol Nonu
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
. Purchase of irrigation water from San Juan Suburban Water District.

' Maintenance of lnigation system, entry fountain, plantings, sidewalks and

streetlights,
. Purchase of electric power,
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects tor 2021-22:
. Waterfall autofill, chlorine pump and filter replacement,

Future lmprovement Projects:. No planned projects.

AmeRrclr Rven CmYoN NoRTH No. 2

. Purchase of electric power.

. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. LED conversion.

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Paint and replace streetlight poles,

Amenrcm RvenCmvoN NoRTH No.3
. Purchase of electric power.
. Purchase of inigation water from San Juan Suburban Water District,
. Maintenance of landscaping, lighting, signs, sidewalk and walls, waterfalls,

including turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, drainage

systems, street lighting, walls, signs,

Planned lmprovement Projects ior 2021-22:
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements.

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements),
. Signage replacement,

Crv or FoLsoM

LRruoscnptrue nND LtcHTtNG DtsrRrcts
ETcTNEER's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

d
SClConsultingGroup

Page 85

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 9

' Baldwin Dam path repair.
. Landscape/lrrigation removal and replacement - Mystic Hills, ARC Drive/Canyon

Falls,

' Main Walking Trail- landscaping, inigation, step areas
. Waterfall-rockrepair,

Blue Rnure Olrs
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors,
. Purchase of irrigatiorr waler lrottt City of Folsom,
. Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, fences, walls and

streetlights.
. Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. No planned projects.

Future lmprovement Projects:

' No planned projects.

Blue Rrvnr Oms No.2
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
. Purchase of irrigation water from City of Folsom.
. Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, fences, walls and

streetlights,
. Purchase of electric power,
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. LED conversion,
. Tree pruning,

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Riley Street Fence/Replacement,

' Tree removal/replacement,
. Blue Ravine Wall repair,
. SignageimprovemenVreplacement.

Bnrccs Rnncn

. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and conidors.

. Purchase of inigation water from City of Folsom,

. Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, walls, fences, open space

area, signage and streetlights,
. Purchase of electric power.

Cwor Folsom
LANDScAptNG Atrto Lrcrmruc Dtsrntcrs
EruerueeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 86

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 10

. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,

Planned lmprovement Projects ior 2021-22:
. No planned projects.

Future lmprovement Projects:
. FenceMall repair/replacement (Blue Ravine/E Natoma)

' SignageimprovemenUreplacement,

' Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements),
. lnigation upgrades/replacement (3 controllers).
. Shrub and tree upgrades - Blue Ravine/E. Natoma.
. Bollard repair/replacement.
. Pet station repair/replacement,
. Landscape lighting upgrades/replacement.

Bnonosrore
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors,
. Purchase of irrigation water from City of Folsom.
. Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, sound walls, water quality

ponds and streetlights,
. Purchase of electric power.

' Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,

Planned lmprovement Projects lor 2021-22:
. No planned projects,

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Repair irrigation/replace shrubs - lron Point median, Rathbone, Knofler, other

interior areas. Signage improvemenUreplacement,
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements).
. lrrigationrepair/retrofit.
. Bollardrepair/replacement.
. Pet station repair/replacement.
. Street lights fixture replacement,

' Signageimprovement/replacement'
. Turfremoval/irrigationretrofit.
. Landscape light maintenance.
. Shrub replacement (throughout District).

Bnoaosrole UHr No.3
. No planned projects.

Planned lmprovement Projects lor 2021-22:
. LED conversion.

Crvor Folsotrt
Leuoscnptrue Rruo Lteuttttc DtsrRlcts
EruerruEen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 87

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 1 1

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Paint streetlight poles

Bnonosrone No.4
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and conidors,
. Purchase of irrigation water from City of Folsom,
. Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, sound walls, water quality

ponds and streetlights.
r Purchase of electric power,
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22
. Landscapereplacement,
. Tree planting,

Future lmprovement Projects
. No planned projects,

CoeeLE Hrrrs Rtoce ll/ReruecrtoHs ll
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors,
. Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.
. Maintenance of lrrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, soundwalls, signage,

parks, park facilities, open space and streetlights,
. Purchase of Electric Power from SMUD.
. Maintenance of public lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. No planned projects,

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Soundwall/fence replacemenUrepair/painting.
. Signageimprovement/replacement.
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements),
. Shrub replacement - Sibley/Corner, Glenn/Oxburough.
. Mini Park and Path - turf and shrub repair/replacement

Coeele Rtoce

. Maintenance of shrubs and trees within landscape medians and corridors.

. Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom,

. Maintenance of inigation system, plantings, open space areas, soundwalls,

sidewalks and streetlights,
. Purchase of electric power,
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Crvor Fousou
I,ANDSCAPING At',tO LtGnrtHc DtsrRtcrs
ENGINEER's REPORT, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 88

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 12

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22
. LED conversion,
. Fence repair,

Future lmprovement Projects:

' PainVreplacefence/tabularfence.
. Fencerepair/replacement,
. Shrub, bark, DG replacement.
. Tree and Landscape lmprovomcnts (or replacements).
. Tree work in Culde Sac,

Folsollt Hercnrs
. Maintenance of shrubs and trees within landscape medians and corridors,

corridors, bike trails, walkways, and open space areas.
. Purchase of inigation water from the City of Folsom,
. Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, fences, walls, sidewalks and

streetlights,
. Purchase of Elechic Power,
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:

' Open space/tree work,

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Bike path repair.
. Wall painUrepair.
. Open Space managemenUtree removal.

' Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements)

For-solu Hercms No.2
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors,

corridors, bike trails, walkways, and open space areas,

' Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom,
. Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, fences, walls, sidewalks and

streetlights,
. Purchase of Electric Power,
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. Fence replacement.
. Ladder Fuel/Tree work,

Future lmprovement Projects (if funded with new District)
. Glenn wall repair.
. Tree and landscape improvements (Viena Cir)

Crv or Folsolrt
LRttoscnprruG RNo LteHrtue Dtsmtcts
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2021-22 --

SClConsultingGroup

Page 89

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 1 3

I New landscape (Glenn)

HmmronoCnoss
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and conidors.
. Purchase of irrigation water and electric power for the two mini parks in a

70o/o1300/o: City/District contribution. (based on maintenance assignments)
. Maintenance of lnigation system, bike trails, walkways, fences, walls, drainage

swale, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights,
. Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,

Planned lmprovement Projects lor 2021-22
. No planned projects,

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Fence repair/replacement - Lakeside Dr.
. Landscape/inigation - Lakeside Dr,
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements)
. EntU and trellis - lnwood replanting.

Llre NnromA SHoRES

. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors,

. Maintenance of lrrigation system, soundwalls, signage, street pavers, plantings,

sidewalks and streetlights,
. Purchase of lrrigation water from the City of Folsom.
. Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects lor 2021-22
. LED conversion,
. Tree work,

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Signage improvemenUreplacement.
. Turf repair/irrigation upgrades
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements)

Los Cennos
. Maintenance of landscape medians and corridors,
. Purchase of inigation water from the City of Folsom,
. Maintenance of lnigation system, walls, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights
. Purchase of electric power,
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22

Cwor Folsoru
LANDSCAPING AHo LIGUTIruG DISTNICTS

Eruerrueen's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

-

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 90

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Peee 14

. Ladder fuel removal

. Tree work,

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Open Space parcels management,
. WallPainURepair.
. Landscapelightrepair/maintain.
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements)
. Tree/shrub replacement - Riley Street.
. SignageimprovemenUreplacement,
. Cruickshank/Woodsmoke planUbark,
. Median lsland plant replacement.

NlroulSrnnor
. Maintenance of lrrigation system, walls, signage, art work, open space areas,

parks, plantings and streetlights,
. Purchase of inigation water from the City of Folsom,
. Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22
. Fence replacement on Turnpike.

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Shrub/tree replacement Blue Ravine/Turnpike/lron Point
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements).
. Sidewalk repair,
. Paver repairs/replacements,
. Mini Park replanting/bark,
. Wetland area maintenance.
. Signrepair/replacement.
. Wallrepair/painting,
. lrrigation upgrades (water conservation)

Nlromn SrnrtoN-UNtoN Souene

Note: lJnion Square which is a Benefit zone of Natoma Station will be providing its own

landscaping and lighting maintenance via an existing homeownels association and

seruicing for 2021-22.

NnrolleVnllev
. lnstallation, maintenance and servicing of turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees,

irrigation systems, drainage systems, street lighting, soundwalls, retaining walls,

fencing and all necessary appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities

and equipment

Crv op FoLsoi,
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DFTRrcTS

ENGTTrER's REpoRr, FY 2021-22

SClconsultingGroup

Page 91

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 15

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. lnterior landscape replacement,
. Tree work.

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Wallrepair/replacement.

PnospEcr Rtooe

. Maintenance of lrrigation system, walls, signage, open space areas, parks,

plantings and streetlights.
. Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.
. Purchase of electric power.

' Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,
. Maintenance of landscape corridors.

Planned lmprovement Projects lor 2021-22:
. No planned projects.

Future lmprovement Projects:
. No planned projects.

Pmrnre Oms Rllcx
. Maintenance and servicing of lawns and trees within landscape medians and

corridors.
. Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom,
. Maintenance of lrrigation system, walls, signage, fences, open space areas,

trellises, and streetlights along Grover Road, Russi Road, Willard Drive, Stewart

Street and the interior public roadways within the subdivisions.
. Purchase of electric power,

' Maintenance of street lighting flxtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. No planned projects.

Future lmprovement Projects:
. FenceMall painUrepair/replace.
. Riley Street landscaping,

' SignRepair/Replacement,
. Replace Landscaping - Grover/Russi/lron PoinUBlue Ravine
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements).
. Open Space Weed Maintenance Abatement.

Cnor Folsou
LRruoscRptruc eruo Lronrrruc DtsrRtcTs

EruerrueeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 92

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 16

Srrnm Esnres
. Maintenance of landscaping, lighting and soundwalls along Rowland Court, Dolan

Court and Riley Street including turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation

systems, drainage systems, street lighting, fencing, soundwalls, monuments,

statuary, fountains, and other ornamental structures and facilities, entry

monuments and all necessary appurtenances
. Purchase of water from the City of Folsom
. Purchase of elechic power.
r Malntenance of street lighting fixtures,

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. Tree replacement.

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements)
. Signage improvemenUreplacement.
. Shrubs and irrigation replacements.

SrLvensnoox
. Note: Silverbrook will not be levied for fiscal year 2021-22, due to a surplus in

revenue.
. Maintenance of lawns and hees within landscape median.
. Purchase of irrigation water from City of Folsom.
. Maintenance of lrrigation system, entry median, plantings, sidewalks and

streetlights,
. Purchase of electric power,
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. LED conversion.

Future lmprovement Projects:. Relandscape median

Srerplecxlse
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors
. Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom,

' Maintenance of lrrigation system, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights.
. Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. Fence replacement,
. Tree work,

CrYor Folsorrr
LANDScAptNG Atto Lteurtru0 DrsrRtcts
Euerruren's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 93

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 17

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Riley Street fence replacement.

' Park fence replacement
. SignageimprovemenUreplacement,
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements)
. Renovation of turf in mini-park.
. Repair and/or replace bollards.
. Landscape replacement along Riley Street.
. Landscape median and park,
. Remove roots in park/replace turf,

Tne Rrstoelcrs ar AuentcAN RvER Cnwol

' Maintenance landscaping, lighting and soundwalls along American River Canyon

Drive and Oak Avenue including turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation

systems, drainage systems, street lighting, sound-walls, and all necessary

appurtenances,
. Purchase of water from San Juan Water District,
. Purchase of electric power,
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22
. Landscapereplacement.

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Landscape and irrigation repairs and replacements.
. Wallrepair/replacement,
. Drainage Swale repair,

Tnr ResIoeHCES AT AMERICAN RVER CANYON II

. lnstallation, maintenance and servicing of turf, ground cover, shrubs, and trees,

irrigation systems, drainage systems, street lighting, walls, signage and all

necessary appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities, and equipment

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
r Landscapereplacement.

Future lmprovement Projects:

' Landscape and irrigation repairs and replacements
. Wallrepair/replacement.
. Drainage Swale repair.

Wrllow Cneer Esrnres Elsr
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and conidors,
. Purchase of inigation water from the City of Folsom,

Crv or Folsou
LRruoscRprr,tG Rruo LteHrtruo DsrRtcrs
EruelruEen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClconsultingGroup

Page 94

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 18

. Maintenance of irrigation system, walls, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights, as

wellas weed abatement,
. Purchase of electric power,
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. No planned projects,

Future lmprovement Projects: (if funding available)
. Planting Removal/Replacement.
. SignageimprovemenUreplacement,
. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements),
. lrrigation repairs/upgrades,
. Landscape/irrigation replacement - Oak Ave median/Blue Ravine,

Wrllow CnErr Esrlres Easr No.2
. Maintenance of irrigation system, walls, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights, as

well as weed abatement.
. Purchase of inigation water from the City of Folsom,
. Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,
. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. Frontage landscape along Blue Ravine,
. Monument signs.

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Landscape & lrrigation retrofit along Blue Ravine & Oak Ave

Wrllow Cneex Esmrrs Sourn
. Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.
. Maintenance of lrrigation system, walls, entry signage, drainage way, parks,

sidewalks and streetlights, as well as weed abatement,
. Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. Sign design,
. Tree work.
. New planting,

Future lmprovement Projects:
. Wall PainUPower Wash

Owor FoLsoM

LRruoscRptrue RND LTGHTTNG DlsrRlcrs
EncrNeen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 95

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnoe 19

. EntUsignage retrofiVreplacement,

. Prewett tree open space,

. Street paver replacement.

. Oak Avenue - shrub retrofit,

. Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements)

' Silberhornrelandscaping.

' Turf removal/inigation upgrades.

Wrllow Spruucs

. Purchase of electric power.

. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures,

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2021-22:
. LED conversion,

Future lmprovement Projects:
. PainUrepair Lamp Posts,

Owor Folsou
LRruoscRprrue nruo LrcHnrue Dtsrntcrs
Er.rcrNEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 96

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Buoeers

Crwop Folson
l-ANDscAptNG Ar.to Lteurtrue Dtsrnrcrs
Eruerrurrn's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

Below is a summary of the Budgets for the various districts. Refer to Appendix A - Budgets, for detaibd fudgets for each district.

* Subject to CPI increase

Pnee 20

-

SClConsultingGroup

River Canyon North

River Canyon North 2

River Canyon North 3

Ravine Oaks

Ravine 0ala No. 2

Ranch

Broadstone

Broadstone Unit No.3

Broadstone No.4
Hills lllReflections ll
Ridge

Folsom Heighb
Heighb No.2

Cross

Natoma Shores

Valley (formerly) Lakeridge

Cerros

Station

Ridge

Oaks Ranch

Residences at ARC

Residences at ARG ll
Eshtes

Creek East

Creek East Esbtes No 2

Creek South

Springs

IOTATS
\

lmprovement

Cosb
lncidental

Costs

Total

lmprovement Costs

Current

Proiecb
Benefit Unib

(SFEsl
Rate Total Assessment

$146,500.00

$30,500.00

$198,075.00

$17,700.00

$48,800.00

$88,737.00

$18s,000.00

$18,000.00

$324,850.00

$45,863.00

$14,s50.00

$16,350.00

$48,775.00

$23,275.00

$25,300.00

$54,632.00

$51,768.00

$196,750.00

$21,475.00

$233,145.00

$25,600.00

$25,600.00

$12,275.00

$22,731.17

$42,000.00

$25,000.00

$173,100.00

$135,710.00

$24,200.00

$2,748.54

$380.40

$542.54

$5,347.35

$4,320.35

$18,668.41

$64,986.70

$1,444.38

$19,751.00

$14,639.51

$6,050.82

$5,025.72

$5,211.00

$8,457.77

$7,997.67

$12,248.61

$9,737.83

$39,0s9.37

$2,886.65

$64,145.99

$4,215.03

$0.00

$5,593.75

95,726.17

$9,419.00

$0.00

$19,675.00

$15,689.s7

$611.03

$149,248.54

$30,880.40

$198,617.54

$23,047.35

$53,120.35

$107,405.41

$249,986.70

$19,444.38

$344,601.00

$60,502.51

$20,600.82

$21,375.72

$53,986.00

$31,732.77

$33,297.67

$66,880.61

$61,505.83

$235,809.37

$24,361.65

$297,290.99

$29,815.03

$25,600.00

$17,868.75

$28,457.33

$s'1,419.00

$25,000.00

$192,775.00

$151,399.57

$24,811.03

$65,000.00

$25,000.00

$86,000.00

$0.00

$20,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

$8,000.00

$60,000.00

$0.00

$6,500.00

$3,000.00

$23,000.00

$0.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$4,550.00

$0.00

$0.00

$4,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$'r0,000.00

$'r3,000.00

$0.00

$75,000.00

$25,000.00

$15,000.00

1,022

160

920

165

165

660

2,369

812

2,065

389

98

308

299

103

113

79

337

1,897

27

919

17

10

25

114

154

747

741

1462

517

$102.94

$77.70

$269.86 
-

$218.60

$213.26 
-

$122.28

$164.99

$28.07 
.

$38.8'l 
.

$113.14

$139.64 
-

$70.88

$208.38 
-

$195.78

$183.58

$856.37 ',

$121.18

$91.70

$1,173.86

$213.61

$536.67 ',

$1,169.97'
$363.68 

.

$0.00

$157.68

$80.40

$99.53 ',

$109.88

$28.14

$105,204.68

$'12,432.00

$248j52.46

$36,069.00

$35,187.90

$80,706.02

$390,859.66

$22,779.65

$80,144.43

$44,011.46

$13,684.72

$21,831.04

$62,386.89

$20,165.34

$20,74/..54

$67,653.23

$40,837.66

$173,976.36

$31,400.76

$196,228.55

$9,123.3S

$11,699.70

$9,092.00

$0.00

$24,282.72

$60,058.80

$73,797.02

$160,642.36

$14,548.38

J2,276,261.17 $354,580.15 t2,630,841.32 $,1E6,0e!.00
I

$2,067,700.7,|

Page 97

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 21

Meruoo oF APPoRTToNMENT

This section of the Enginee/s Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be derived

from the installation, maintenance and servicing of the lmprovements throughout the

Districts, and the methodology used to apportion the total assessment to properties within

the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts.

The City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts consist of all Assessor Parcels

within the boundaries of each District defined as defined by Assessment Diagram included

within this report and the Assessor Parcel Numbers listed within the included Levy roll,

The parcels include all privately or publicly owned parcels within said boundaries. The

method used for apportioning the assessment is based upon the proportional special

benefits to be derived by the properties in the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting

Districts over and above general benefits conferred on real property or to the public at

large. The apportionment of special benefit is a two-step process: the first step is to identiff

the types of special benefit arising from the improvements, and the second step is to
allocate the assessments to property based on the estimated relative special benefit for

each type of property,

Drscussroru oF BENEFtT

ln summary, the assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to property,

This benefit is received by property over and above any general benefits. With reference

to the requirements for assessments, Section 22573 of the Landscaping and Lighting Act

of 1972 states:

"The net amount fo be assess ed upon lands within an assessme nt district

may be apportioned by any formula or method which fairly distributes the

net amount among a// assessab/e /ofs or parcels in proportion to the

estimated benefits to be received by each such lot or parcel from the

improvements."

Proposition 218, as codified in Article XlllD of the California Constitution, has confirmed

that assessments must be based on the special benefit to property and the assessment

must not exceed the reasonable cost of the proportional benefit upon the assessed parcel:

"No assessrment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds fhe

reasonable cosf of the proportional special benefit conferred on that
parcel."

The following benefit categories summarize the types of special benefit to residential,

commercial, industrial and other lots and parcels resulting from the lmprovements to be

provided with the assessment proceeds. These categories of special benefit are

supported by various California legislation and supporting studies which describe the types

of special benefit received by property from lmprovements such as those proposed by the

Crvor Folsol,t
LANDScAPING AND LGHTING DISTRICTS

Errrcrruren's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 98

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Paae22

City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts. These types of special benefit are

summarized as follows:

. Proximity to improved landscaped areas within each District,

. Access to improved landscaped areas within each District.

. lmproved Views within each District,

. Extension of a property's outdoor areas and green spaces for properties within

close proximity to the lmprovements,
. Creation of individual lots for residential and commercial usc that, in abscnce of

the District and the services provided by the District, would not have been created,

ln this regard, the recent the SVTA v, SCCOSA decision provides enhanced clarity to the

definitions of special benefits to properties in three distinct areas:

. Proximity

. Expanded or improved access

. Views

The SWA v, SCCOSA decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a service or

improvement that provides a direct advantage to a parcel, and that indirect or derivative

advantages resulting from the overall public benefits from a service or improvement are

general benefits, The SVTA v, SCCOSA decision also provides specific guidance that

park improvements are a direct advantage and special benefit to property that is proximate

to a park improved by an assessment:

The characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel

receives a direct advantage from the improvement (e.9. proximity to a
park) or receives an indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the

overall public benefits of the improvement (e.9. general enhancement of
the district's property values).

Proximity, improved access and views, in addition to the other special benefits listed above

further strengthen the basis of these assessments.

Bererr Facrons

The special benefits from the lmprovements are further detailed below:

PnoxmTv TO IMPROVED LANDSCAPED AREAS WITHIN THE DFTRICT

Only the specific properties within close proximity to the lmprovements are included in

each District. Therefore, property in the Districts enjoys unique and valuable proximity and

access to the lmprovements that the public at large and property outside the Districts do

not share,

ln absence of the assessments, the lmprovements would not be provided and the

landscaping areas in the Districts would be degraded due to insufficient funding for

Crv or Folsou
LANDScAptNG At'to LrGnnHc Dtsrnlcrs
Eruerrueen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

4
SClConsultingGroup

Page 99

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 23

maintenance, upkeep and repair. Therefore, the assessments provide lmprovements that

are over and above what otherwise would be provided. lmprovements that are over and

above what otherwise would be provided do not by themselves translate into special

benefits but when combined with the unique proximity and access enjoyed by parcels in

the Districts, they provide a direct advantage and special benefit to property in the

Districts,

Access ro tMpRovED LAt'tDscAPED AREAs wlrHlN THE DFTRlcr

Slnce the parcels in each District are [re orrly parcels that enjoy close access to the

lmprovements, they directly beneflt from the unique close access to improved landscaping

areas that are provided by the Assessments, This is a direct advantage and special

benefit to property in that District,

lmpnoveo vrews wtTHtN THE DFTRlcr

The District, by maintaining these landscaped areas, provides improved views to
properties in each District. The properties in a District enjoy close and unique proximity,

access and views of the lmprovements; therefore, the improved and protected views

provided by the Assessments are another direct and tangible advantage that is uniquely

confened upon property in a District,

ExTeIsoII oF A PRoPERTY'S oUTDooR AREAS AND GREEN SPACES FOR PROPERTIES WITHIN

closE pRoxrMrTy ro rHE lmpRoveuelts

ln large part because it is generally cost prohibitive to provide large open land areas in

development projects, the residential, commercial and other benefiting properties in each

District do not have large outdoor areas and green spaces, The landscaped areas within

each District provide additional outdoor areas that serve as an effective extension of the

land area for properties that are in close proximity to the lmprovements. The

lmprovements, therefore, provide an important, valuable and desirable extension of usable

land area, which confers a direct advantage and special benefit to properties in close

proximi$ to the lmprovements.

cnelrtot oF IND|VIDUAL LOTS FOR RESTDENTTAL AND COMMERCIAL USE THAT, lN ABSENCE OF

THE ASSESSiIENTS, WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN CREATED

Typically, the original owner/developer of the property within the Districts can petition the

City to establish the assessment districts. As parcels were sold, new owners were

informed of the assessments through the title reports, and in some cases, through

Department of Real Estate "White Pape/' reports that the parcels were subject to

assessment, Purchase of property was also an "agreement" to pay the assessment, ln

absence of the assessments, the lots within the Districts would probably not have been

subdivided and created, These lots, and the improvements they support, are a special

benefit to the property owners,

Cwor Folsoru
LANDSoAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRrcTS

EruerrueeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

75
SClConsultingGroup

Page 100

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 24

Geueml vERsus Specru BeteRr

The assessments from the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts are used to

fund improvements and increased levels of maintenance to the grounds adjoining the

properties in the Districts. ln absence of those Districts, such lmprovements would not be

provided and the properties would not have been subdivided and improved to the same

extent, The Districts were specifically proposed for formation to provide additional and

improved improvements, and services in the Districts. ln absence of the assessments,

these public resources could not be created and revenues would not be available for their

continued maintenance and improvement, Therefore, the assessments solely provide

special benefit to property in the Districts over and above the general benefits confened by

the general facilities of the City.

Although these lmprovements may be available to the general public at large because the

Districts are accessible by members of the public, the lmprovements within each District

were specifically designed, located and created to provide additional and improved public

resources for property inside the Districts, and not the public at large. Other properties

that are either outside the Districts or within the Districts and not assessed, do not enjoy

the unique proximity, access, views and other special benefit factors described previously,

These lmprovements are of special benefit to properties located within the Districts

because they provide a direct advantage to properties in the Districts that would not be

provided in absence of the assessments.

Although the analysis used to support these assessments concludes that the benefits are

solely special, as described above, consideration is made for the suggestion that a portion

of the benefits are general, General benefits cannot be funded by these assessments - the

funding must come from other sources,

The maintenance and servicing of these improvements is also partially funded, directly and

indirectly from other sources including City of Folsom, the County of Sacramento and the

State of California, This funding comes in the form of grants, development fees, special

programs, and general funds, as well as direct maintenance and servicing of facilities (e.9,

curbs, gutters, streets, drainage systems, and other infrastructure maintenance items such

as pond clean outs and sheet sweeping, etc.) This funding from other sources more than

compensates for general benefits, if any, received by the properties within the districts.

ln the 2009 Dahms case, the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special benefit

on the rationale that the services funded by the assessments were directly provided within

the assessment district over and above the services already provided by the City within the

boundaries of the assessment district. lt is also important to note that certain services

funded by the assessments in Pomona are similar to the services funded by the

Assessments described in this Engineer's Report and the Court found these services to be

100% special benefit. Similar to the assessments in Pomona, the Assessments described

in this Engineer's Report fund improvements and services directly provided within the

Assessment District to benefit properties within the assessment district and not to the

public at large, and these properties enjoy close proximity and access to the

Crv or Folsorir
LANDSoAPING AI'.Io LIGHTIruG DISTRICTS

EnerrueeR's RepoRt, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 101

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 25

lmprovements, Therefore, Dahms establishes a basis for minimal or zero general benefits

from the Assessments,

Step 1: Calculation of the General Benefit

The general benefits from this assessment may be quantified as illustrated in the following

table,

Relatlve
Relative
weicht

General Benefit
Contribution

General

Benefit Factor Benefit

Creation of parcels

lmproved views
lmproved nighttime visibility and safety from streetlights

0

0.5
1

90

5

5

1.5

L.5%

w6
tWo

2W6

100

Total Calculated General Benefit =

As a result, the City of Folsom will contribute at least 1.5o/o of the total budget from sources

other than the assessment, The contribution offsets any general benefits from the

Assessment Services.

Step 2: Calculation of Current General Benefit Contribution from City

The general benefit contribution is satisfied from the sum of the following components:

The City of Folsom owns, maintains, rehabilitates and replaces curb and gutter along the

border of the Assessment Districts improvements, This curb and gutter serves to support,

contain, retain, manage irrigation flow and growth, and provide a boundary for the

improvements, The contribution from the City of Folsom toward general benefit from the

maintenance, rehabilitation and replacement of the curb gutter is conservatively estimated

to be 1%.

The Cig of Folsom owns and maintains storm drainage systems along the border of the

Assessment Districts improvements, This system serves to prevent flooding and

associated damage to the improvements, and manage urban runoff including local

pollutants loading from the improvements. The contribution from the City of Folsom

towards general benefit from the maintenance, and operation of the local storm drainage

systems are conservatively estimated to be 1%,

The City of Folsom owns and maintains local public streets along the border of the

Assessment District improvements. These public streets proved access to the

improvements for its enjoyment as well as efficient maintenance. The contribution from

the City of Folsom towards general benefit from the maintenance of local public streets is

conservatively estimated to contribute 1%,

Crvor FoLsom

LRt',toscnprruc Rruo Lteuttruc DtsTRtcrs

ENGINEER'S RepORr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 102

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 26

The lmprovements were constructed by the original owner/develope(s) as a condition of

development. The value of the construction of the improvements can be quantified and

monetized as an annuity, Since this construction was performed and paid by non-

assessment funds, this "annuity" can be used to offuet general benefit costs, and is

conservatively estimated to contribute 25%,

Therefore, the total General Benefit that is conservatively quantified at 1.5% is more than

offset by the total non-assessment contribution towards general benefit ol280/0.

Mernoo oF ASSESSMENT

The second step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit

for each property, This process involves determining the relative benefit received by each

property in relation to a single family home, or, in other words, on the basis of Single

Family Equivalents (SFE), This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute

assessments in proportion to estimated special benefit and is generally recognized as

providing the basis for a fair and appropriate distribution of assessments, For the

purposes of this Engineer's Report, all properties are designated a SFE value, which is

each property's relative benefit in relation to a single family home on one parcel. ln this

case, the "benchmark" property is the single family detached dwelling which is one Single

Family Equivalent or one SFE,

AssessmelT APPORTIONMENT

The improved properties within the Districts consist of primarily of single family, multi-

family, commercial and non-assessed parcels, with the vast majority being single family.

Since all single family residential parcels in the Districts are deemed to have good

proximity to the improvements, such single family properties receive similar benefit from

the proposed improvements and are assigned 1,0 SFE units, The benefits for other types

of properties are further defined as follows.

Genenn- Cnse

Many of the City of Folsom Districts contain only single famifi residences and non-

assessed properties such as parks and green spaces, These districts are:

Blue Ravine Oaks

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2

Cobble Ridge

Cobble Hills Ridge ll/Reflections ll

Hannaford Cross

Lake Natoma Shores

Los Cerros

Natoma Station - (Union Square Annexation)

Natoma Valley
Siena Estates

165 residential lots

165 residential lots

98 residential lots

389 residential lots

103 residentiallots
1 13 residential lots

337 residential lots

116 residential lots

72 residential lots

25 residential lots

Crv or FoLsoM

LlttoscnprruG Rto LteHrtruc Dtsrnrcrs
ENGINEER'S RepORr, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 103

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee27

Silverbrook

Steeplechase

The Residences at American River Canyon

The Residences at ARC ll Annexation

Willow Creek East

Willow Springs
Total

122 residentiallots
154 residentiallots
17 residential lots

10 residential lots

747 residential lots

517 residential lots

3,1 50

These Districts are assessed pcr Assessment Table 1, next page

Assessmru TmLe I

Description SFEs

Sinqle Family Parcel 1.00

Non Assessed (e,9, open space, park land etc.) 0,00

Note: ln 2006-07, a general case SFE rate was established for condominiums in diskicts in which the

original Enginee/s Report did not anticipate condominium development. This rate is 0.67 SFEs.

Amenrcen Rven CnwoN NoRTH

There are 410.124 acres in American River Canyon North. There are 1006 residential lots

and each one is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE.) The 2,00 acres of cunently undeveloped

property is assigned 2.63 SFEs per acre from a rate determined at the time of formation of
this district:

American River Canyon North properties are assessed per Assessment Table 2, below, as

per the original formation documents:

AssessueHr Tnele 2

Description SFEs

Sinqle FamiM Parcel 1.00

Undeveloped Property, per acre 2.63

Non Assessed (e,q. open space, park land etc,) 0.00

Amenrcm Rvencnwot Nonrx No.2

There are 130,805 acres in American RiverCanyon North No,2, American RiverCanyon

No. 2 lies completely within American River Canyon North, There are 161 residential lots

and each one is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE).

American River Canyon North No. 2 properties are assessed per Assessment Table 3,

below, as per the original formation documents:

Assessmerr Tnsle 3

Description SFEs

Sinqle Familv Parcel 1.0000

Crvor FoLsoM

LANDScApTNG Aruo LteHrrrue Dsrntcrs
Er.lcrruEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 104

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Peee 28

Undeveloped Residential Property, per lot 0.3273

Non Assessed (e.9. open space, park land etc,) 0.0000

Amerucm RvenCmvoN NoRTH No3

There are 410.124 acres in American River Canyon North. There are 1006 residential lots,

Each assessable parcel in the Assessment District receives a special and direct benefit

from the improvements in the Assessment District. Since the Assessment District is

comprised of residential single family improved properties and all properties have good

proximity to the improvements, all assessable parcels within the Assessment Dlstrlct are

estimated to benefit equally from the improvements associated with the Assessment

District, and the costs associated with the improvements are apportioned equally to all

parcels on the basis of current or proposed dwelling units, Each parcel is assigned SFE

units relative to the number of current or proposed dwelling units on the parcel,

The procedure used to arrive at each parcel's annual levy amount is

BeutCe ro Lew / Torru SFE Beterr Uws n Dlsrntcr = Assrssmenr Amoulr Pen

Benerr Urr

There are three Zones of Benefit, ln Zone A each parcel is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE),

in Zone B, each parcel is assigned 0.83 benefit unit (SFE) and Zone C each parcel is

assigned 0.50 benefit unit (SFE,) Properties in Zone B and Zone C receive lower benefit

units because they currently pay for common open space areas within their zone, ln 2007,

when the American River Canyon North District No. 3 was formed, an analysis of the

associated landscaping improvements was performed to determine the relative benefit to

each zone from this new assessment, lt was estimated that Zone B receives 17o/o of lhe

special benefit, and Zone C receives 50% of the special benefit, Therefore, the SFE units

for Zone B and Zone C have been adjusted accordingly.

American River Canyon North properties are assessed per Assessment Table 4, below:

Assessurrr TaaLe 4

Description SFEs

Zone A - Oriqinal ARCN Area 1.0000

Zone B - Canyon Falls Village Area 0.8300

ZoneC-ARCNNo.2Area 0,5000

Bnomstole

According to the Broadstone Landscaping and Lighting "Method of Spread," there are

895,301 assessable acres in Broadstone. Of these, 416.1455 acres are divided into 1,682

single fami[ residential lots (4,2 lots per acre average) and 479,156 acres are divided into

multi-family and commercial lots, The multi-family parcels are APN 0721070002 through

APN 0721070100 are known as Bentley Square West (99 units); and APN 0721610001

through APN 072161053 are known as Bentley Square East (53 units). fln addition to

Crv or FoLsoM

LANDScApTNG AHo LlcHnruc DtsTRtcrs

ErlcrruerR's Reponr, FY 2021-22

d
SClConsultingGroup

Page 105

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnoe 29

these properties listed in the "Method of Spread," other multi-family complexes are also

assessed, including Vessona, Sherwood, Haildon,lAlthough these projects were designed

as single family small lot divisions, the density is consistent with the multi-family land use

designation, These projects are consistent with both the Multi-Family Low Density General

Plan Land Use Designation (MLD) and the MultLFamily zoning (R-M-PD) of the project

site. There are 1530 single family residential lots and each one is assigned 1 SFEs.

There are 312.555 developed, non-single family acres and each is assigned 2.1 SFEs per

acre fihis is the rate applied to commercial properties, as implicitly indicated in the Method

of Spreadl. (4.2 units 
- 0.5), Unrecorded single fami[ residcntial lots are assigned .65

SFEs,

There are 134,387undeveloped, non-single family residential acres and each one with be

assigned 0,704 SFEs per acre. (4.2 units *,0,5 * 0,335), There are 152 lots with Bentley

Square East and West and each is assigned .0962 SFEs per lot.

Broadstone properties are assessed per Assessment Table 4, below, as per the original

formation documents:

AssrssmEm TlaLe 4

Description SFEs

Sinqle Family Parcel 1,0000

Multi-Family Parcels, per unit 0,0962

Develooed Non-Sinqle Family, per acre 2.1000

Undeveloped Non-Sinqle Family, per acre 0,7040

Non Assessed (e,g.open space, park land etc,) 0.0000

Bnonosrore No.3

There are 559.36 acres in Broadstone No. 3. Of these, 325 acres are single family

residential lots (2,034 lots per acre average)and 11.48 acres are divided into multi-family

residential and 26,93 acres are non-assessed for use as parks, open space, etc, There

are 382 single fami[ residential lots and each one is assigned 1 SFE. There are 28,09

developed, non-single family residential acres and each one is assigned 2,034 SFEs per

acre. There are 283 undeveloped, single family lots and each one is assigned 0,326

SFEs. There are 171,71 undeveloped, non-single family residential acres and each one is

assigned 0,326 x 2.034 SFEs,

Broadstone No,3 properties are assessed per Assessment Table 5, below, as per the

original formation documents:

AssessueHt Tlele 5

Description SFEs

Sinole Familv Parcel 1.0000

Undeveloped Single Family Parcel 0.3260

Developed Non-Single Family, per acre 2.0340

Undeveloped Non-Single Family, per acre 0.6630

Crvor Folsou
LRltoscRprrue Rruo Lrcnlruc Dtsrnrcrs
Eruerrueen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

4
SClConsultingGroup

Page 106

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 30

Non Assessed (e.9, open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

Bnoaosrore No.4

Residential

Certain residential properties in the Assessment District that contain a single residential

dwelling unit are assigned one Single Family Equivalent or 1.0 SFE, Detached or attached

houses, zero-lot line houses and town homes are included in this category of single famif
residential property. lf there is more than one single family detached dwelling on a parcel,

it will be charged one SFE per single family detached dwelling.

Properties with more than one residential unit (other than parcels with more than one

detached single family dwelling as described above) are designated as multi-family

residential properties, These properties benefit from the lmprovements in proportion to the

number of dwelling units that occupy each property, the average number of people who

reside in multi-family residential units versus the average number of people who reside in a

single family home and the relative size of each type of residential dwelling unit, The

population density factors for the area in Sacramento County encompassing the

Assessment District, as depicted in the following table, provide the basis for determining

the SFE factors for residential properties. Using the total population in a certain property

type in the area from the 2010 Census and dividing it by the total number of such

households, finds that approximately 2.91 persons occupy each single family residence,

whereas an average of 2.12 persons occupy each condominium, The ratio of 2.91 people

on average for a single fami[ residence and 2,12 people per dwelling unit in a

condominium unit results in a population density equivalent of 0.73 for condominiums,

Next, the relative building areas are factored into the analysis because special benefits are

related to the average size of a property, in addition to average population densities. For a

condominium, this calculation results in an SFE factor of 0.40 per dwelling unit. A similar

calculation is used for the SFE Rates for other residential property types.

Commercial

SFE values for commercial and industrial land uses are based on the equivalence of

special benefit on a land area basis between single family residential property and the

average commercial/industrial property. The SFE values for various commercial and

industrial land uses are further defined by using average employee densities because the

special benefit factors described previously can be measured by the average number of
people who work at commercial/industrial properties.

ln order to determine employee density factors, the findings from the San Diego

Association of Governments Traffic Generators Study (the "SANDAG Study") are used

because these findings were approved by the State Legislature as being a good

representation of the average number of employees per acre of land area for commercial

and industrial properties. As determined by the SANDAG Study, the average number of

employees per acre for commercial and industrial property is 24,

Crv or Folsolrr
LRruoscnp|He Rruo LGHITE DISTRICTS

EruerruEen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 107

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 31

ln comparison, the average number of people residing in a single family home in the area

is 2,91. Since the average lot size for a single family home in the Assessment District is

approximately 0,20 acres, the average number of residents per acre of residential property

is 14.55,

The employee density per acre is generally 1,65 times the population density of single

family residential property per acre (24 employees per acre / 14,55 residents per acre),

Therefore, the average employee density can be used as the basis for allocating benefit to

commercial or industrial property since a commercial/industrial property with 4,8

employees receives generally similar special benefit to a residential property with 1

resident. This factor of equivalence of benefit between 1 resident to 4,8 employees is the

basis for allocating commercial/industrial benefit. Table 2 below shows the average

employees per acre of land area or portion thereof for commercial and industrial properties

and lists the relative SFE factors per quarter acre for properties in each land use category.

Commercial and industrial properties in excess of 5 acres generally involve uses that are

more land intensive relative to building areas and number of employees (lower coverage

ratios), As a result, the benefit factors for commercial and industrial property land area in

excess of 5 acres is determined to be the SFE rate per quarter acre for the first 5 acres

and the relevant SFE rate per each additional acre over 5 acres.

lnstitutional properties that are used for residential, commercial or industrial purposes are

also assessed at the appropriate residential, commercial or industrial rate,

Vacant
The benefit to vacant properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding

benefits for similar type developed properties; however, at a lower rate due to the lack of
improvements on the property, A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land

is the average value of land in relation to lmprovements for developed property. The SFE

factor for vacanVundeveloped parcels is 0,25 per parcel,

The benefit to undeveloped properties is determined to be proportional to the

conesponding benefits for similar type developed properties, but at a lower rate due to the

lack of improvements on the property. A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying

land is the average value of land in relation to lmprovements for developed property. An

analysis of the assessed valuation data from the County of Sacramento found that

approximately 25o/o of the assessed value of improved properties is classified as the land

value. lt is reasonable to assume, therefore, that approximately 250/o of the benefits are

related to the underlying land and75o/o are related to the improvements and the day-to-day

use of the property, Using this ratio, the SFE factor for vacanVundeveloped parcels is 0,25

per parcel.

Other Properties

Cmor Fosou
LANDscAptNc AND LTGHTtNc DtsrRtcrs
Er,rcrrureR's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 108

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 32

Article XlllD stipulates that publicly owned properties must be assessed unless there is

clear and convincing evidence that those properties receive no special benefit from the

assessment,

All properties that are specially benefited are assessed, Other publicly owned property

that is used for purposes similar to private residential, commercial, industrial or institutional

uses is benefited and assessed at the same rate as such privately owned property.

Miscellaneous, public right-of-way paroels, well, reservoir or other water rights parcels,

limited access open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels typically

do not generate employees, residents, customers or guests. Moreover, many of these

parcels have limited economic value and, therefore, do not benefit from specific

enhancement of property value, Such parcels are, therefore, not specially benefited and

are not assessed.

ln 2015, when the Broadstone No. 4 was formed, an analysis was performed of the

associated lighting and landscaping improvements to determine the relative benefit to each

zone from this new assessment. As a result, four Zones of Benefit were created within

Broadstone No, 4, Parcels in Zone B are determined to receive 95,25o/o of the level of

special benefit of those within Zone A, parcels in Zone C are determined to receive

93,87% of the level of special benefit of those within Zone A, and parcels in Zone D are

determined to receive 92.23o/o of the level of special benefit of those within Zone A.

Broadstone No. 4 properties are assessed per Assessment Table 4, below

Assessuert Tlele 4

Description SFEs

Sinqle Family Parcel 1.00

Multi-Family Parcels, per unit (2 to 4 units) 0.27

Multi-Family Parcels, per unit (5+ units) 0.22

Condo 0,40

Mobile Home (seoarate lot) 0,20

Commercial, shopping center 0.50

Office 1.42

Vacant 0.25

Bnrccs Rnrcr

There are 642 residential lots and each one is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE), Undeveloped

residentialparcelsAPN:071-1190-007,008,010,011 and 012are assessed based on 2.2

SFEs per acre.

Briggs Ranch properties are assessed per Assessment Table 6, below, as per the original

formation documents:

Cmor FoLsoM

LANDScAptNG Al'ro LtcHttrue Dtsrntcrs
EncrrurER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

4
SQlConsultingGroup

Page 109

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 33

Assessmem Tlele 6

Descriotion SFEs

Sinqle Family Parcel 1.0000

Undeveloped Single Family, per acre 2.2000

Non Assessed (e,9, open space, park land etc.) 0,0000

Fot-soltr Hncnrs

There are 288 residential lots and each one is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE.) APN 071-

1050-050 is assessed 4.1 SFEs per acre,

Folsom Heights properties are assessed per Assessment Table 7, below, as per the

original formation documents:

Assessugm Taele 7

Description SFEs

Sinqle Family Parcel 1.0000

Undeveloped Sinqle Family, per acre 4.1000

Multi Family, oer unit 0,5000

Non Assessed (e.g, open space, park land etc,) 0,0000

NnromnSrmon

There are 1272 single family residential lots and each one is assigned 1 SFEs. There are

94,99 acres of Commercial and each one is assigned ,6299 SFEs per acre. There are

21.03 acres of Multi Family and each one is assigned 3,2337 SFEs per acre.

Natoma Station properties are assessed per Assessment Table 8, below, as per the

original formation documents:

Assessmrlr TneLe 8

Description SFEs

Sinqle Family Parcel 1.0000

Commercial outside of Lot X, per acre 0.6299

Commercial inside of Lot X, per acre 4.2487

Multi Familv. per acre 3.2337

Non Assessed (e,9. open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

Pnospecr Rroce

Residential

Certain residential properties in the Assessment District that contain a single residential

dwelling unit are assigned one Single Family Equivalent or 1.0 SFE. Detached or attached

houses, zero-lot line houses and town homes are included in this category of single family

residential property, lf there is more than one single family detached dwelling on a parcel,

it will be charged one SFE per single family detached dwelling.

Cnvor Folsom
LRttoscnprHo Rtto LrcHrtruc DtsrRtcTs

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2021-22

-

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 110

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 34

Properties with more than one residential unit (other than parcels with more than one

detached single family dwelling as described above) are designated as multi-family

residential properties. These properties benefit from the lmprovements in proportion to the

number of dwelling units that occupy each property, the average number of people who

reside in multi-family residential units versus the average number of people who reside in a

single family home and the relative size of each type of residential dwelling unit. The

population density factors for the area in Sacramento County encompassing the

Assessment District, as depicted in the following table, provide the basis for determining

the $FE factors for residential propertics. Using thc total population in a certain property

type in the area from the 2010 Census and dividing it by the total number of such

households, finds that approximately 2.91 persons occupy each single family residence,

whereas an average o|r2.12 persons occupy each condominium. The ratio of 2,91 people

on average for a single fami[ residence and 2.12 people per dwelling unit in a
condominium unit results in a population density equivalent of 0,73 for condominiums,

Next, the relative building areas are factored into the analysis because special benefits are

related to the average size of a property, in addition to average population densities, For a

condominium, this calculation results in an SFE factor of 0,40 per dwelling unit. A similar

calculation is used for the SFE Rates for other residential property types.

The single family equivalency factor of 0,22 per dwelling unit for multifamily residential

properties of 5 or more units applies to such properties with 20 or fewer units, Properties in

excess of 20 units typically offer on-site recreational amenities and other facilities that tend

to offset some of the benefits provided by the improvements, Therefore the benefit for

properties in excess of 20 units is determined to be 0,22 SFE per unit for the first 20 units

and 0.10 SFE per each additional unit in excess of 20 dwelling units.

COMMERCIAL/I N DUSTRIAL PROPERTIES

SFE values for commercial and industrial land uses are based on the equivalence of

special benefit on a land area basis between single family residential property and the

average commercial/industrial property. The SFE values for various commercial and

industrial land uses are further defined by using average employee densities because the

special benefit factors described previously can be measured by the average number of

people who work at commercial/industrial properties.

ln order to determine employee density factors, the findings from the San Diego

Association of Governments Traffic Generators Study (the "SANDAG Study") are used

because these findings were approved by the State Legislature as being a good

representation of the average number of employees per acre of land area for commercial

and industrial properties. As determined by the SANDAG Study, the average number of

employees per acre for commercial and industrial property is 24,

ln comparison, the average number of people residing in a single family home in the area

is 2.91, Since the average lot size for a single family home in the Assessment Dishict is

approximately 0.20 acres, the average number of residents per acre of residential property

is 14.55,

Crv or Folsou
LRuoscnprruc Rruo Ltcurtruc DtsrRtcrs
EruclruEeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 111

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 35

The employee density per acre is generally 1,65 times the population density of single

family residential property per acre (24 employees per acre / 14.55 residents per acre),

Therefore, the average employee density can be used as the basis for allocating benefit to

commercial or industrial property since a commercial/industrial property with 4.8

employees receives generally similar special benefit to a residential property with 1

resident, This factor of equivalence of benefit between 1 resident to 4.8 employees is the

basis for allocating commercial/industrial benefit. Table 2 below shows the average

employees per acre of land area or portion thereof for commercial and indushial properties

and lists the relative SFE factors per quarter acre for properties in cach land use category.

Commercial and industrial properties in excess of 5 acres generally involve uses that are

more land intensive relative to building areas and number of employees (lower coverage

ratios), As a result, the benefit factors for commercial and industrial property land area in

excess of 5 acres is determined to be the SFE rate per quarter acre for the first 5 acres

and the relevant SFE rate per each additional acre over 5 acres.

lnstitutional properties that are used for residential, commercial or industrial purposes are

also assessed at the appropriate residential, commercial or industrial rate.

VACANT PROPERTIES

The benefit to vacant properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding

benefits for similar type developed properties; however, at a lower rate due to the lack of

improvements on the property, A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land

is the average value of land in relation to lmprovements for developed property. The SFE

factor for vacanUundeveloped parcels is 0.25 per parcel.

The benefit to undeveloped properties is determined to be proportional to the

corresponding benefits for similar type developed properties, but at a lower rate due to the

lack of improvements on the property, A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying

land is the average value of land in relation to lmprovements for developed property, An

analysis of the assessed valuation data from the County of Sacramento found that

approximately 25o/o of the assessed value of improved properties is classified as the land

value. lt is reasonable to assume, therefore, that approximalely 250/o of the benefits are

related to the underlying land and75o/o are related to the improvements and the day-to-day

use of the property, Using this ratio, the SFE factor for vacanUundeveloped parcels is 0.25

per parcel,

OTHER PROPERTIES

Article XlllD stipulates that publicly owned properties must be assessed unless there is

clear and convincing evidence that those properties receive no special benefit from the

assessment,

Cnvor Folsom
LRt'toscRprr.rG RHo Ltcurtrue DsrRtcrs
Er,rcrNEER's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

d
SClConsultingcroup

Page 112

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 36

All properties that are specially benefited are assessed, Other publicly owned property

that is used for purposes similar to private residential, commercial, industrial or institutional

uses is benefited and assessed at the same rate as such privately owned property.

Miscellaneous, public right-of-way parcels, well, reservoir or other water rights parcels,

limited access open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels typically

do not generate employees, residents, customers or guests, Moreover, many of these

parcels have limited economic value and, therefore, do not benefit from specific

enhancement of property value, Such parcels are, therefore, not spccially bcnefited and

are not assessed.

Pnnrue Olrs Rmcr

There are 856 residential lots and each one is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE), There is one

multi-family parcel and it is being assessed 57 SFEs. There is one proposed school site

and it is being assessed 5,62 SFEs, or the cost of maintaining its' frontage,

Prairie Oaks Ranch properties are assessed per Assessment Table 9, below, as per the

original formation documents:

AssessueHr Teele 9

Description SFEs

Sinole Familv Parcel 1.0000

Proposed School Site, per parcel 5.6300

Multi Family, per unit 1,0000

Non Assessed (e,9. open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

Wrllow Cneer Esrares Emr No.2

Zones of Benefit

As part of the engineering work for this assessment, an analysis was conducted on the

relationship (including proximity, level of service, etc,), between properties and the primary

improvements located throughout the Assessment District. Parcels in Zone A (on Ganett

Drive, Ferrera Drive and Whitmer Drive) receive direct special benefit from the proximate

landscaping and trees adjacent to the properties as well as less proximate streetlighting.

Parcels in Zone B receive direct special benefit from the proximate streetlighting as well as

landscaping particularly along the street entrances into the neighborhood. Zone C receive

direct special benefit from the proximate streetlighting but lees benefit from the

landscaping because they are less proximate to the landscaped areas.

Thus, three zones (A, B, and C) were created as shown on the assessment diagram.

Parcels in Zone A are determined to receive same level of the level of special benefit of

those within Zone B and parcels in Zone C are determined to receive 92.080/o of the level

of special benefit of those within Zone A and Zone B,

The SVIA decision indicates:

Crvor FoLsoM

LRt'loscRpruc eruo LteHlrue Dtsrnlcts
ETcTNEER's REpoRr, FY 2021-22

d
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 113

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 37

ln a well-drawn district - limited to only parcels receiving specialbenefts

from the improvement - every parcelwithin that district receives a shared

special benefit. Under secfrbn 2, subdivision (i), these benefits can be

construed as being general benefits since they are not "particular and

distinct" and are not uover and above' the benefits received by other
propefties "located in the district.'

We do not believe that the voters intended to invalidafe an assessment

district that is narrowly drawn to include only propefties directly benefrting

from an improvement. lndeed, the ballot materials reflect otherwise. Thus,

lf an assessment district is narrowly drawn, the fact that a benefit is
confened throughout the district does nof make it general rather than

special. ln that circumstance, the characterization of a benefit may depend

on whether the parcel receives a direct advantage from the improvement

(e.9., proximity to park) or receives an indirect, derivative advantage

resulting from the overall public benefits of the improvement (e.9., general

enhancement of the drcfricf's property values).

ln the Assessment District, the advantage that each parcel receives from the

lmprovements is direct, and the boundaries are narrowly drawn to include only parcels that

benefit from the assessment. Therefore, the even spread of assessment throughout each

nanowly drawn Zone of Benefit is indeed consistent with the SVIA decision and satisfies

the "direct relationship to the "locality of the improvement" standard.

Residential Properties

AssessuemTaeLe 11

Tunc af Pacidcnrbl Pranartv
Pop. Densly
Fnrrivahnt

SqFt
Faclor

Proposed
Rae

Single Fa nily Residential

Condominium

Duphx Tripler Fourplex

Muhi-Fanily Residential (5+ Units)

Mobile Home on Separate Lot

1.00

0.73

0.64

064
0.45

100
0.55

0.42

0.34

0.45

1.00

0.40

0.2r
a.22

0.20

Commercial/l nd ustrial Properties

Crvor FoLsoM

LRttoscRprruG Rruo LrGHttrue DtsrRtcrs
ENGTNEER's REPoRr, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 114

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Avqage
Emptoy.B
hr Acn I

SFE Ul'I09
Per

Quanq Aqc 2

SFE Un ts
per

Acre A{ter 5
T W e of 6 m merci allln d u$dal
Lutd U&

Co.nnFrcbl
Officc
ShopCng Ccrtcr
Oftco
SCf Slo.s6 c Prkim Ld

24
68
24
24

1

0.500
1.420
0.500
0.500
0.021

0.500
1.420
0.500
0.500

0.10
0.05

0.004
0.002

Cerndcrlcr
Agrlcdturc

PneE 38

AssessmerrTnaLr 12

Vacant Properties

The benefit to vacant properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding

benefits for similar type developed properties; however, at a lower rate due to the lack of

improvements on the property. A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land

is the average value of land in relation to lmprovements for developed property. The SFE

factor for vacant/undeveloped parcels is 0,25 per parcel,

The benefit to undeveloped properties is determined to be proportional to the

corresponding benefits for similar type developed properties, but at a lower rate due to the

lack of improvements on the property, A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying

land is the average value of land in relation to lmprovements for developed property, An

analysis of the assessed valuation data from the County of Sacramento found that

approximately 25o/o of the assessed value of improved properties is classified as the land

value, lt is reasonable to assume, therefore, that approximately 25o/o of the benefits are

related to the underlying land and750/o are related to the improvements and the day-to-day

use of the property, Using this ratio, the SFE factor for vacanVundeveloped parcels is 0.25

per parcel,

Other Properties

Article XlllD stipulates that publicly owned properties must be assessed unless there is

clear and convincing evidence that those properties receive no special benefit from the

assessment.

All properties that are specially benefited are assessed, Other publicly owned propefi

that is used for purposes similar to private residential, commercial, industrial or institutional

uses is benefited and assessed at the same rate as such privately owned property.

Miscellaneous, public right-of-way parcels, well, reservoir or other water rights parcels,

limited access open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels typically

do not generate employees, residents, customers or guests. Moreover, many of these

parcels have limited economic value and, therefore, do not benefit from specific

Crvor Folsorrr
LANDSCAPING AIIIo LIGHTIruG DISTRICTS

Er,rcrrueen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

4
SClConsultingGroup

Page 115

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnoe 39

enhancement of property value, Such parcels are, therefore, not specially benefited and

are not assessed,

Wur-ow Cneer Esmres Sourx

There are 1 1 02 residential lots in Village 1 , 2, 3 (lots 41-93 and 1 55'1 65), 4-7 and 9A and

each one is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE,) There are 243 residential lots in Village 8 and

9b and each one is assigned 1,086 benefit unit (SFE), There are 64 residential lots in

Village 3 (lots 41-93 and 155-165), and each one is assigned 1.256 benefit unit (SFE),

There are 10 Lexington Business Park parcels and they are assessed at 0.618 SFEs per

parcel. There are 3 Lexington Square parcels and they are assessed at2.4710 SFEs per

parcel,

Willow Creek Estates South properties are assessed perAssessment Table 10, below, as

per the original formation documents:

Asssssueur Tnele 13

Ornen PnopenwTvpes

Public rightof-way parcels, well, reservoir or other water rights parcels, limited access

open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels typically do not

generate employees, residents, customers or guests. Moreover, many of these parcels

have limited economic value and, therefore, do not benefit from specific lmprovement of
property value. Such parcels are, therefore, not specially benefited and are not assessed.

Description SFEs

Sinqle Family Parcel Villag e 1 ,2,3 (lots 41-93 and 1 55-1 65),4-7 and 9A 1,0000

Sinqle Family ParcelVillage I and 9b 1.0870

Sinqle Family ParcelVillaqe 3 (lots 41-93 and 155-165) 1.2560

Business Park Parcel 0.6180

Commercial Parcel 2.4710

Non Assessed (e.g, open space, park land etc.) 0,0000

Cwor Folsou
LRtrtoscnprruc nND LtcHTtNG Dsrntcts
ENGTNeER's REPoRr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 116

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 40

Assessmenr

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom, County of Sacramento, California, pursuant to the

provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and Article XlllD of the California

Constitution (collectively "the Act"), initiated the preparation of an Engineer's Report for the

City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts;

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and

file a report presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the Districts and an assessment

of the estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels within the

Districts, to which the description of said proposed improvements therein contained;

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under said Act

and the order of the City Council of said City of Folsom, hereby make the following

assessment to cover the portion of the estimated cost of said improvements, and the costs

and expenses incidental thereto to be paid by the Districts.

The amount to be paid for said improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be

paid by the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts for the fiscal year 2021-22is
generally as follows:

Summary Cost Estimates

lmprovement Costs

lncidentalCosts

Other Costs

$2,276,261,17

$354,580.15

$486,050,00

Total lmprovement Costs $3.116,891.32

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part hereof

showing the exterior boundaries of said City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts.

The distinctive number of each parcel or lot of land in the said City of Folsom Landscaping

and Lighting Districts is its Assessor Parcel Number appearing on the Assessment Roll.

And I do hereby assess and apportion said net amount of the cost and expenses of said

improvements, including the costs and expenses incident thereto, upon the parcels and

lots of land within said City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts, in accordance

with the special benefits to be received by each parcel or lot, from the improvements, and

more particularly set forth in the Cost Estimate and Method of Assessment hereto attached

and by reference made a part hereof.

The assessments are made upon the parcels or lots of land within the City of Folsom

Landscaping and Lighting Districts in proportion to the special benefits to be received by

the parcels or lots of land, from said improvements.

Crv or FoLsoM

LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING D6TNICTS

Erucrrurrn's Reponr, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 117

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 41

The Sierra Estates, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at

American Canyon ll Annexation to the Residences at American River Canyon, Cobble

Ridge, Broadstone 3, and Natoma Valley, Willow Creek Estates East No, 2, Prospect

Ridge are subject to an annual adjustment tied to the Consumer Price lndex for the San

Francisco Area, with a maximum annual adjustment not to exceed 4% and American River

Canyon North 3, Blue Ravine No. 2 and Folsom Heights No. 2 are subject a maximum

annual adjustment not to exceed 3%,

Any change in the CPI in excess of the maximum annual increase shall be cumulatively

reserved as the "Unused CPl" and shall be used to increase the maximum authorized

assessment rate in years in which the CPI is less than 40/o for Sierra Estates, The

Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American Canyon ll

Annexation to the Residences at American River Canyon, Cobble Ridge, Broadstone 3,

and Natoma Valley, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Prospect Ridge; and is less than 3%

forAmerican River Canyon North 3, Blue Ravine No, 2 and Folsom Heights No' 2'

The proposed assessments for the Districts that are eligible for the CPI increase will be

assessed at the rate used in fiscal year 2020-2021 but are less than the maximum

authorized rates, Broadstone No.4 and Willow Creek East Estates No. 2 will be assessed

at their new lower rate starting this year, 2021-22.

District

Maximum

Authorized Rate

Proposed

Rale21-22

American River Canyon North No. 3 $286.31 $269,86

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 $223.94 $213.26

Broadstone 3 $37.33 $28.07

Broadstone No. 4-Zone A $38.81 $38.81

Broadstone No. 4-Zone B $36,96 $36.96

Broadstone No. 4-Zone C $36,42 $36.42

Broadstone No, 4-Zone D $35.74 $35.74

Cobble Ridse $218.97 $139.64

Folsom Heights No.2 $221.07 $208.38

Natoma Valley $935.15 $856.37

Prospect Ridge $1 ,173.86 $1 ,1 73.86

The Residences $694.83 $536.67

The Residences ll $1,M2.24 $1,169.97

Siena Estates $397.13 $363.68

Willow Creek East Eastates No 2-Zone A&B $99.53 $99.53

Willow Creek East Eastates No 2-Zone C $91.49 $91.49

Silverbrook is subject to an annual assessment for $132,32. However, there will be a credit

in 2021-22 due to sufficiency of fund balance for cunent maintenance needs.

Cwor FoLsoM

LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTNICTS

Erucrnren's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

d
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 118

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Paet42

0n April 9, 2013 by Resolution No. 9137, the Fieldstone Meadows Landscaping and

Lighting District was dissolved. The City will no longer be responsible for maintain the

improvements nor providing services within the Fieldstone Meadows Landscaping and

Lighting District,

Union Square a benefit zone of Natoma Station will be maintained and serviced by their

Home Owner's Association and has not been levied since fiscal year 2009-10,

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parccl

number as shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of Sacramento for the fiscal year

2021-22. For a more particular description of said property, reference is hereby made to

the deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder of said

County,

I hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the

Assessment Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2021-22 for each parcel

or lot of land within the said City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts.

Dated: June 2021

I
Engi of Work

Joh Bliss, License No. C52091

c 52091
**

4
CA

Crvop FoLsoM

LANDScAptNG Aruo LGurtruc DtsrRtcrs
Er,rcrruerR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 119

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 43

Assessurrr DAGRAM

The boundaries of the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts are displayed on

the following Assessment Diagram.

The specific lines and dimensions of each lot or parcel are on file at the City

Crvor Folsom
LRttoscRplruo nND LTGHTtNG Dlsrnrcrs
ENGTNEER's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

-

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 120

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



American
River

Canyon No.3 ^A,
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CIry CLERK OF THE
CITY OF FOLSOM, COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO,
CALIFORNIA,THIS 

- 

DAY OF

_,2021.

NORTH CITY CLERK

American
River

Canyon No.2

RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK
OF THECITY OF FOLSOM, COUNTY OF SACMMENTO,
CALIFORNIq, THIS 

- 

DAY OF

_,2021.

\Mllow Creek
East Estates No.2

Zone A
Zone B
ZoneC

CITY CLERK

The
AN ASSESSMENT WAS CONFIRMED AND LEVIED
BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
ON THE LOTS, PIECES AND
PARCELS OF LAND ON THIS ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM
ON THE 

- 

DAY OF-
2021 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021.22 AND SAID
ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM AND THE ASSESSMENT
ROLL FOR SAID FISCAL YEAR WERE FILED IN THE
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY AUDITOR OF THE COUNTY
OF SACRAMENTO ON THE- DAY OF

at American
River Canyon

Lake

2021. REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID
RECORDED ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR THE EXACT
AMOUNT OF EACH ASSESSMENT LEMED
AGAINST EACH PARCEL OF LAND.

Shores CITY CLERK

FILED THIS 

- 

DAY OF-,
2021, AT THE HOUR OF_.,]O'CLOCK

-. 
M. IN THE OFFICE OFTHE COUNTY

AUDITOR OF THE COUNTY OF SACMMENTO,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AT THE REQUEST OF
THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM.

@vro

Prospect Ridge
Note:
REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO THE MAPS AND DEEDS
OF RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE ASSESSOR OF THE
COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO FOR A DFTAILED DESCRIPTION OF
THE UNES AND DIMENSIONS OF ANY PARCELS SHOVVN
HEREIN- THOSE MAPS SFIALL @VERN FOR ALL DETAILS
CONCERNING THE UNES AND DIMENSIONS OF SUCH PARCELS.
EACH PARECL IS IDENTIFIED IN SAID MAPS BY ITS
DISTINCTIVE ASSESSORS'S PARCEL NUMBER.

Sierra Estates

CITY OF FOLSOM
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS

ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM

SCI CoFu[ing Grcup
4745 MarEeb Blvd
Fairield. CA 94534
707-4ir)4300 Page 121

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 45

Appenox A - Buocers

The attached budgets for Fiscal Year 2021-22 are included for each of the Districts.

Clreconv Descruprprs

FuHo Bllmce CntcuuloH:
This calculation determines funds available in a district. This calculation includes the

included funds remaining after being allocated to the estimated reserve,

Esnulreo Resenves

Estimated Reserve to finance approximately 6 months of the following year: This is

approximately 45o/o of the operating and incidental costs of a Landscaping and Lighting

District to fund the operations until collected revenue is received from the County.

Sronr-Tenm Insrnlmrnrs

Funds listed here are monies collected in prior years and set aside for future proposed

improvements projected to be completed within the next five years,

Lonc-Tenm lrsmlwents
Funds listed here are monies collected in prior years and set aside for future proposed

improvements projected to be completed within five to thirty years.

lmpnovemerr Cosrs

GeneRru Mnrrrmlcr Cosrs

Scheduled: monthly landscape maintenance and service

Unscheduled: unscheduled but potential costs for repairs (i,e, broken sprinklers

and inigation systems), replacements (i.e, remove and replace dead tree or

irrigation controller), and other services (i.e. repair fence post or treat for a specific

pest) not included in monthly maintenance and service costs

Streetlights: repair and replace bulbs and ballasts in streetlights

Senvce Cosrs
. Electrical: electric costs for streetlight maintenance and power to irigation

controllers
. Water: water costs to irrigate landscaping

CuRnerur Yem lmpnovEMENT Pnolecrs

Funded improvements planned to occur in the upcoming fiscal year

IttctoemruCosrs
. Professional Services: consultant cost for Enginee/s Report and lmprovement

Plan

Crv or FoLsoi,
Leruoscnprruc Rruo LrcHlruc Dtsrntcts
ENGINEER'S REpOnr, FY 2021.22

4
SClConsultingGroup

Page 122

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pncr 46

Contract Services: other contracts or professional services such as backflow

testing (yearly tests), vector control, graffiti removal, and streetlight pole

replacement

Publications/Mailings/Communications: yearly notices in public hearings, mailings

to Advisory Committee Members, and telephone expenses

Staff: Landscaping and Lighting District Manager and/or inspector, clerical support,

and/or other city staff.

Overhead: General overhead (Landscaping and Lighting Districts' share of general

overhead categories such as City Clerk, City Attorncy, City Manager, eto,) and

Department overhead (Landscaping and Lighting Districts' share of department

overhead categories such as City Aftorney, City Clerk and Finance Dept. Costs),

County Auditor Fee: Per Parcel Fee charged by County to put levy on tax bills

Torru lmpRoveuenr Cosrs

This is the total of all improvement costs budgeted for the upcoming year. This cost

includes current improvements that are funded by fund balance monies. Fund balance

monies are monies that have been collected in prior years in anticipation of being used for

specific improvements and/or intended for replacement or improvement of capital items

within a district.

AssessuErr ro PnopeRrv (Cunnelr)

This calculation takes the number of single-family equivalent benefit units and multiplies it

by the amount that each property within a district is will be assessed for the upcoming

year. This is the total assessment amount that will be generated by the properties within

the District.

Dsrnrcr Bllnlcr
The purpose of this calculation is to describe all costs expected to occur in the upcoming

year, any installments being collected as part of the upcoming yea/s assessment and

contributions from other sources, The outcome of the calculation is the total assessment

for the district. A surplus would be applied and/or credited to the upcoming year's

assessment. lf there are insufficient funds in the fund balance to cover the 6-month

reserve, or the current and/or proposed improvements, then a deficit would exist, A deficit

generally indicates that an increase in assessment may be necessary (requiring voter

approval with a simple majority), however there may be a one-time reason for the deficit

and an increase may not be necessary. Deficit situations are reviewed and analyzed on a

case-by-case basis,

Ner Assessmenr Cr-cuunot
This calculation determines the net assessment after the surplus or deficit is factored into

the calculation. lf a deficit exists, the net assessment will indicate that the assessment for

the district might be too low, lf a surplus exists, the net assessment will indicate that the

assessment for the district might be too high, Any increased adjustments require voter

approval (simple majority),

I

I

t

I

Crv or Folson
LeruoscRprrue Rruo Lteurtruo DtsrRtcrs
EruerrueeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 123

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Peee47

Ar-loclreo Ner AssEssnENT To Pnopenw

This calculation takes the net assessment for the district that was calculated above (i,e.

factoring in a surplus or deficit) and divides it by the number of single-family equivalent

benefit units. The outcome of the calculation is the total allocated net assessment per

single-family equivalent benefit unit. This calculation is generally the same as the allocated

assessment however if there is a deficit it will indicate the revised amount that would be

required to eliminate the deficit, Conversely if there is a surplus the calculation would

show the amount that the assessment could be reduced by and still cover the anticipated

costs for current and future years,

Compnnrsolr oF NET AssEssmem mo ASSESSMENT

Shows a comparison of the net assessment and the current assessment and indicates a

per parcel deficit or surplus.

Crv or Folsorrr

LmoscRpttto Rtto Lteutlruc DlsTRtcTs

ENGTNEER's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 124

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 48

gcling Fmd Btut@ (N ol M 2021)

EdiDE{sd Rffi lo iimm wox. frtg 6 Mnhs ol 21-22

$106,204.19
($46,981 .82)

Oty of Fohom
Amrlcrn Rivor llorlh Llndlcrplng rnd Llghung Dlttdct

Fund 253

2021-22

A.drm.nl b Pro*tv lcumill

A$gndt per Singl€ FmIy Equivddt

Singlo Fdily Equivdont Bomlit Units

ToLlAldm.nt

$102.94

1,M2

sloq2il.66

Shod-Tm lnddmnt Pld (p@iNCy @l6l€d)
LqeTm lnddlmnt Pls (prflidrdy 6llod€d)

shod-Tm lNlalmt Pls (6il*t€d thi6 yw)
LdFIm lnda[Mt Pls (@[ectod hi8}l )

ToLl ldt llmnt cod

$0.m
911,695.m

$0.m
s.m

1r4695.00

Dl.ldctE.hno
Totd fuffit to prop€,ty

Totd lmFoFMtCort!
Subtold

Totd Avdl$o Fund8

Totd Fmds
Totd lNlalmnl Cdets

Conbbutons lrom olhd 0@
N6lBde@

$105,204.68
($149,248.54)

($44,043.86)' wznst
$11178.51

($t4,695.00)

$om
$403.51

Dl.bicl Bllm@ (.urpl[ lr +; d.frclt h 0) 963.5t

l|l.1 Aturftnt Cddldon
Asdnont li0qm1.66

(11t3.5'l)

11u,f21.17
Sunls q D€iicit (srylls is &bb&t d: d6ficit i6 add)
N6lAsffil

Allcdd il.t turamdt !o PrcBda
N€tAsmnt
Singlo Fmily Equivdont Berefit Unils

Alloehd N.t AssMt lo Prcporty

41u,f21.17
102.

1,l02.17

nommant C6t

G.mrd lfilntanrm cdttt. so'"artd
?. unsaredulod'
L stt*uaru'
?. tnigaio-n

S.nl6 Cdtr
's. Et*na'
6. wat*'

Cumnt Yur lmDE6frant Prol6't!
tllt,.l"fdl&bfi ll"d'/"*" prrp," g fi ltor repl*mnt

&htolal of ftffi 7

S{brobl

[dfuXlcag
3. Prolsli@d Swis (Engi@/s Ropoll 8nd lP)

's. cmlrmt Seruiru 1d olhs 6nfds ild wi6)'

$65,0m.m

$6tpm!0

s.00
S.m

$5,500.m

$11,0m.00

830,000.m

$5,0m.m

$.m
s.m
S.m
s.m

$2,155.m

$593.54

'to.
\r.
12.
\2.

Publiefi onJMdlingsrcommniodions
Sta{f

Owhoad
cMty Auditor F@

Sub{.td

Tobl lmpmffit Cotb

ll16.50A00

a\?{E.il

It+r"?1651

CmddM d Nat A..dm.it md Arldmt
{1102.14

All6d.d As6rm.nt !o PFp.rty
P.r Prrc.l surylut (+) d D.ficlt (-)

1102.94

Sfl

Crvor Folsorrr
LRrloscRprrue RND LtcHTTNG DrsTRtcTs

ErucrHeen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 125

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 49

Auenrcnr Rvrn CnwoN NoRTH - lrsrnllueur SUMMARv

Dirtdct:

lrcd Yilr: t-22

fid Balen@ lz)21) s106.201

t0totrl!i l(

31m m0islellPmd I iE s1.200 s14.6S5 s0 $0 s0

tla.805 Il) t0 $ IO TO 3100.000lolrlt: 11.200

Cwor FoLsoM
l-ANDscAprNG Aruo Lrcnrne DrsTRrcrs

Er,rolnreR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

Page 126

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 50

gating Fund BdaM (6 ol M 2021)

Esfin€aod Rffi lo iiM6 6p!,rcx. trd 6 Nflls ol21-22
$168,618.22

($6,561.82)

Clty of Folsm
Amsricrn Rlver $nyon Norlh ih.2 L.nd$aplng rnd Llgh0ng Dlrtlct

Fund 270 - llghtr only
2021-22

lnsrErde-EorsturcrE$0

Ar$ffil p€r Sind€ Famit Equival€nt

singlo FmiV Equivalent B€ndt Units

Tot lA..sn.nt

$n.70
i60

l't2,82.00

n.llllndt Co.b lu lntt.llmnt Phn fid sumnd ndtpe.)

Shod-Tom lnrtdlmnt PIs (p@iously @l4tod)
LongFTom lnddmnt Ple (previoudy 6llstod)
Short-Tom lnetdlMt Pls (oll6tod lhis yes)
LongTom lnstdmnt Plm (@llstod hi6 y*r)
Tot lldrllMrc6b

$o.m

$187,688.m

$o'm
$16,000.00

t 03,66&00

Dldric{ Bd.nc.
TotdA$snt sl2,4s2.00
Totd lmprwffintC6ts

Subtotsl

($0,880.40)
($18,4,48.40)

' $tm.ooo.lo
$144S18.00

Totd Avdl.blo Flnd8
Totd Funds

Totd lnstdlMt Cods
contdbutons lrom ohd e@

Net Balan€

(@03,688.m)

$0.m
($5S,o7o.m)

obbiot 8.1.n6 (.{rpl8 l. +; dlclt b 0) (t5Bp?0io)

N.t A..omnt Crlqkdd
A8wdt
sudus or Dolidt (srplus iE sblretodj d€licit is added)

NotAsffint

tl2,132.00

150,070.00

'7l,5ll2.0o

moEEffil Coda

Grn.nl itlntadm Cdta
'1. sdredrled

L uns*reouteo

t. stotigtrts

S.rvl6 Corb
?. etetrice
5. waur

$0.m
92,500.m

$2,mo.m

$1,mo.m
$0.00

Cumnt Yur lmodmnl P6ltc,|
6 -Tfiffi;-

s5,m0.m

Soilolal otflm 6 $25,m0.m

$0.m
s.m
$0.m
$0.m

u86.00

s4.40

Subtot l

ncld.nlrl Cortr--T-. p.loriond s"ri@ (Enginfi/s R€pod fld lP)

b. cmt*t Seruie 1dl ots @nba.b dd eryi@)
6. puutic*mgMitings/comrunioalrons

10. stat

s0,500.00

\t.
\2.

Owftoad
county Auditor F@

Subtolrl lil'10

Tot l lmpdffint Corb F0,lat.alt

17't,502.00

$'116.69

Alloed ll.t A@m.nt !o PreBrtv
NotAffint
Single Fmit Equivalont B€relit Unit6

Allmbd N6t Awnl to Propsty

Cdildaor of N.t A$srmnt atd A.t6mdtt
All$rt d N.tAls.mnt b Preplrty

Plr P.r6l sudu. (+) or D.ficlt (-)

(1446.E0)

,n t0
($60.re)

SClGonsultingGroupCrY or Folsol,t
LANDScApTNG AND LtcHTTNG DrsrRrcrs

EruerruerR's RrpoRr, FY 2021-22

Page 127

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 51

Amenrcnl Rven CmvoN NoRTH No.2 - hsrllwem Suumanv

District: American River Canvon North #2 (lishts)

Fiscal Year: n21.n

:und Balanm (2021) $16E.61E

Short Term lnstallment Summarv
Amx.

Tohl

Pmbd Y6dlv RiffYoas Yoar I Ys2 Yd3 Ys4 Yetr5 Roailirsd

lBlalmmt Colodims fr17 rul6 20I9 mm 2Br1

fotels: 30 l{ t0 t $0 t0 30 g0

Lono Term lnstallment Summarv

Am-
Totsl

Pniad Yaslv PrhrYods Yoa 1 Yeas 2-5 Yetr&10 YmlG20 Ye*ZLgl Rffilbd
lDsblmdlt Co0mlim 2t17 2016 2019 MN aI21

Paint lioht mles $4.000 $57.587 $4,000 s4.00t $4.000 s4.000 $4.00c $60.0{x

faoorox. 250 Dolos)

Polo Roolac€ment $'12.000 $66.'10'1 $12,000 $12,00c s'12.000 s'12.000 $'12.00[ $240.00(

Totek: 3t6.000 s123.688 516,000 $16,000 3t6.000 3t6-000 3.16.000 3300.0fi

Crvor Forcom
LnruoScRpIHe nND LIGHTING DISTRICTS

Eruerrueen's Repont, FY 2021-22

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 128

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 52

sldtng Fund Belan@ (8 ol ANil 2(nI)
Esfndbd R@ryo to /ine6 apqox. frtst 6 n@tB ol21-22

$'t,01't,292.01
(sr10,8r8.77)

Clty ot Folmm

Amorien Rivsr Crnym ilorth llo. 3 Lrndrclplng lnd Llghting Dlillct
Fund 275

2021-22

Aewst psr Silglo Fmily Equivalsnt

Singlo Family Eq,ivahnt 8onefit Urille

ToldAt|amdt

0269.86

919.56

t24t t52.16

Lon0-Tm lnstakEnt Phn (prdioudy ollooted)

Shod-T6m lnstalMt Plan (@ll€cl€d lhb ywr)

Long-Tm lnstalmnt Plan (collstod lhb !Br)
Tot l ln.trllMt Cotlr

s116,000.00

$565,000.00

$12,000.00

932,000.00

t?rspooJo

Dlltlc't B.lmce
Tolaltusmnt
Tolal hpMnt Cstg

Subbhl
ToblAwlldlo Fund8

Total Fun&
Annual lnstrlmnt (@ll€.tsd this ysd
Cqbbulims Lom ots su@

Net Bahm

$248,152.46

$222,237.541

$25,&54.92

' qgoo,lzs.za

t926,328.16
(t725,000.00)

$201,328.16

oldrlct B.hne ($nlu. b +i dsfrcltlt0) 3?dl"!r!16

illi Attdmnt C.laldion
AssMt 1211,t52.46

(1101,32!.181

$18,121.0
SuDluB or Dglloit (elplus i8 $bbet€d; dglicit i8 add€d)

NotA8smnt

AlEtrd lLt AasrMt io PbFrlv
NstA!$gFnt
Single Famiy Equiwloit Bdofi Units

Ail@t€d Nsl Assmt to Propsty

116,U4.3t

160.92

mlEvffitcdb

7.

Soh€ddod

Un$h€dded
SlrEtight!
Itribslion Parts

069,775.00

t35,000.00

t0,00

$3,300.00

Servie Codt
5. egcuet
'e . water

t700.00

03,300.00

curdt Yer lnproffi t PbleaL
7. 1@andhndspoirrplt)vffils 986,000.00

Srblola, ls6poo30
Subbbl

ncldenbl Cort

-8. 

P.lodo*t s"ri* (Engim/o R€pod and lP)

3. Contract Swics (all ofEr contels and sruils)

l't 91,0t5.00

10.
1t.
12.

Pl$liElions,/tlailng!,lomnixlidg
Stafl

OstBd

$1,000.00

$3,100.00

t250.00
$14,157.00

$5,173.00

t542.54
ri3. 

CountyAuditorF€

SrbtoLl

Tobl lmtrovffit C6b

42122.s

,m,29X.s

coilrlaon of l{at Asailnt dd Arsmdl
Alloc.l€d lht A.rsMt lo P.oPcrtY

Allocd.d ArstMt to Prop.rty

Por P.r6l SuDlur (+) or lHbt (-)

(tso e4
1269.t8

t2lt.91

Crvor Folsol,t
LANDScAPING AND LIGHTING D6TNICTS

ENGTNeeR's Reponr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 129

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 53

Amenrcm RveR CmvoN NoRTH No. 3 - Insmlu'lem Sul,tmmY

District: American River Ganyon North #3

Fiscal Year: m21.22

Fund Balance (2021 $1,0'11,292

Short Term lnstallment Summary
Aootox.

Totd

PT Et Yealv fthrYm Yoar I Yedz Y€ar 3 Y8 YerS Rduhad

ln$allftont Colbd'ffi a)1E 2019 m21

$4.000 $22,000 4000 4000 400t 400( $2,000

$5,000 $2s.000 5000 5000 5000 500[ 500( $25,000

Siona@ ReDltrement 52,000 $r3,0u) 3000 3000 3000 300r 300( $60,000

$4.000 5E,000 0 0 ( 0 $20,000

Tolrl!: 515.000 {'56,000 tl: t12.000 t12,000 51i 100 112,000 ll07

Lono Term lnstallment Summaru

AogroL

Totd

Pn r* Yeelv Prh'rYeats Ye€'' Yes2-5 Yen $10 Yees 2(}3' Rsuled
lnddlnent Colhdbm zJ17 allE 201C 2lJ21

WaterfallRmk Rew $r,000 $l2,uu0 2000 2000 2000 200[ 200( $10,000

aldwin Dam Palh ReDair s5.000 $60,000 10000 10000 '1000( 10000 $50,000

fthrouohout distric

$20,m0 s163.000 3000c 5000 5000 500t $135.000

3ilcade Erimeter , landscaoe.

$10.000 $102,000 5000 5000 500( 5000 $150,000

fotalr: $'11,lxl0 t397.000 t72 000 s32,000 I32,000 1.000 t32.000 3495.000

I 
Fence will not be funded throuoh L&L District

2 Prciect Comol€ted

GrY or Folsou
LRr'toscRprruc RND LTGHTTNG DtstRtcrs
ENGTNEER's Rrponr, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 130

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 54

($16,107.53)
$1m,274.58(8olNd2A1)

nd I Mats ol21-22

Cltyol Folrcm
Blue Rayino ortr Lrndsaplng rnd Llghung Dlltrlct

Fund 250
7021-22

Affit per Singlo Fmily Eqdvdent

Sinde Fnily Equivalst B€mlii units

Tot lAl.dm.it

e18.60
165

$8,060.00

Sho.t-Tom lnddkrent Plo (ilwioudy colloclod)

Long-Tom lnstdlrent Plan (p.aioudy @ll6tod)

shdt-Tem lnddhDnl Plm (6lls1sd thisyot)
Long-Tm lnstdlmnt Plan (6ll€c'ted thjs t€a)
Tohl ln.bllmnt Cotb

$r0,0m.m
$0.m

$1,0m.00

$0.m

tilnooio

)htd.t 8.lm6
TotdAwt s6,069.m

(Q3,047.351

$13,021.65

' gel,toz.oo

$s7,188.70
($11,000.m)

sm
$86,188.70

Totd lmp@ffint Cods
Subtolal

Totd Avdlablo Funds

Totd Fund6

Told lnsldlmmt cost

Conbibulions fM othor su@
Not Eele@

Dl.blolBll.n6 (.unlut l. +;ddlclt 1.0) lls,1l&?0

AssMt F8,06e.00

surplus or Dolicit (eDls is sblretod; d€fdl is .dd€d) c6,fi8J01
($0,1r9J0)Net AsMgnt

Alloqt d il.tA86tMtb Pto6rlv
NstAswnt
shdo FmiVEqlivahnt Bsetil Unils

Al6d6d Not Asffil to Prcp€rty

(t50,1r9r0)
165

(s03.76)

ndwmntC6b

Gcrdl li{.lntailnca Corb
1 s*,"ad*
L Unsdedutea

i. stBouighte

S.rYl6 Corb

'ttt*i'tld
5. waer

cumnt Y{r lmldffi I Prola!'tr

6'l'{" nrrtt"d P'"i"d.

s.m
$.m

s1,2m.00

$4,om.m
012,sm.m

$.m

St&ddl ol ftM 6 SO0
Subtot l

mld.nt l C6b
7. Prclstond Swi@ (Engi@/s R€port ild lP)

'8. conL&iswhos(dlolherontrebmdsryi6)
'9. Publi@ijons/M.iln$/Comwic€lime

10. statt

1t. orertpad

'12. couniyAuditdF4

Subtot l

Tolrl lmpDsm.nt C6b

117,700.00

$1,mom
s,100.m

e50.m
$0.00

s00.00
1o7.35

l5la?35

lrc0a?35

Comp.rlen of lllt A$6.m!nt .nd futotmnt
Alhc.d ilat A.E.mit !o PFp.ttY
Altoc.H Atlr.Mt b Propqty
P.r P.@l Surplu. (+) or D.ftclt G)

lEt3.76

1216.8)

l5t2.s

Crv or FoLsoM

LRruosceprrue RND LGHTTNG DtsrRtcTS

ENGTNEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

d
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 131

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnoe 55

Blue Rlune Oers - hsmlmem Su lrttrlmv

Blue Ravine Oakr fihe Shorsl)Di!tdct:

Flmrl Yerr: ,mt-22

md 8ela6l2021l $16.275

st mo t{.0m s1.0m s1.mo s1.m0 $35.(xX)s1.m0 t6,000

lBluo Ravlno Rod)

t{.m0 tt.000 t35.000Iohl.: t1.000 16,000 3't.000 $.000 fl.000

Lono Tsmr ln.tdlment Summrru

IO $ TO $ ,0 l0 $fobl3: l0

Cwor FoLsoM
LRruoscRprrue RND LTGHTTNG Dsrnrcrs
ENGTNEER's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

Page 132

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 56

ffi
SClConsultingGroupCrvor Folsor'r

LANDScAptNG Atto Ltenrtrue Dtsrnrcrs
Er,rcrrueen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

s/.dlitg Fwd Balen@ (B ol M 2U1)

Edimled Rsm to itM@ appox. frEI6 mdls ol2l-22
0183,683.79
($15,714.05)

molffinlCob

cd.[l lklnt n.n6 C6ta
{ sdr"drhd
?. Unsdoduled

$12,500.00

$15,m.00
$.m

0r,300.00

\.
't.

StEllidts
ldgrlion

Sdd6 Coab
6. etetiqt
6. wals

$0,m

s.m

elrdJsrlEprse@ltEdrlb
7. LED onffibilt@ prunins $a,om.m

$apm!0&tlofalot,l6m 8

&btot l

mld.nhl Co$.
3. Pol6iond S6rui@ (Enghs/r Roport and lP)

',l0, cmlrsi Soryi(s (dl olhd onlruis ad si@)

1i16,O0.00

'1.
'tz.
1r.
1q.

Publi@tiondMailinglrcmmuni@limg
Staff

OwdE.d
c@nty Auditor F6

s.m
$0.m
s.m

F,7A.m
$460.m

S7.35

$hor.l $,320$

l$Ja3tTohllmpM.ntCdb

Aurmot b Prcplttr lcuru{l

Awrenl pq singh Fd*ly Equivdst
Singls Fmily Equivalont BdElit Unib

To{.lAsilmnt

p13.26

165

l35Jrr9

n.t llmntCotb ar-ldt llmntPhn.td Sumtuil mrloel

Shod-T€m lnddlmnl Plo (pFvi@Cy 6!4tod)
Lsg-T€m lnsldlmnt PIM (pFvirsly @ll&td)
Shori-Tm lnlldimnt Pld (@lloctod hi8 yq0
Lsg=Tm lnddlml Pld (oiletsd hie yoa)

Tot lln.bllmntcotb

$1,0m00
$64,4m.00

9.00
$s,2m.00

171,600.00

ToldAsgmnt
Totd lmpMmnt c6b

Subbtd
Told Avdlabh Funds

Totd Funds

Told lnddlMt Cst
Csuibutions lrom ohsr w@

N6t Bsls6

s5,187.90
(s3,'120.35)

{u7,92.45)
' jroz,gsg.zl

$150,0t7.a
($74,6m.m)

$75,417.2s

DHrlct Bdm6 (.urpl[ lr r; drficlt l. 0) alitlll.E

ll.ttuidmnt C.lcul.thr
AwMt $5,1o.90
suDlus q Dotioit ($ry16 ie &bbd€d; dofioit i8 8dd€d) _lttElEtr3I

(110,2193s)NotAwt

Clty ot Fol.om

(go,21e3s)

t65
(1213s{)

Fund 278

2021.22

Allcd.d ll.t tu6.m.nt to Prcxrtv
NetAssMt
Singlo Fmit Equivahnt 8€mlit Unib

All@abd Not As$mnl to Prcp6rty

CffiodM ol lLtAr6.md.td futsmnt
All6.t d tl.tA.Bm.dto Prepdy
Alloc.tld AtsrMt b Prop.tty
P.r P.6l S{rplu. (+) or D.ficlt (-)

s213.91

1213.28
g5'.a

Page 133

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 57

Blue Rnvne Oms No.2 - lusralweilT SUMMARY

Distric't: Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2

Fiscal Year: 2021.22

Filnd Balencc lr0rll s'1 83.684

Am
Tdrl

9rnLd Yarlv Prf Ye Y€fi1 \tE, Yd3 Ysa Yd5 Rdtsd
lnddndt Coldoc nfl 21XA zl19 NM 2ol1

$'1,000 $1.000 $0 s0 $0 $0 s0 s35 0,00

lBhre Rfline Roedl

Iotal!: l'1,000 t1.000 l0 t0 t0 l0 30 t3t000

I ono Tem lnclallment Summrru

Affi-
Toid

Rflild
ftdrlnst n1t 2018 n19 ,(nl

$1,200 s3 800 s1.200 st.2m $1.200 $1,200 $1,200 s85 {m

Ril€y or Fence Uoarad€

[@ RsmovaUR€Dlacomont $2,500 s7 500 s2.500 $2.500 s2.500 $2,500 $2,500 s80 {m

re Ravins Wall ReDair $5,000 $15,000 s5 000 s5.0m s5.000 s5.000 $5,m0 $130,0m

Sif,nm R.hlamm.nl s5{n $1,500 $500 $500 s5m s500 s500 34.0m

fobhr s9.200 $27,600 19,200 t9.200 ts.200 t9.200 s9.n0 3279.000

Cnv or Folson
LANDScApTNG AND LTcHTtNG DtsrRrcrs
EruerrueeR's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

ZrT
SClConsultingGroup

Page 134

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 58

Shtng Fund B*n@ (6 ol Aptil 2Ul
Esth.lodR@m lo tned apprcx. frEl6 MlhEol2l'22

($19,473.48)

(136,041.32)

mrcsmtC€b

Gddrl M.lnlrdane Coda
'i. scttdutod
?. un$h6dul€d
3. sretigt'to
?. tnigation

sorvle Cotb
5. Eb"ti*r
'6. wator

curdlYdlmEnmnt Prol4L
?. loptarureapolrcts

$44,837.00

s20,000.00

$4,200.00

92,600.00

i9,100.00

s8,000.00

90.00

subhtelolllenT $.00
$!,?3?.00Subtot l

nrld.nld C6L
?. Prol**md swics (EngiE/s R€port and lP)

3. Conbet Swios (al othd @nfrob 8nd wi6)
$1,000.00

33,100.00

$250.00

$t2,660.00

$1,269.00

s36S.4t

'9.

'io.
1t.

Publi@lions/Mailings/commuoi€tons

Slrff
Owhsd

'12. countyAudilorF6

Subtobl

Told lmpremt Cottt

lll,08t.1t

to?,10il1

Assmt p6r Single Family Equivslont

Slnolo Famly Equival€nt Emlit t,nit!

Told Attsmrt

$122.28
660.01

$0,?00J,

natallmdt Corb tts lnrtallmanlPhn and suhffi ndtwo)

Shod-Tm lnstrlMt Plan (p@iously collsted)

Long-Tm lnlbtmnt Pls (p.diously 6lleted)
Shorl-Tm lnslrllmst Plan (@lhct€d his !Er)
Long.Tm lnlbllmnt Pld (@lloobd lhir t@r)
Tohl lnrtjlm.nt Coatt

$57,000.00

198,480.00

92,000.00

s3,410.00

lt6l,,t9o,oo

Dl.trk'l 8.bn6
Tolrltusmnt
Tolal lmpmmnt CNb

srttolrl
ToblAvaildlo Fsdr

Tolal Fmds
Tolrl lnslaltnont Cct
ContibuuoN trcm othd &u@

Not Bahn@

$80.706.02

6107,405.41)
(926,699.38)

' (t56,stl.m)
(982,214.18)

($160,E90.00)

($243,'104.18)

Dl.trlcl B.l.n@ (.urplut l. +; ddioit lt 0) ('2{3,104.10

Nct Ar.dMt C.lcrlitlon
tto,708.02tulwMt

SuDls or Delioit (sDlus i8 slbbaots4 d.lioit ls addod)

N€tAewMt
1213,t01.11

sa,l'10.21

$a,010.21
560

1,090.0,|

Clty ol Fdsm
Bdgg! Rsnch LrndHplng.nd Llghilng Dtrtrlcl

Fund 205

2t21-22

Alloc.tld Not Asdndl to Propodv

NetA!!o!snt
Singl€ Fsmily Equival€nt Bmiit Unitg

Ail@tod Net Asffit to Ptlporty

ComarLon ot lLl Attdmt .nd A.rsmdt
Allst d il€t A.H.mnt to ProP.rtY

Alloeted Arrsml to Propdty
PrrP.rc.l Su.plur (+) orDollcltt)

(t190.81)

11?2,,n
(l38l 33)

Crvor Folsoil
LANDSCAPING AND LGHTING DISTNICTS

ENGrruerR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 135

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



PncE 59

Bnrccs Rnlcr - lHsrru-tmeHT SUMMARY

District: Briqqs Ranch

Fiscal Year: 2021.U

($19,473

Short Term ln3tallment Summarv
Ao!rcl

Tdd
Ystu PrhYor! Ydl Ya2 Ya3 Ysl Y65 Rdrird

ldaln€it CdhaJdir m17 or8 a)l9 NN ,#)1

lhrub and Trs uDorades s10.000 $18.000 $500 $500 $500 s500 $500 $50.000

:oncs/Wall ReDair/ReDlemsnt $'t0,000 $18.000 $500 $500 $500 s500 s500 $50.000

BIF Rflin€)-partial

$2,000 s8.000 s500 $500 $500 $50 s500 550.000

E. NatomalDdlal

tef ion-rcbair/reolm6ment $2.000 $7,000 s500 s500 9500 $500 s500 s8 (m

fobh: 124.000 149,000 t2.000 t2.000 12,000 32.000 12,000 l'156,000

Lond Term lnstallment Summarv

Am
Tr*d

Ysly FidYdn Ysi Y€s2-s YmSl0 YonlG20 Y.m rll.3l Rdr.llEd

lrut*ndt Colhclbc MT 2018 ,.lla mn 2t)1

s2.000 $39,840 $410 s41 0 s410 $410 $410 $60,000

idsl

:6nc€ ReDairiReDlrcem€nt Srt.0m $s.000 $500 s500 s500 s500 $500 $80.000

avinelDartial

:once RoDair/R€Dlcoment $4.000 s9.000 $500 $500 s500 s500 s500 $60.000

F Nrtomrl-n*tial

:nW Sion R€Dlsement $1,000 s4.500 $500 $500 $500 35m s500 $10.000

brN letteF)

$2,000 s4.000 $500 $500 s500 $500 s500 $10.000

3 contolltrs)

$5,000 s10 500 $500 s500 $500 s500 S75.0,00

)r ReDlrcment

frm landsam imorovm6nts $2,000 $6,000 s500 s500 $500 $500 $500 slo 000

rrtial colloction)

fotah: s20.000 381.840 $3,1'10 13,110 s3.410 13.410 33.110 t285,000

Crv op FoLsoM

LANDScApTNG Aruo Lrcnrtruc Dlsrntcrs
ErucrrurrR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 136

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 60

Sldtkg Fud Balw (dsol M 2021)

Edir.fed Rffi lo /imru wrcx td 6 ndths of 21-22

($237,880.45)

($r74,548.29)

Clty ot Follom
Broadllone Lrndtctplng and Llghdng Dlltrlcl

Fund 210

2021-22

Awst por singh FmiV Equivalent

singls Famit Equivalent Bsm,it Units

lotrl tuBrMt

$164.S
2,368.99

lostc66

LongiTom lndailMl Plil (prcvioudy @ll€ot€d)

$0.m
u,745.m

$o.m
p.m

Shorl-Tom lnddlMt Plil
LongFT€m lndsllmtPls
Tot llntbllm.ntcob

(@ll*lod his fsr)
(@llsi€d lhis t6a0

12,745.00

IotdAMl
Totd lmpMMt Cocg

Subtold
Totd Avilatlo Funde

Totd FUMB

Totd lnddlmnlcGt
conlribution6 from ofEr w@

NstBdan6

$390,859.66
(u49,986.70)

s140,872.96

' lluz,qnitl
($271,556.78)

(e,745.m)

sm
{$274,3m.70)

DbtlclB.ln6 (.urplu. l. +i d.flcitb 0) (3211,310.76)

Affit sc,,659.66
t74,300.78

l€66,tE.lil
Surdus q D€licit (sDlus is sbtetsd; d€fdt is addod)

NotAswnt

Alloat d ll.tAr6rm.ntb PEBttv
NotAffit
Slngl€ Famiv Equivalst &nolit Units

Al@ted Not Awnt to Prepody

1665,'l60.1,1
ZE

t?'J16

nmManl Corb

G.n.nl ir.lnbnmd Cdt
'1. schedulod

1. Unsdrsdul€d

5. streetighc

S.rvi6 Cotb
t-E*rri"d
5. wate

cumnt Yor lmadamnt Probct
6-it" Pt*..d P'q".b

s.m
$0.m
s.m

045,000.m

0140,0m.00

$0.m

suHo{d ot ltm 6 0.00

SubbLl

Eld.trt l Cdtr--Tl-FriG'Eion"ls"ri* 
{En{insfs R€pod sd lP)

6. ConLfit s€rui6 (d olh€r @nlreb md sruis)

$,lE5,000r0

!.
10.

12.

Publi€tonsi l4ailin gE6omunicdlim8

Sla{f

Ovartbd
County Auditor F6

$1,0m.m
F.1m.m

o50.m
s0,639.00
$,6m.00
01.397.70

Subbbl

TohllmpFsMtCdb

s1,s?o

1219,9S,t0

compadM of lLl AaasMt rnd Attdamant
Alloqbd ll.t A$dmnt b Prcpcrty

Alloc.t d As6rmnt b Prop.ny

P.r P.rc.| S{dur (+) or o.flcit (-)

$20.71)
ll61.s9

(lll5.7e)

Cwor Folsol,t
LRtroscRptHc RND LtGHTTNG DtsTRtcrs

Eruerrueen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 137

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 61

Bnomsrole 1 aHo 2 - hsrnllmelT SUMMARv

Distric{: Broadstone

Fiscal Year: ,nt1-rt

:und Balancs [Z]2'1) ($237,8801

Short Tem lnstallment Summaru
Am.

Tdc
PtDht Yslv RirY* YB, Ys3 Yd{ Ys5 RflId

ldr&d (:t{clkB z)17 iltE 2ll19 -;/lJa, ,0|l

fr6 & landscaF imorovsmsnts $0 st) $t) $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000
'nrdial fr rnd c6llmlionl

16nrir lrrioelion/Renl*€ Sh0ft s- $t) $0 $0 $0 s0 $0 $0 $50.000

lathbone. Knoner. othtr intqior ares

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 s6 000

lidhts)

hllard Rsair/R6nle6msl [40) $0 $0 m $t) $0 $0 $0 $15,000

iohl Polo/fixlur€ reDleffidl ol KW $0 $0
gt) $I) $0 $0 $0 $10,000

fobh: l0 30 t0 Il) s0 $ l0 l't08.000

L ono Tm lnslallment Summaru

Aslq.
Tdc

Prbi6ct Yslv Yrm25 Ym l(L2O Ye*ZXn R0i€d
lmlClMl Cddlm mlt i,ul6 x,l9 ,or{t ,M1

soak hdoaton/R@le6 skubs- $t) s2.145 $0 $0 m $0 $0 s50 000

on Poinl median

m & landsceoo imdovomonts $0 $0 s0 $0 $0 s0 ${J $r60,000

(or@lmmtrt)

lhnrh Rilhnm€nLlhroiloh oill $0 $0 $0 $0 m s0 $0 $1.000.000

sm6 hrioalion r6Dair)-28 aB

$0 $t) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000

P€t Station r@l&ffist {7) s0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $t) s1 1 000

lionao€ Rmdr/R@le6msnt m s0 $0 $0 $0 m m s40 000

Iuil Removal/krioation rolrofi I m s0 $0 $0 sn 9l) s0 s200 000

$0 $0 $0 $0 s0 s0 $0 $45.000

and frN (15)

Tot b: l0 12.7i15 TO s0 30 30 l0 $ r{6 000

Crv or Folsotrt
LANDSCAPING AI'Io LrcurIruC DISTRICTS

Er'rolrueeR's RepoRt, FY 2021-22 -;5
SClConsultingGroup

Page 138

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 62

Sldling FUN BdM (6 ol M 2c21)

Edimaed Rffi to /im@ wrcx, hd 6 ndilhs ol 21'22

$5i,738.73
($10,172.83)

lnmM.niM

Gananl MdnLnmo Cdb
1. Soh€duled

2. UnsdFdulod

3. St 6[ight6

$0.m
$0.m

$8,0m,00

S.rvi6 Corb
4. Elelrid
5. Wal€r

9,000.m
$0.00

Cumnt Ydr lmod.mnt PEl.cb
6. LEDconwrdon $8,0m.00

SuHo{.i of llfl 6 $8,0m.m

&bbt l 11E,000.00

lncld.nhl c6b
7. Pohsional S€Ni@ (En*ld's Ropod 4d lP)

L Conlr&t SoNic6 (at dhtr @tr&,ls sd srui6)
L Puui@lions/MailingE/Cmunicatons
10. Slell

11. orofioad
12, CdnVAuditqF@

$0.m
$0.m
$0.m
s.00

s24.m
ss.00
$121.38

$bbt l

TobllmpFsmdtc6b

ll,ll,l.36

tir,{43s

Ar$mant to PbBrtv {Cumit)

Assdt per Singh FmiV Eqlivahnt

Singh Family Equivalent Bsnolit Unils

Totll A.6tm.nt

$28.07
81 1.53

arr,??Ess

shod-Tsm lnddlmt Plan (p@i@Cy @lleH)
Long-T€m lnslallmnt Pld {previoudy coll€ohd)

Shod-Tom lnstClMt Pls {collstEd his }rt)

$0.m

$6,0m.m
s.m
s.00LongFT€m lndallMt Pls (@llslod lhie ,b€i

Tot l lnrt llmdt C6b 15,00{.00

lb$!l-Ed!!s
TotalAs$Mt
Totd lmpmmtcods

Subtotd

Totd Avdlabl€ Funds

Toltl Fundo

Totd lnddhEnt c6t
Cdtibulions lrom otEr $ws

N6tBdil@

w779.6
(si9,444.38)

$3,335.27

' $se,toso
s1,441.17
($5,000.m)

sm
s6,441.17

ol.trlctB.l.n6 (tunlr l. +;fflcltl! 0) fi,u1.1t

Agffit
Surduc or Dofidt (splus is qblr*ted; defKit i6 addod)

NslAsffint

$4n9.65
_JrsS{1!lr

(ltx68l54

All@t d l{.t At.s.m.nt b Prc[dv
NetAssdt (133,66154

412
(1.1.15)

clty ofFolrom
grcadrtono 3 Lmdlcrplng 8nd Llgh0ng oilfict

Fund 200 - Sbsoulghb Only

2021-22

shglo Famjt Equivalont Bomlit Units

A[@t6d Not Agsnt to Pmporty

Cmddron oa l{at AaBmant rnd AardaMt
31i.O
afrn7
3t9.55

Allodt d AtBm.ntb Prop.iy
P.r P.E.l S{rplu. (+) d D.ficlt (.)

Crv or Folsotrl
LRt'toscRpntG RND LTHTtNG DrsTRtcTs

EruerrueER's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

4
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 139

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 63

Bnomsrole 3 - hsrn-lugNT SUMMARY

Broadstone #3Distilct:

Fhcel Ye.r: 2021.n

s57 739Fund Balanca {2021)

Short Term lnstallmont Summarv

m 30r6hl 30 50 30 30 l0 $

Lono Term lnstallment Summary

$I st) s50.000$5.000 $5.000 $i $0

!50 Dols)

tsn m035 000 r5.000 TO l0 t0 t0 t0Iotel

Crv or FoLsoM

LRruoscnptrue nND LGHTTNG DtsrRtcrs
ETGTNEcR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

d
SClConsultingGroup

Page 140

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pncr 64

Es/Dd6dR6ilo lo tm ryu futI 6 nd)a of il-n

Avdl.u. Fundr

6 dAN2nI 125.r 14.60

(1tr.7s.n)

mrudfts

G.nrd lrltrnr$ Codt
i. scMdod
2. uMtFdubd
t. ste€lohb
?. higdhn

S.wlo Cod.
!. Eleclkd
t hhr

|i62,60.m
$5,m0.m
$11),m0.m

u7,m0.m

$.m
$.m

qmit Yrr lryreEM Pml.dr
?. l-0dsces nphmnl rd lEe phnlng

WEollfrS
SuSd

$0,m.m

---Epmm
---EaF3o-"

ndd.dd m
l PobdoElSefli@s (EI!im/3 R.pontd P)

!. conhl wi6s (!l otEt conhb d $dicos)

10. Pdtic*dlrdlii$/comunbbns
1t sbt
12. ovedFd
13. cooil/AudibrFse

$.m
$.m
$.m

$,450.m
ii3,295.m

S!trU $e,751.00

!11,Oi.mTohl lmpoffit 6*

ffidbPFFtylqM)

Als3snlporSiml. FfiW Eqdvded
thgl6 Fmit Eqdvcsil B.mn Udb

Tod l.silil

130.81

2.065.(b

9{l, laLl3

dnM && (s lffiilmdl Plan ad lummry w Nal

ShoilTsm lBtlkftnl Pl€n (ptsviody 6ll€chd)

Long-Tm hglmnlPbn (ptsvlo6ly 6kcbd)
thilT6m lFHkmnl Pbn {6hcbd 0i3 y3r)
Lono-Tffi lBllrEnl Phn (cok*d fr; Fd
ToH lrddhE{ &d

$.m
S.m
$.m
s.o

30.m

s0,111.43

Tohl lnpovsmntC6b
Srbbts

ToH Awtdls Fud3
Tobl Fuds

ToblffihilC$t
ConhbSom hm ohr$u@s

llol uft.

0344.601.m)

-@F.s7)
' t189,3a4.08---Fidio:o

$.m
9.m

---67sJ3as)

Didrid B.l.m. (aDlB l. +; drfcll lr 0) 61s,1:zgo)

5ffiqcmd
kffid
surplG or D6lcit (iuDhB h shbdi dolcil i3 added)

iJatkgmnl

|il,11413
ll5.ll250

1155.27&92

Aloc.hd tld lffiird to PmFtv
$tJ,?402

m5

'l5.1t

CltyotFoltom
Brodtlon. No.iJLildsplng $d Llgfitlng Dl.lrhl

Fund2l2
?,21-22

NstAs€smd
sh0t6 Fdt Eqdvdonl Bsmil unib

Aloc*d uotkm6nt b PopertY

ComFdM olHAsral and Asmi
Alo# H lcrFd to PEpqty
Alo#Mt PrcFdy

P.rPrd Surdu!(+)orlbf.ll 0 (s6.30

615.19)

$l.ll

CrYor Fosotrr
LRruoscApIruG Rruo LIermruG DISTRICTS

EucrrueEn's RrpoRr, FY 2021-22

4
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 141

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 65

Bnonosrone 4 - lnsrn-uueNT SUMMARY

Broadrtone No.4Dirtdct:

znu-22Fiscrl Yerr:

sr25 115rnd B.hnco (20211

Short Tarn lnrtrllment Summtru

s0 30s0 SO t0 $0 t0t0

t0 ctft t0 l0 l0I6tj l0 l0

Lond Tarm lnrtrllment Summaru

s0t0 s( s0l0

s0 I0Il s{l t0 l0f6hl l0 f,,

Cwor Forcom
Llruosclprruo Rruo LrcHrtrue DFTRtcrs

ENGTNEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

-

SClconsultlngGroup

Page 142

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 66

Sldling Fund B*n@ (6 d Nfl 2021)

Estuebd RNm lo lirond awnx. itsl6 MIlts d21-22

(017,604.11)

($19,654.43)

Clty ot Fohm
cobbb Hlll. lllR.f,4tlonr ll Lrndsrplng rnd Llghting Dl.trlct

Fund 211

2021-22

lmlrosrut Cotb

odaral iLlntrnse coab
L Sdodrlod
2. Unsh€dj€d
3. StEughtg
4. lnigalim

s21,900.00

$i,500.00

$1,400.00

s2,600.00

s!ds-e!t!
5. El€clriul
6. Wald

i2,000.00

$10,463.00

C!rdlY{ lmnromt Prcl6b
7. NoPhm€dPrc,eb $0.00

SubblaloflbnT -- 
$0J0

Subtot!l l45,103.00

lncldst l Co.t
8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

t3.

Prcfalbd S€ryiB (En0irEr'8 Rspod and lP)

Cqbfit S€ryi6 (.[ olhd @nfsts and wi@)
Puui€tjondltlsihg&/comuniEliono
sbfi
Owhed

11,000.00

$3,100.00

t250.00

i8.440.00

01,6m.00

i229.51Conly Auditor Fs

Subloi.l

Tobl ldpromGnt Co.b

llrr63rjl

160.5015l

A.!6rffit b Prordlv lclrm0

Assmt p6r Singlo Family Eqrival€nt

Singh Fanily Equivalst Emft unib

Toleltusrmt

$113.14
389

t{4pfits

[rbllMlCoata 16lnddlMlPl.n.nd Slmmd ndt ug)

Shod-Tm lnslalkMt Plan (p@ioudy @lleoted)

LorE-Tm lnltslkr$t Plan (pdioudy oolletod)

Shod-Tm lnstalkmnt Plan (@iodod his !80
Long-Tm lndslhHt Plan (6lletrd lhir tE0
Tohl ln.Lllmdt Cotb

$43,856.00

$54,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

t97,154.00

Dlrtdc{ Bdrn6
TolalAe$8wnt
Tol,rlltrp.mmtCGb

Sublolal

Total AEilabls Funds

Total Fmds
Total lnlbilmt Cost

ContibuliN tom olhsr w@
Nst BahM

144,011.46

0m,502.51)
($16,491.05)

' $!ZZ5B.54I
(t53,74S.59)

($97,856.00)

$5,000.00

{$146,605.59)

Dl.blct 8.hn@ F{rpl[. b +; dofbit b 0) (lt1s!055r)

A8sgrunt
SurplG or Dolhit ($Dlus is subtet€d; dofcit i! addod)

NetAMt

141,011.16

I118,$5.59

It90,6,17.05

ltto,8't7.05
3t9

g$.02

Aloatrd Nct A$anst to Prosdv
N6iAMl
Singlo Famiv Equival$t Bon€ft unils

Almted N6t AMMI b Proporty

Com.rlsn of lldArBmt and A.'4m6t
Alocdld lH A.$sMt to PFP.rtY

Pd P.Frl SlrDlu! (+) or ltsllcit (.)

(t"loo.o4

tlll.ll
($?8.O)

SClConsultingGroupCrv or FoLsoM

LRruoscRptrue nND LGHTTNG Dlsrntcrs
Er,rctNeER's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

Page 143

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pncr 67

Coasle Hru-s Rroce - lHsrnu-meHT SUMMARv

Distric't: Cobble Hillo ll/Reflections ll

Fiical Year: 2021-22

Fund Balano (2021) ($17,m41

Shoil Term lnstellment Summaru
ADrfu.

Tdd
turd Y€rlv PrtuY.n Ysl Y82 Ys3 Ya' Ys5 Rddrd

lct*ngl coffiit mfl m18 2010 xp1

$5,m0 $38,856 s0 s0 50 50 s50.000

ld reblsmenll

Vlini Pd( & Path to L6mbi Turf and $10.000 s5 0m t0 s0 50 $0 $40,000

lhruh ReDak/Rslmmsl

fotal!: 115,000 1i13.856 TO t0 IO IO 190.000

Lono Tem lnstallment Summaru

Am
Taad

BoLd Y.rfu PrhY6 Ysl Ym2{ YSSIO YmilLn YmAlgt R€fiftd
lrffiffit Gobfft3 ,'17 xX8 2019 2fi) 2lJ,1

FscE ReDai/ReDhcment (225 ft) $1,m0 $6.5{n 5t) $0 50 $0 $0 $10,000

Wall RsDdrs ad Painlino 1628 ft) $1,m0 $35,500 s0 s0 s0 $0 s40.000

rub RsDlmment-G16nn/OxburoEh $5.000 $7.500 $0 $0 $0 s0 s85 m0

s1.0m 50 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000

Sion{e Remir/Rslffimilt $1,0m s'1.500 50 50 $0 $0 $8,000

Ir@ & hndse imtrov€ments $2,m0 $,0m l{) s0 s0 st) 553.600

(tr rolhoment)

fobll: 511.000 554.000 t0 l0 l0 l0 t0 1191,600

Crv or FoLsoM
LRruoscRprr,rc RND LtGHTtNc DtsrRrcrs
Euerruern's Reponr, FY 2021-22 -a-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 144

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 68

gdfug Fbd Nfto (a ol Agil 2Ul)
EshddR6iloto itmery4 flEl' nflXB d 2l-22

/qildhbl. Furd!

1r01,313.62

($,111.6)

EtEt4!!414

kllllfrnreCo.!
r:-lffid"d Q,1m.m

$,0m.m
$m.00
gm.o

t. uEbduM
?. stsolighb
?. Hgaton

$dl6 &S
t. Ebchcd t5m.o

lt.2s.mt. wr
od Yir lmFwt PEiada
?. LEDcodffibdFeMRspar s,sm.m

----TFrd'WdlnS
Su!frlC

ndd.n8 ffi
t. Pobdod S€dbs (ElEirw/s Rrported lP)

----i1F6-

!. Contutsotri@s (alotFrconbb.d$dbs)
10. PlJblaloE/MalirEs/ComuMhE
1r. sbt
12. mtud
'13. counttArdlbrF*

$,m.m
$,1m.m

gF8.m

J0$.m
$6.m
35l.84

Suttotd -----EEE-

l0.oolclobl lmprcsilml Co*

As.snl per singl6 Fnily Equiwhnt

Singlo Fnily Equiv.bilB.Ff ttJib
TohlAtr$t

U3.e
s

113,6!{?2

Ldilffi BSO.t&ilMPtd fr EUnmryMml

shoilT6m lcdlmnl Phn (ptslbdy colkbd)
bng-Tm ln$llmntPhn o€lbBy 6kbd)
shoilTom lEdlmnl Phn (@[ocH ffi yd)
Lono-Tm lmUlEntPhn (conocbd lby.a)

in,518.00

127.3a5.00

!i.000.00

Jt.0m.00

tto,ul0o

DAiC A[m
ToblAwnl 113,ffi.72

Toll lnpDvomntc6b
SubbH

ToH Ahbb Fund3

Tobl Fud3
Tobl h.Uhd ft3t
Conbbdom hm ohr$mg

Mtkrcs

{Uo,8m.P)
lls-,rtoio)
' ts,2m.$
-11J6-.I6

(ls,813.m)

9.m---31ffi

Ddrid il.M (dDls lt +i d.idl l. 0l 31.Gtr

l'F.o{t2
Suph or hftil (s!pl6 is sdt&bd: d€ftil b dd6o (81,a13.2r)

0r7,75r.54l$lhlmd

AJbc*d lblAsosenl b Popofry

Alloald tLt ,t*aid to PEFfi
(tr7,75r.54

s
(11'1 2'l)

clty of Fokon
cohbL Rldlr L.nde.plng.nd Llghtlng Dbtrlct

Fuld 231

m21-22

ComFds ot t{at Affid.nd lgrtlfil
AloeLd t5l bmr{to Prep..ty

Prr PlFrl sulu. (+) or otfi clt 0

l.lfi.21
llns

j-dF

SClConsultingGroupCrvor Folsoru
LaruoscRprruc RND LTHTtNG DrsrRrcrs

Eruerrueen's Reponr, FY 2021-22

Page 145

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 69

CoeeLe Rroce- hsrllluem Sumunny

Districl: Cobble Ridqe

Fiicrl Year: 2021.22

und Balence 120211 $104,314

Short Tsrm lnltallment Summary
Amr.
Tdt

Prdd YslY ftbY6 Yd Y*2 Yd3 Yda Ys5 RduLBd

lrui8lndt Co|dtffi n1 zltf, mls mm m21

urb bari( DG mDlacomeni $3.000 $22.018 s500 s500 $500 $500 $20.000

Ir* sdk in Cul do Sac $1,000 s4 500 3500 $500 $500 $500 $5,000

oLli: t4,000 126,516 s1.m0 31.0m 3t.m0 31.000 t25,000

Lano Term lnstellment Summarv

Aosil.
T&t

Plli.d Yslv PrirYgl Y62.1 Ym$10 YslGm YsE2G3{, Rduted
kttrfndt cohc&6 m1l m18 at9 NA m21

:6n€ Rsairi Rshcement (340 ft) s2.000 314.500 5250 $250 $250 $250 s250 s20.000

lhnrb Rfthc.m.nl $2.000 $4.500 $250 $250 t?50 $250 s250 $20.000

Iubulsr F6nc6 rdsir/roDhcsment $400 $2,075 s250 $250 s250 $250 $4.000

s500 s2.250 $250 s250 $250 $250 $250 $3,000

(or r@bcemiltsl

fohl!: !t 900 323.325 11,000 s1,000 11-000 t{.000 347.000

CmY or Folsou
LANDScAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICTS

Eruerruern's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 146

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pece 70

silatiag Fund Balaw (B of N 2Al)
Edinded Rffi lo fiw Wbx. frrd 6 nodla ol 21-n

Q5,081.07
(s,749.20)

lmmEmnt Cod.

G.nml ltlnbnma C6b
1. Sd€dul€d-
2. uncdredulsd

3. Sb6$ghb
4. ldgalion

$0.m

$.m
$1.750.m

e,200.m

S.wlc. C6b
5. Elebi@l
6. Wals

$3,650.m

$5,750.m

Cumnt Yda lm!ffint PEla.L
7. opon sp@/fE woil $,m0.m

&Holal ol llffi 7 s,m0.m
Sub{oi.l lrq35o.00

lEld.nhl Co.b
L Prchsiond sdi@ (Endn6/s Ropdt dd lP)

L Conlret S€ryic66 (d ofEr Mtr&ls ad sili6)
10. Publi@tjondMdlingF/Cmmudxlims
11. Stall
12. Owhqrd
13. CountyAuditorFs

$1,om.m
s,'100.m

@50.m
$0.m

$94.m
$'181.72

Suhot l

Tot|llnpffitcob

lsp15.t,

ar\r\rn

tustmdt b RgErtv lcsmtl

Awt pd Sinds Fdily Equivdont

Singlo Fefly Equivd€ni Bffiil Unilr

loblAl$mit

$70.88
3E

t2l,!0t.04

lnddlmnt C6tt 116 lmhllm.nt FLn .nd $lnmru ndt m.)

Short-Tom lnstalMt Plan (pBiddy @lebd)
LongFTm lnstdlml Ple (p@iddy oolbcfod)

Shod-Tm lnshlml Plan {6ll6H this lDad
LqgiTm lmldlmt Plil (ell€otrd this }!6)
Tot l ln.bllmt Corb

$66,mo.m
$0.m

@.m
S.m

rtcoooJ0

Dl.blct Brhn6
TotdAssMt
Told lmpMMtCodr

Subbld
TotC AvdlaH€ Funds

Totd Funds

Tolal lnsldlmt Cost

Cmlribution6 lrcm otsr su@
N€t Bald@

81,831.01
tv|,375.n1

s156.32

' $ts,gst.sz
t15,7S7.19
(s6,m0.o)

s.m
($40,212.81)

Dlrlrlc{ Bdmc. (rurplu! l. +; d.fiolt lt 0) ($0,2r23'r)

lH furqrmnt c.lcul.tlil
Affit l21,t3t3l
suOtuB d Defcjt (erplw is ebt&t€d; defdt is add)
N6tAsffinl

wa2Et
$4,0,1315

city of Fol$m

Fund 208

2021-n

Allc.t d l{.t Arrdmdt b Plwttv
N6lAffint
Shgl6 Fnily Equivd€nl Bemlit Unils

Ab@t6d Net AggMt to PrcFty

162,0{335

1n1.4

P.r P.ol SuDlu. (+) or o.ficlt (.)

Atldbd lLt A..a.Mt !o ftlp.try
Allqbd A.tomntto Ptop.ny

ConEdril d lllt A.rBrmit .nd Ald.m.it
(l2or.44)

(tlr.56)

Crvor Folsol,t
LRltoscRprruc eND LtcHTtNG DtsrRtcTS

ENGTNEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

SClConsultangGroup

Page 147

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 71

Folsoru Hrrcnrs - lusmllurnr Suumanv

Distric-t: Folsom Heiqhts

Fiscel Year: 2021-2,2

:und Balance (2021) $25,081

Short Term lnrtallment Summaru
AFrox

T0@

POFCT Y€ilv Rior YasB Yea 1 YcB 7 Yg Ystl Ys5 Roo!t€d

lcl*mm Colbdhis m17 201E zlt: ) m21

fohl.: 30 50 l0

Lono Term lnetallment Summarv

am.
Totd

PMiEt Ydrlv PrbrYeeF Yosl Yffi2.5 Ym' YmiG20 Yexs 2G3l R€OUIEd

lm*nert ColHions mfl m18 20m mi21

A/all Reoair/Paint {3000 ft) $2,000 $16.000 s0 $0 $0 $0 $25.000

Bike Paih EMir $2,000 $17,000 $U $0 $0 $0 $3s.m0

$2.000 $22,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000

rcmoval

Tree & landscape impowments $1.000 s1.000 $0 $0 s0 $0 $0 s40,000

(or colmementsl

Tolrlr: t7,000 $50,000 s0 t0 t0 t0 3r40_0m

Grv or Folsol,t
LRruoscRprrue Rruo Ltcnrtruo Dsrnlcrs
EruerrueeR's RrpoRr, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 148

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee72

sl'dilng Fund Bdlil@ (6 of Aptil 2U1)

EsdinalEdResm b,tn.n@ dryox f6t 6 n@ks of 21'22

i265,432.27
($27,860.45)

qty of Folrcm

Folsm Holghb ilo.2 Lrndslplng rnd Llghdng Dltbicl
Fund 261

2021-22

mlroMant Corb

cddrl Malntrnane coria
1. SchoduH
2. Un$h€duled

3. Sbstlighb

$16,275.00

99,500.00

$0.00

s6rvi6 CorL
4. Elsclriel
5. WEt€r

$0.00

00.00

Cur6t Yqr lmromant Proleta
6. Fon@rslffint&Laddorftrdfi@rcrk

Soblolal of lt n 6

Srbtohl

noldsnt l co.ta

$23,000.00

$23,000.00

t1!,?5iO

7. Prcfdlioml SfliB (Engin6/5 Roport and lP)

8. Conlet SoNi6 (ail ots @nlelr and wiB)
9. Pudhalion6ivdlingJommnihlions
10. Strfl
11. Owhead
,l2. CountyAuditorF6

10.00

$0.00

t0.00
14,709.00

s502.00

s0.00

S!btoLl 15,211.00

tsx$8JoTobl liTromdt Cortr

AslgMt per Single Fadly EquiElo[t
singlo Famly Eqlivalont Bffilit t,nib

TotdAtqtMt

$208.38
29S.3t

sr"316l,

[tt llMtCo.b lclntt llMt Phn rnd Summdn.xt!ile)

Log-Tm lnrhllmnt Phn (pdid[ty colooH)
Shod-Tm lnlblhst Plan (co{etsd thk tEr)
Long-Tom lmbllmnt Phn (ooll6{6d his }er)
lol,.l lnddlffit Cort

$0.00

s0.00

$0.00

$0.00

s.00

Dl.trli B.Lnco
TotalAffirt
lotal lmp@mt Cdt!

Subtotal

TotalAwibl€ Fun&
Total Fsds

Tolal lnstalmnt Cost

ContabulioN lrom olh$ w@
N6l Bahncs

$62,386.89

653,986.00)

08,400.89

' l2st,szr.gz
1245,972.71

10.00

1245,972.71

Dlrtrict B.lrnc6(.urplut lt |; d.ficltlt 0) l2t5,972.7!

ll.tArtdndt Cddl.ton
Asffigni flt2,3t8.19

(121s.072.70

(tr8,5E5.t4
Surdus or 06fcit (suDls is sbtractodi deticit is add.d)

N6lAslwnt

Allocded t{st ArtoMt to Prosrtv
NotAssffit
Singlo Family EqliElent Eorbtit Unilr

Almlod N€t Aerwnt to Propsty

(lll3,5t5.l4
a9

($l1a)

Com[rlen ot ]lal Aardamdt and A${mnt
Alloc.trd Nct At6.Mt io Ptopdty
Alloc.tld tuwMt io Proporly

Pc P.rc.| Surplu. (+) or lhliclt (.)

$r3.20
t20t.3l
It21.5t

C|TYoF FoLSOM

LRruoscRptrue RND LTHTtNG Dtsrntcts
ErlcrrureR's REponr, FY 2021-22

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 149

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 73

Folsou Hercnrs No.2 - ltstatutrenr Suumnnv

Folsom Helohis No.2Dirtrict:

Fbcal Year: 2021.n

rhd BeLnco 120211 t265.132

Short Tsrm ln.tallment Summarv

l{ lal( sloldr:

Lono Tem lnttallment Summarv

30s0 t0 $0 t0Gl€nnmlllmir

s0 s0 $0s0 l0IE and hnded€ imorv Mstra ch)

30 TO 30 s0 $0

t0 t0 llll0 t0 gt t0Iotdr: t0

CrYor Folsotrl
LeruoscRptrue nND LTcHTTNG DtsrRtcrs
ENGTNEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

Page 150

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



PncE 74

Slddng Fund 8ble@ (6 ol Nil 2021)

EsdDabd R6.m b lhro eryfrx. fi616 Milsof 21-22

$r8,376.10
(09,005.34)

mprohftnt CotL

Gdddlllintrnfie Cod.
1. s.h€diod s11,625.00

$1000.00

$1,000.00

1650.00

2. Un$h€dhd
3. Sbeltght8
4. lrdo.ton

S.rvl6 Cqt
5. El€.lrical

6. Wator

$2,500.00

$2,500.00

CurMl Yd lm!reffi 1 ProlE'tt
7. No Phnnod Prciedr 10.00

- $oioSultotdro/lteD 8

l23"?r5'0oSubtohl

brE$htge$
L Prc{osrional Soni6 (Engin6/s Roportand lP)

9. Cotret S€Nixs (al otFr 6nlr*ir and sNicss)
10. PubliulionsiMtlingCComruiletons
lt sbll
12. Owh*d
13. CounlyAuditorF6

s1,000.00

$3,100.00

t250.00

$3.482.00

s565.00

160.77

S!biobl !t,157.77

Bl,?3z?Totd lmproMoit Cotl|

Assst p€. Slnolo Fami9 EqdEhnt
Singlo Famiy Equiwhnt BdElit Utits

TohlA.l6Mt

$'r95.78
103

l?0,1853{

n.t llmdtcorlt lulmbllMtPlilpd S!fimil ndtFo)

Shod-Tm lnrlallmnt Plan (p@iouty @ll€otod)

Long-Tm lnstrllmnt Phn (pmioudy 6ll*t€d)
Shod-Tm lnsbllmnt Phn (dllctod his,sar)
Long-lm ln8hllmnt Pl€n (cdlet€d lhb tw)
Tohl lnt|llMt Co.tr

$7,500.00

t27,m.00
$0.00

$544.00

tltrloJo

Dblrlct B.ldd
ToblA3srmnt
Tolrl lmpffint C@t!

Sublobl

IolrlAEido Funds

Tolrl Fun&
Tol€l lNlallml CGt
C6[b!lion8lrcm dlH eu@

N€t Bda@

t20,165.34

$31in.77\
($11,567.43)

$11.530.76

tt36.67)
(t36,9,{o.oo)

$0 00

635,976.67)

Dl.trlct8.hn6(.unhr b +;d.ff.it lt 0) $358?dS4

AsMt
Surpl6 d ooficit (sqplus i8 sbtebdj dellcit is added)

N.tAlsmt

t20,185.31

-s.g!glz-
t50,1{2.0t

156,142.01

l5{5.07

clty ot Fdem
lhnnrtord Crorr Lrndsrplng rnd Llghung Dlrtrlct

Frnd 212

2021.22

Allocdrd il€t fu|4Mt to Prolarte

N6lA3ffirt
slnglo Fmily Equival€nl Bwft units

Al!@tsd Nsl A!ffint lo P@€rtY

Cop.rl$n of llrl AtstMt .nd Alt4Mt
Alloqtld NotA$€tmt b ProP€rtY

Alloc.H AtsrMt to PFpeily
Pd Prel S!.plut (+) or ltdlclt (-)

(lsls 07)

1195.?t
(l31ea)

Crv or FoLsoM

l-ANDscAprNG AND LtcHTtNG DtsrRtcrs
Er'rcrrueER's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 151

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Peee 75

Hnrmrono Cnoss - hsrnlluetr SUMMARY

District: Hannaford Crou

t.ztFilcrl Yaar:

s18.376Fund Bdncs (20211

s20.000$0 0 s0.ndc-e/lnid.lid llekside Dd $5.000 $7,500

s20.000$ Ilt t0 l0 l0I6hlr: gt00 t7,500

Torm lnst llment

s2E.0001150 rl50 $150 $150 $150t2.000 t20,750

l70fe0

sl s4 xts4 sl 94 $194 s194 $26,000lwd Rslenlind s1.000 $2,470

s200 s200 s200 $10.000s1.0m 52.500 9200 1200

lor r€oleemsts)

16[tmst|/t 55ail t54t tot4 tt!Iold.: t{000 125,120

Crv op FoLsoM

LANDScAPING AND LIGHTING DISTNrcTS

Eruerleen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

Page 152

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



PneE 76

EsUDalrd R@m lo,itffi Wrcx. frd 6 nMtE ol21'22

Anlllih

BahM (6 ol Apd 2021) $97,2r3.26
($9,264.00)

CitY of Folrcm
Lako lliom Shom Lrndsrplng and Llghun! Dltfict

Fund 213

20,1-22

noroMdt Codt

cddi llrlntdde C6b
1. Sch€dulod

2. Un&h€drlod
3. Sl6[ight8
4. lri0alim

$6,400.00

$5,000.00

$1,000.00

$1,200,00

s.rvl6 Coat!
5. Electicl
6. Wah

ti00.00
13,000.00

Curut Yor lnlroEmdl Prolctr
7. LEDonwlbdT@wrk $8,000.00

Sublotdlofil.nT $SP00'oO

S!btohl ljI5,300.00

lelltlbfglllr
8. Rofdioml Soili@3 (EngiEl,! R€port 6nd lP)

L Contr&t Sdis (all ots oontel8 snd wic€!)
10. RbhalioN/Maiingticommsicatonr
11. Strfl
12, Otrh€d
13. CostyAuditorFs

$1,000.00

13,100.00

t250.00
$2,638.00

t943.00
166.67

S!bbLl

Tot l lmprowt Cod.

lt"ro?3?

$olo?5?

Asrmt per Singlo Fffity Equivslent

Singlo Famjly Equivthnt Bsft Units

Tobl Ar.6rMl

$18r3.58

113

90,71,15,1

n.t llMt C6lr lG InrLllMl PLn sd s!ffi ndt E!01

Shod-Tm lnslrlhbnt Plsn h@iou*y @llsot d)

Long-Tm lnslsllmnt Plan (pBi@dy @lltrtod)

Short-Tm lnslrltmnt Plan (@ll€cl€d lhis fsr)
LongFTm lnrbltmnt Pl6n (collebd his tEr)
Totdli.t llffitcottt

$0.00

$25,607.00

$0.00

$1,250.00

l2s^is?J0

ToblAs6gMt
Toblltrp.ffit Cdis

Subtobl
Tobl AElldlo Fmds

Total Funds

Tohl lnttalmt C6t
Cffbirtion8 lrom o[Fr eu@

N€tBahn@

,20,744.U

G33,297.671
($t2,5s3.13)

187,949.m

$75,a96.13
($26,8s7.00)

$48,53S.13

Dl.lrlct Erhne (.unlut lr r; d€fidt l. 0l t1t"53rl3

[rt A.ldmnt Cdcul.Uon
tus.Wnt
Sudus or Dsfrcit (8qpl6 b sbbetod; dslhit i5 add€d)

NstA8!€.wnt

11,,714.51
(11t s39.13)

(tzl,7s.5e)

Aller$ilJdlsrlDsur.Eolsg
NotAlsgMt
Slnglo Fsmily Eqiwlont Bs€fit units

Allo@tod Nst tulMt to Prcporly

(127,73{.59)

lt3
(t2{s.s4

Cong.dsn ot l{.lArsmafld Altdffit
Albc.t d tl€t At.dMt to PropdtY

P.r PrEl Sunl!! (+) or lr€llcil t)

1215.97

lll0.5t
1129.55

Crv or Folsom
LRttoscRprr,rc RND LtcHTtNG Dtsrntcrs
ETGINEER's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

d
SClConsultingGroup

Page 153

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnoe 77

Lmr NlrouA SHoRES - lrsrn-uuetT SUMMARY

Lake NatomaDiririct:

,2:tFlical Yorr:

s97.213:und Balancs 12021)

Short T.rm lndsllmont Summilv

t0t0 g) t0 l0gl t0 l0ohl.:

.ono Torm lndallm6nt SummNrv

s500 $500 $500 $15.000$14.107 s500 $500$1,000

sr50 sr50 $250 M50 $22.000s,l ofl) $2.500 $250Turf Eorlrr[idrlion uDorgds

$t6 000s500 s500 $500 $500st.000 s4.000 $500

ldrslmmanle)

t53.lt ,50 3't.250 ll.250 3{.250 3t.250$.m0 420.607Told!:

CwoF Folsoi,t
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISNrcTS

ENGTNEER's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClconeultlngGroup

Page 154

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 78

4
SClConsultingGroupCnor Folson

LRttoscRptttG Rtto Lteurtruc Dtsrntcrs
EruerrueeR's RepoRt, FY 2021-22

Slefing FUN BCil@ (6 ol M 2021)

Edirmlod R6m lo /lrffio WM. frtd I MAE ol21-22
$152,489.98
($i8,a7.09)

lnprdrmnl C6b

G.mnl lLlnbn.n@ Cott
1. SdEduled
2. UnrdEduled
3. Sl&[ight8

$12,500.m

$10,mo.m

$2,200.m

Sdlc. C6b
4. El€clriel
5. Wats

$7,568.m

$4,500.m

Cumil Yaar lmomMt Pmlacta

6. $15,000.m

Sut{o{d,otllend $l'qmmo
Subtot l l5't,78tIt0

l&l&lue€ts
7. Pol8ebnd swic€s (Endffi's Rspod md lP)

0. Confel ssruicos (dl olh6r @ntreis dd srui@)
9. Publicatons/MtilingE/Communicatons

10. Stall
11. Ovshoad
12. CountyAudjlorFs

$906.m
s,1m,m

Q50.m
s4,325.m

$958.m
$190.tr3

Subtot l 19,737.E3

Tot llmprcFm.ntcotb l6t F0533

A$arndt io Pmrtv (Curdt)

Asaftnt por Singb Fmily Equivalont

Sind€ Family EquivdstBen€lit unitr

TotllA$€.Mt

9121.18
:I37

110"10ru6

Shorl-Tm lnddlmst Plan

Long-Tm lnshilMl Plm

(pdiously @lsbd)
(p@iddy @lleot6d)

(ollst6d his y€)

s,000.m
t1a,0m.m

s.m
U,4m.mLong-Tm lndalkmnt Plsn (@lletod lhis fer.)

lohl lnrhllmdt Cotb l'tzt 100.00

TotdAsffint
Told lmprcwmnt Cods

Subtohl
Totd Avail*ls F6ds

Totd Fwdg
Told lnslallmnt Cost

Csbibllions lrm ohd 9u@
NotBds€

$40,837.66
(sl,505.8:31

($20,660. I 4
' $134,252.99

$113,584.72
($128,400.m)

($r4,8r5.28)

DlrHclB.lfi6 (.urplut lt +;ddclt 1.0) (lll.!lsrlt

l{.1 A${rmt Cddhdon
Assnt 110,l37.66

Surplus or Dolicit (enfur is sblr&ted; delicit is odd€d) $1,115.21

t55,652.91N€lAssnt

355,t52.9{
337

lt65.tl

oty ot Fobom
Lot CoEo! Landluplng rnd Llghtng Dhtlct

Fund 20,1

2021-22

Alloqt d li.iArdrmitto PFBtt
N€tAsffint
Singlo Family EquivC€nt Bdolit unit8

Almtod N6t A5$sMt to Prcporty

CoMdFn ot l{.t AMm.nt .nd Altdimnt
Alloqtld l{rt As6.mnt!o PDpctly

Pd P.rcrl $ry|u. (+) or D.ficlt (.)

(1r65.14)

tl2l.l6
(t13.$)

Page 155

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 79

Los Cennos- lrsnluurHT SUMMARY

Dlrtrlc{: Lor Cenor

,nu.22Flrcil Ycrr:

hd Brlancelm2ll $152.{90

g) tt) g) t0 t0 st0.m0llckrhrnkiwoodmokdberUolrt8 E,(xx)

l3 &0 30 t0 30 l0 t0 llo000fohb:

g) s0 s0 t0 $0 s15.000d-mse@mdt $2,000

Emdd)

slli m0 s0 t0 t0 x0 c0 s54.m0s2,000

$m0 gl g) JO 50 q)

35{n 9.250 s2m s250 $250 u50

s500 t't5.75t) $250 u50 v5n

35m35 m0 r18.lm $1.9m st.$0

t'&0 l,m 12 
'O0

ltlT-00!$2.000 $1t.100

Crvor Folsorrr

LRruoscRprNo nruo LrcurrNc Dsrnrcrs
ENGTNEER'S REPonT, FY 2021-22

Page 156

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 80

4
SClConsultingGroupCwor Fosou

LANDScAPING AHo LIourIruG DISTRICTS

Er'rcrrueen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

olM(s 2021)

mdl$ol2l-22ii.sf E

(p51,n90.48)
($r/,690.56)

noffintC6b

Gan6nl ltlntd.ne Cotr
1. SdEddod $90,gm.m

$15,000.m2.

3.

4.

Unsdlodulsd

Sbdtlighb
lrirgaton

$12,0m.00

$16,0m.m

W6 Cort
5. Elefical
6. Wator

$18,3m.00

$40,om.m

Cunait Yor lmllffin6it Prol6lt
7. Fen6 replMt on Tumpiko $4,560.m

$4,560.mSuildel ol ilffi 7

suHobl ll$,750.00

mld.nbl Co.t

9.

10.

11.

12.

Prchaiond s6ryi@
Conlret SeNicos (d

(Engh6/r Roport and lP)

dhd6ntr&,ls md wi6)
$1,0m.m
s,1m.00

$250.m

$30,067.m

s,58,m
01,119.37

PublirEtiondMailin ggcmm$ieliile
stafl
OwiFad
County Auditor F€

$btotd $9,0543?

lr35"or3?Totll lmpmsm.nt C6b

lt6.mnt to PEetv lcumit)

Asmnt ps Singl€ Feily EquivCst

Sinde Fmit Equiwl€nt Bsoft Unib

Tot lA.sm.nt

$91.70

1,897.23

3173976.36

shod-Tem lnddlmnt Pld (pEviou*y @lstod)
LoneTm lnstdlmnt Plan (pFvioudy 6lletod)
shod-Tem lnsldlrent Plfl (cdlelod ttis yBsd

Long-Tm lnddlMl Plon (oll*ted tti6 yBt)
Tdl ln.hllm.nt Cort!

s0,0m.00
s8,020.00

$0.00

$800.00

112E,Er.00

lh&ict Edrmc
TolCAgwt $173,976.36

(sa5,809.3n
($61,833.01)

' (Pnz,zg.os)
(s0s,587.04)
(9128,820.m)

$0m
($438,407.04)

Totd lmplMtoods
Subtold

To{d Avdlablo Fmdg
Told F$ds

Toid ln{dlmtCct
Conbibutions from ohor s@

N€tBdd@

DLhlclEdm6 (rurplut lt +; d.ficltl.0) (t43sl0ru4)

{.tA..dn$t C.lcul.dd
Affist

'l73,976.16sumlus or Dolioit (erplw is $bb&tedi d€fi.jt i6 addod) 143E,4073{

1612'3t3il0NetA6effil

Clty of Folem
lllioms Stdon Lrndlorplng 8nd Llghting Dlttrict

Fund 207

2021-22

Allqi.d ll.t Atrumitto Pertv
NotAwst
Singlo Fmily Eqlival€nt Bffilil Urils

All@dod N.t Asffit to Prcp6rty

1612,3t3.11)

____!6r.
l3,4jt6

Comudad of l{at Aastmnt md Atsamanl
All6.t d Nlt Ar6.m.nt b PrcF ty
Allocdld tu!0Mtro ProFrV
Pil PrEl $ry|$ (+) d D.frch (-)

(0322.76)

tgr.70
(123t.06)

Page 157

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pncr 81

Nnrom Srlrton - lnsrnlwerr SUMMARY

Distric't: Natoma Station

Ficcal Year: 2021-2:t

:und Balanco 12021) 1s251,590t

Short Term lnstrllment Summan
ABDf,

Tdc
Bd6cl YstY RbYm Ysl Yau, Ys3 Yaa Y.r5 RsiLd

lrdahst Cohdtnr 2Ai zHa 7lJ19 zlvm Nlt

lhnih R.hlmmant-Bhre Reine s2.000 $24.m0 $0 s0 $0 $0 $0 w000

lhrub/Trs RsDhc€menl-TumDike $2.000 $3,000 s0 s0 s0 s0 cto.000

rub Rddaeh€nt-kon Point $2.000 $3.000 $0 $0 $0 s0 s0 s30 000

otrl.: 16.000 $30,000 l0 t0 s0 ll1 t0 t100.000

Lono Term lnslallment Summary

Asror
Trid

Prdd Ysr PrbY€s Ysl Ygrr.5 YAsilo Y.fil{L20 Y.il ZLan Rdid
lndalmnt Cdba:llahr 2ll17 mta ure mm TZt

s10.000 s14.000 $0 $0 $0 $0 s0 $1m,000

for r€Dlac6m€ntsl

$1.000 $1,250 s0 s0 s0 30 t0 $30.000

ell RobaiflPdntind 17800 f6il s20.000 $24.000 $0 $0 s0 s0 s0 23jl{XX

Mini P{k{eDhntino/bart s? 000 s2.800 s0 30 s0 $0 $0 $60,000

o{ks el 112 Nt6\

s500 s20.170 $0 t0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000

$1,000 $18,250 st) s0 s0 s0 s0 s23.m0

s2.000 $2,800 $0 $0 $0 sn s0 s80.000

Shrub R€ple€m6nlTumpike s2 fin s2.800 $0 s0 $0 s0 $0 w,000

Shrub R€Dlaoment-lrcn Point $2,000 $2,800 $0 s0 s{l s0 s0 $45.000

Sidewrll reDair s1.000 $1.250 $0 $0 $0 $0 sn s80 0m

ravd reDla@m6nt/tspair $1,000 sl 500 s0 $0 $0 s0 $0 $80,000

rioetion umrad€s td watd $2,000 $5,200 $800 s800 s800 s800 s800 s58.000

rons€ryation (tud)

rt rcoeir fund $5.000 0 0 ( s100.000

Idt h: 3{4.500 tgil.820 3800 $800 1800 s800 t800 t't,008,000

Grv or Folsou
LnruoscRprruc nruo LteHrtrue DtsrRtcrs
EtrrcrrueeR's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 158

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 82

Sloding Fund B*1@ (a of Aptil 2W1)

EsriD.aed RM to fnde Wtux. N 6 M|Ed2l-22
i219,829.56
(t30,212.26)

CIV of Folrm
thlom Vrlloy L.ndrqplng rnd Llghtng olrblct

Fund 232

2021-22

mpbffit Cortr

c6dd Malnldane C6b
1. Sohodlod
2. UMh€dulod
3. Slr6uights
4. ltrigadon

Sdvka co.tt
5. EleuiEl
6. Wator

$31,'t32.m

$7,s00.m

$500.m

$'t,000.00

$1,500.00

$3,000.00

CurMtYer lmrowt PEIEL
7. lntdix lsdepo redffit lE rcft $10,m0.00

sublbl€iot,Ln 8 $lo$o'00
Subtot l 154632.00

ndddhl Cdt
I Prcf@inalSdhs(EnoiM/rR€portandlP)
9. Cmlret S*i@ (afl olhd 6nf*lr 4d wi@)
10. Rbli@liondL.ldin$/CmniEtoN
11. Slrtl
12 OstHd
13. CMly Audtd F6

Subtot l

Tobl h{Dffit C6tt

s1,m0.m
$3, r00.00

1250.00

$6,858.00

$994.m

t46.61

ll4r{tGl

$6!!03t

Asgmt por Singl€ Fadly EqiEldt
Shgle Family Equivdod BNfit Udtg

lohll!ffit

t856.37
79

$7,4'3,23

nd.llffit cott tdlmt llMlPhndd SlmmPnqtN€l

Short-Tm lnsbilmt Plan (pdioldy @I6tod)
Lom-Tm lNhlhmt PlEn (pBiedy @dected)

Shod-Tm lnsbllMt Phn (cdl€cl€d fi8 ysad

Long-Tm ln8laltndt Phn (oollet6d hi8 fEal)
Tdhl lnsllffit Corb

$0.00

s0.00

t0.00
t0.00

$JO

TolalAKsHt
Tolrl lnprcFmt CGb

Sdtotal
ToblA€ildle Furds

Tolal Fun&
Tolrl lnsdhml Cst
Cmbibolions lrm ofFr ffi

Net Bd6n6

$6i,653.A
066,880.611

$772.62

' $tgg,orz.zg
$190,309.91

$om

$190,3€S.9'l

DLtrlct B.bn6 (.urDl6 lr +; d.lhlt lr 0) l't90,3n.9t

Assmr{ $67,653.23
llts3t9.0t)
(1122,7G6t)

Surpl6 or Doficit (&tpl6 i5 s$tactadj d€ficit i8 addod)

NelAslmt

Allocdod tlot Arrsffit to Prc4ttv
NotAssHt
Singb Fatrtly Equivd€nt Bslit Unlls

Al@t€d NdArffi{b PwrV

(3tz7t3.6ll

6t.5$.At

coMrler ot llrt ABaffit .nd As5tffit
Allqt d Nct A.tqmt lo P.oDslY 11,5a.83

l!56.37

12,4i0.mPsr P.@l Surpl[ (+) or D.f,olt (.)

SClConsulting roupCrvor FoLsoM

LANDScApTNG AHo LtcHrtrue Dtsrntcts
Er,rcrnerR's Reponr, FY 2021-22

Page 159

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 83

Nnromn Vru-LEy - INSTALLMENT SUMitARY

Dirtrict: Natoma Valley

2021.22FiscalYan

t219.830

tlt0 5t l( ItTold!:

s0 s0 50 to $50.0ms5.000 s0 $0

350.000TO l0 30 t0 l0T6bl.: t5,000 lo

Crvor FoLsoM

LRt'toscnprruc eruo Lteurtrue Dtsrntcts
ENGTNEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

4
SClConsultingGroup

Page 160

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 84

Stdling Fund BalanF (* ol Apd 2CQl)

EstiDatod RM to,lron@ ,4Jprcx. tu816 niltEot2l-22
114,690.66

($14,022.80)

mllotlmtCdL

GdddiLlnt nde Cdt
L Sohodlod
2. un$h€di€d
3. Slrsuighb
4. lnlgatm

$7,500.00

18,300.00

$500.00

1675.00

S.rYi6 Corb
5. Elocbi@l $500.00

s4,000.006. Watd

Curdl Ydr lmbv.mt Prolatt
7. No Planmd Pojelg $0.00

SublotdlotieD 6 $0.00

Subtoh! 12,|,175.00

nclddtd Co.b
8. PrclNional SwiB (Engh€is Ropod and lP)

9. Contret Sfli6 {al olh€r conu&b .nd wi6)
10. Publicslionr/Maiingdomrunl@liong
i1. Strfi
i2. owM
13, CounlyAlditorF6

$1,000.00

$1,000.00

1250.00

1600.00

$16.00

$20.65

Subtot l

Tot llilproffit Co.b

t lts35

42436i.65

q..aMt to P.oplds lcrrdtl

Argmt p6r Slngle Family Equivalont

Singl€ Family Equivalent Bsblit Unitg

lot lArsffit

$1,173.86
26.75

lsl,/00.70

nrhllrndt Cdtt (s lnaLllmnt Plan and Summil nut ud

Short-Tm lnBlrllmnt Plan (pr€vlqaly 6lldt€d)
Ldg-Iem ln{rllmnt Pbn (pEviousty @ll€ct d)

Short-fm lnstrlMt Plan (oollet€d his ,ba0
Lsg-Tem lnslalmnt Plon {6lleted 0ti3 }s4
Tohl lnttdlMt C6t

10.00

10.00

10.00

$0.00

$JO

0ldrlc-t Bd.ne
TotalAts€Wnt
Tolrl lmplwnt Cab

Subbhl
Tolrl Awilablo Fun&

Tohl Fmds
Tot l lnsblknst Cct
Conbibulions lm oher eu@

Nel Behns

931,400.76
(024,361.65)

$7,039.11

$667.86

$7,706.96

t0.00

$7,706.96

l?,?06.$

l{d Artdmdt C.lcul.Uon

Alsmt l3i,100.?6
SuFlus or D€licit (selus is subbetod; dolicit i8 addod) (t,7069€)

12l,693.7sNetA!ffist

Aloet d lLl tue.Mt to Prostv
ta,6s3.79

n
$t5.75

dty of Folsm
PMpect Rldg. LrndHplng rnd Lllhdng Dlltiat

Fund 285

20o1"22

NetAssgnfft
Slnglo Family Equivalsnt Ben€lit units

Al@tsd N€t Asffint to Prcpsty

Comdrhon ol l{at Attdmdt fid AaslMt
(tl,ls.?q

l'1,'173.16

l2lt.tl
Allocdod A$€rmnt to Prop.rty
P.r P.r6l Srrplu. (+) or o.lhlt (-)

Crvor Folsou
LANDScAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICTS

EruerruErn's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

-

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 161

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 85

Pnosprcr RIDGE - lttstlttuem Summnnv

Proroect RidoeDistdct:

Fbcal Year: m21-n

s14691Fund Balance (2021)

IIt t0 30 t0 gt l0ohl!: l0 l0

Lono Tenn lnltallment Summary

$ $l30 i0 t0 l0 t0Tohh: t0

Gwor FoLsoM
Llruosclprrue nND LGHTTNG DtsrRtcrs
ENGTNEeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

Page 162

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pncr 86

Clty ot Folem
Prdrh Ortt Rrnch Ltndtcrplng rnd Llghdng Dltt lot

Fund 236

2021-22

qrsMtto P.oslvlcuMt)

Alsgmt pd Singlo Fadly Equivalenl

Singlo Famiv Eqlival€nt BsFfit Unlls

lohltu.dMl

$213.61

918.63

l'190,22t.ss

mbllmtC6lt (s h.hllMtPhn rnd S{lmry ndtHol

$r 17,200.00

Ld{-Im lBhllmt Han (pdiddy cdst6d)
Shod-fsm lnlhllmt Plsn (cdl4ted his )s)
LoU-Tm lNlallmnt Plan (@llootod hls yer)

ToU ln.ldlmt Co.t

097,711.00

$0.00

$.m

-i{sitJo
ll*lct Bdrno

Tob Aeffint
Toblltrpwtcot8

Subtotd

TohlAwildle FunG
TotrlFwG

Tobl lnstdkrHt CGt
ContibuljoN fiom olhd s4@

Nst Balan6

t196,228.56
($297,290.99)

($101,062.44)

6s46,460.s6)
(t647,522.99)

(9214,911.00)

t0.00
(s862,433.39)

(1102,130.99)

ldAssmilCddhlon
AssHt
Slplu8 or Dofcit ($plus is gSfactsd; dslhit i8 addod)

NolAlloffit

1,l98,221.55

$62,133.99
11,05E,682.55

Alloeted il.t tut4mt to ProBrlv
NotAewt
Shglo Fmily Equivalont Bftfit Unlts

All@l€d Net AssgMt to Prcpody

tl,05t,a62.55
019

tl,l52.{,{

non(6 ol 21-22
SMng Fund 8rk@ (s (t458,829.72)

(t87,6s0.83)

mrcEffitCoaL

Gdtrd iLlnt nr6 Cotb
1. s*eam
1. UnstEdul€d

i. sr*$gttg
?. tnlg.ton-Part"

S.rvl6 CdL

-
5. Emmt.6. 

waur

9137,395.00

920,000.00

15,000.00

$10,000.00

$4,250.00

156,500.00

curHt Ysr lmoroffit Prohait
f N"pl""t"dp'"F. t0.00

Subloldolttenl 30"00

Subtohl

ncldqtC cott
t. prctesdone SfliH (Emie/s R4ort dd lP)

!. ConbetsoNis(allofHmh*tssdsi@)
''10. Puul€lions/Maithgs/cmmunkplion8
?. sun
1:. owtsa
13. coulyAudlorFe

tz'3,115.00

$1,000.00

03,100.00

t2m.00
$54,858.00

t4,396.00

t541.99

Subbhl

Tot l lmproffidt Cod.

$1,145.99

ln?,a.90

conudsn ol llot Asqrffit.nd Aa.gMt
Alo€t d illt Arffiqt to Pnpqry
Albcded turdmt io Ptopctty

Pd Pil6l Slnlut (+) or lHiolt (-)

(11,152.14)

1213.6'l
(lsl ta)

Crvor FoLsoM

LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTNICTS

ETcTNEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 163

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 87

PRlrnre Onxs Rnncx - hsnlttuelT SUMMARY

District: Prairie Oaks Ranch

Fircal Year: 2021-27

:und Balsnce (2021) ($45E,

Short Term lnriallment Summarv
ADD.o[.

Toac

Prrk{ Ydnt FbYm Ysl Y8az Yd3 Ysa Ys5 RdiIU
lGb&nn Cobc{dl3 m1t zl't8 zlls mm m21

:dce Rsair/Rsbcement $20,000 579,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000

li2 fqce=5000 fst)

$10,000 $12,500 $0 s0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000

Fsce Paintinq $20,000 $25.000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 s100.000

Totrls: 150,000 s111.200 50 l0 90 fl) $0 $t00,000

Am
Td

ftobd Ysly PrbaY6 Yst Ym Zrl Yes5-'10 Yd! i(F20 Yors zGgl Rdld
lnairfrEit cokrilro m17 20tE 2019 mm 2n21

Wall Repair/Repaint $20.00{J $30.i1 1 s0 $0 $0 50 $0 $116.000

fstl

F€nce RBmir/Rshc6mmt $'10,000 $'12,500 s0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150,000

l112 filcs=5000 fst)

$5.000 $7,500 $0 50 50 50 $0 $112.500

$10,000 s12.500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 5147 500

lrq Pdnt Landsapino-Fpl*s s1.000 $1,500 $0 $0 50 $0 $0 $30.000

Bluo Ravine LfldffiDino{@leo $5,000 $7,500 s0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000

$2.000 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 s0 $0 s36.00u

$20.000 $22,500 50 $0 $0 $0 $0 $150.000

Iot!l!: 173,000 $7,r11 50 tlr l0 $0 l0 5792,000

Crv or FoLsoM

LRruoscRprruc Rr,to Lteurtruc DrsrRtcTS

ErucrrueeR's REpoRr, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 164

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnor 88

of AN2Ul)
q|pox. M I nwba ol2l -22

$64,011.30
(t4,071.28)

Clty of Fol&m
Th. R6ld.n6 ATARC (O* Av.) bndtc.plne.nd Ughdno Dl.trlcl

Fund n1
m21.22

nmmfrt C6h

Gsnl khLn.no Cdb
L SdFd{lod

2. UGdbdul6d

3. Sta{ightg
4. lnigsdfi Parb

S.rvlo Cd
5. Elefidl
6. Wald

Cumt Yc lm!ffini Proldta
7. Lailhcflo €pbdffit

$1 1,900.00

03,000.00

s1,500.00

01,200.00

$700.00

13,300.00

Sub{od ofneD I

i4,000.00

0dm0!o
115,600J0Subbt l

nclt ntal Cdb
8. Pmt diml SoryiG (EngiHis R.pod and lP)

9. ConMswL6(allottr@nh*sndwi6)
.|0. Publididdl,hilingrioommni*ion8
l'1. sbf
12. ovodEd
13. CountAudlldF6

9500.00

91,550.00

1125.00

$r,850.00

$1m.00

010.03

Slhtot l

Totd hprffisl c6lt

T,r15.03

lrr"fi5.o3

Affitpd Sidde Family Equiv6hnt

Shdo Famly Equihknl Eon ft Udb

Ril-A6Mt

To&lAttamnt

$536.67

17 -----Siril,

19,l2tl0

n.ldlmt Cdlr le ln.ldlmnt Ph ftd Sumd nul m)

Short-Tm lr**Mt Phn {pdiody o{drd)
Lono-Tm lnblM Phn (pabldy cdl6cbd)

Shod-Tm lmb$ffil Phn (otelod hb ysr)
Long-Tm lrhlda{ Phi (cdl@hd tlis yir)
Tdrllirtdlffit Co.it

$13,000.00

12,000.00

$46,000.00

t1,000.00 _
ta2,0o0.m

TodA6lml $,'r23.39

Totl lmpffil CdB
s$ttrl

(u9.815.03)

(Q0,$1.64)

Tod tuaLbl6 Fun&
Tobl F!n&

Tod lmHlffitcd
Cofbuliffi fom o(tr $ur6

Nsl 8€hne

' sg,eto.oz
$39,278.38
(S2,ooo.oo)

t0.00

w2,u.02)

Dlrtrlct 8.hnc. (rqrDls b +; d.fl.lt b 0) ll4n1s4

{i Affint C.kulild
Affit 9,r2trs
SuDlh or tMdl (eml6 b ebtetod; dddl it add)
NetAsrffil

,22,7H.82

t8l,Llt 0t

AlddilttutGsstbPffitv

Th. Rsldnd n ARC I

N.IAffiMI sr.lr5.0l
Sido F mily Equinl€nt g.nofrt Unils

Alloo|bd N6l Affil lo Plopdty

17

tl,c'121

cmHd.ff ol lld A..dMI and ,l.grMt

Th. Rdld.i6 d ARC I

Albcld ilt Atffit !o Pop.rtY
Alb.ld ABnnt to ProFilY
Pr P.@l $.plut (+) q l,.ndi (')

($'m20
1538.67

(fl,336.57)

Cnvor FoLsoM

LnruoscnptruG RND LTHTtNG DtsTRtcTS

ENGTNEER's Rgponr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 165

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 89

Tnr ResroercEs AT ARC - hsraluue HT SUMMARY

Distric't: The Reridences at ARC

Fircal Year: 2021-22

:und BalanF 120211 984,044

Short Term lnltallment Summarv
Am-
Tdt

Pl*d YgTT RbYm Ya2 Yds Y6a Ys5 Reoftd
lmh&n€.{ Colocdom m7a m19 2iJiD 2j}21

n ell ReDair/ReDlmgment {770 ft} s2.000 $19,000 s't 000 sl.000 s1.m0 s1.000 $20,000

$2,000 s19.000 $1.0m $1.000 $1,000 $1,000 si m0 520.0m

fotsl!: Iil.000 338.000 12,000 12,000 12,000 32.000 t2.000 i40.000

Lond Tm lndellment Summarv

Amt.
Td

rod YdlY ftbYm Yd Y.n25 Ymfllzt YsnXlg, Rmtld
lBtatnctt Co|a&ra m1a a,l9 2iJin ?fi21

fho Rolld.ncc at ARC

raind€ Swal€ ReMir $1,000 $4,500 s500 $500 $500 $500 $'t0,000

,ndseem/lridrlion 3r.000 t4.500 $500 ssfl) s500 s500 s500 sr5.0m

fotal!i 32.000 t9.000 41.000 11,000 $1,000 3t.000 t{.000 325.000

Crvor Fosolrr
l-ANDScAptNc Aruo Lrcrrrrue DtsrRtcrs
Er,rcrrurrn's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

E!5
SClConsultingGroup

Page 166

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnor 90

(a $64.044.30

(15.224.80)

Cltyof Fol.on
Th! Rdld.nc6 AARC ll (Folrom.Aubum Blrd) L.nd.crplng .nd Llghtlng Dl.ttlct

Fund 21 'l

n21'2

[!$amtbPffi{Cum0

Affit ps SirElo FmU EquiEhnl

singls Fai{ly EquiEloil Bffifit Uiilr
R6 2-Atoamt

Tilltulammt

s1,169.97

t0 --JfiFrc?o

ifi,56.70

n.hlltrit C6b (e hfillMlPhn and sunmrdnd[6)

Slprl-Tm lnlbllml Phn (pBi@*y cdlodod)

Long-Tm lnb*nfil Phn (pBiqdy @Iet6d)
Shod-Tm lndslFnl Phn (@ll$1od tli8 yd)
LonFTm lFblhnl Phn (cdlstod $i! y6D

Tot lln.LllmlCodr

135,000.00

il3,000.00
12,000.00

11,000.00

l5l,oul.lxl

)lrfid Bd.no
ToblA6Ml
Tobllnpffil CBli

slbhhl
Tob Awldl€ Fundg

Tohl Fun&
Tohl lmblffit C6t
Conbibuuonr fqn otm fl@

N€l 8eM

$11.699.70

{129,810.90)

618,11r.20)

$58,819.50

340.70S.30

651,000.00)
90.00

(llo,ai.7o)

DhH6l grl.ncr (srplu. k +; d.ticit lt 0) tll0,rrl.?0)

$rAf,lrrln$dsuel
Affil
surptB or Dofidt (apk6 ir rlbhcbd; d€fdt b addod)

NstAffil

ifi,6s.70
110,291.70

l2'1,991.(l

Alldld IdAB$mntbPrM

Th. Raid.'E rt AnC il

NotAffil
Shgb Famity Equinlont B$dl tints
A!@bd Not Affil b Proporty

l2t,99t.alt
l0

12.$0.11

mpffiilCdb

SdFduLd

Un.dbdulod
St6tighh
Itrhalion P{tB

il'1,900.00

s,000.00
11,500.00

0,l,200.00

Sanlca Cd
5ffit
'0. w*s

s700.00

s,300.00

Cod Y{r lmdffint PrcLdt
7. bnaco4o rqbdmnt $4,000.00

----F.oomoSffiofh8
Subtotrl

trcldrihl Cd
t. *oterlomtswia (En!ir$/s Red and lP)

!. com seryloa (alt ots trffi and wic6)
10. P(blicalioEA,hitEdoommuni6liom
1r. sw
12. ov*ea
13. coulyAldtorF6

Suhobl

T.Ll tnpmit C6b

125,600.m

t500.00

l1,550.00
t125.00

91,850.00

$1m.00

s5.90

l12l0s

l?l"ll0$

Conrdd ol lld A.rghdt dd fulamil

Th. R6ldd6 n ARC I
Allqt d tl.t A.ffit to Proprty
Alldt dA.smdtbPEFty

6ar$.r1)
ll,t69.g7
(fl,oa.r7)Pr Pr6l SurCr. (.) or D.ai.lt (.)

Crv or FoLsoM

LRruoscnptrue RND LTcHTtNG DtsrRtcrs
ErucrNren's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 167

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 91

Tne ResroercEs ATARC ll- hsmlwrNr SUMMARY

ltDlstric't:

:lic.l Ycrr: m2t.n

;r'd Rehn^a ltitll s54.044

Th. Rald.nd dARCll

sl m0 s1.flt0 s!.000 $1.fi)0 $1.000 $15,000$2.000 $12,000

st5000 s1.m0 $1.m0 $1.000 $1.o{ru $1.WU $15,0m$2.000

90m j,m0 3jt m0 330.t100g.m0 127.000 12.m0 42.0m

Lono Torm lnrtrllmant Summen

Ih. R-ld.n6 .t ARC ll

$.10 tYx)sd 500 s500 $500 $500 $tt{J0 $t00,ineoe Swele R@dr $1.000

s6n0 s10 0ms1 000 $4.500 $500 s500 $50u $500mdsaD€/lriqatim

3t m0 t.l-0m t1.0m tl.m0 :t.txto $0.m0fohl.: il.m0 $.m0

Crvor FoLsoM

LANDSCAPING Aruo LrcnrIruO DSrNrcrS

ENGTNEER's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClGonsultlngGroup

Page 168

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 92

Sltliry Futd UM (6 ol Ayil m21)

Errind{odRsmtoiim qpu. 66'6 nonas ol 21-22
$1m,479.31

s0.m

gty ot Fobm
Slly.rbEok Lrndtqpln! md Llghdng Dlttrlct

Fund 237

2021.22

mffiitCab

O.Nal frlnbnmo Cod.
Sdbdulod

Uftdreddod
Sk6Uidt!'
ldgalion Prtr

$,r55.m
01,500.m

9,|,200.m

9.|50.00

$relc. Codt
5. Eldti(,'
6 $rabd

9500.m

$500.m

Cumit Y.[ hlrmnait PrelGtt
6. LED Ma*rn 010,000.m

$onooioSuHotd oflld 7

il$r0o8slaohl

ncld.rhl Corb
7. Pofo.bid Sfli(s (Endmode R6pod nd lP)

8. Contsts€flis(dotH@niehildsvis)'
9- Pul*catjondMrlin0./CmmunkEliong

10. Stalt
11 Owtud
12. CounlyAudihr F6

9'1,000.m

$,lm.m
s50.00

91,065.m

0254m
$7.17

S{baot l

ToLl lnprommt cod.

lqTtl?

94.Ttln

bsmilb Pmrty {Cumn0

Affint por gnglo F.mily Equiwloit
Singls Fmity Equivd6nt B6n6fit Unite

Totlhit
I
00.00
13.84

$00

nrbllmnt Plan ceL ln lnrhllilnt Phn rnd smd rot !d)

Shdt-Trm lnstdkndi Phn (Fdioudy col*hd)
tong.Tm lMtdlnst Plan (Feiously@iloot d)

Shod-Trm lnstdlMt Pld (6ll6tod hb yot)
LongtsTm lmldknfft Plan (@l&ted hi8 t!t)
Toi.llnftlln ntcorb

$.00
s7,0m.00

00.00

s.00
5r,0m.0

Totd Awt lo Flp€.ty
Totd lmFoMdt Co€t8

Subtotd

Totd AvdaHo Funds

Told Fun&
Toid lnEtdlmdt Co.b
Contibulion8itom otw &u@

N6t Bdd@

$m
1l'2.731.1n
lv,731.ln

' $m.tlg:t
$79,748.14

($7,0m.00)

$m
in,74€'.14

Dhtlct 8.hn6 ({Dlu. L +; dJiclt lr 0} @r1Ln

{.1Arwdt Calclhlhn
AgMt
Surds tr D€fdt (&rds is sbha.hd; dofioit is addod)

N€iA!ffiI

s.@
l.,2llt.11t
(122,to.11)

Alocrtd fidAs.ffiitio P@ft
N6tAffit
Siin0lo Fmity Equivdont 8.nofil UIitB

Alb@bd N6t AMt lo Prop6.ty

(t22,7{t.14)
'lll

6rs0.ls)

Comdon ol I.l AsBmnt .nd Aaffit
Abc.t.d il.t Aa..mnt to Prcf.d!
Aloat d A.Fmntto Ptop.tty

P.r PrEl 6urplo. (r) ot D.flcit (.)

$s.L
IO

tl1.ll

Assessments will not be levied for 2021-22

Crv or Folsoru
LANDscAptNc AND LGHTTNG Dtsrntcrs
EruerruerR's REPoRr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 169

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 93

SrlveRsnoor - hsrn-werr SUMMARY

SilverbrcokDistrict:

Fbcal Yerr: m21.2t)

Fund Balance (2021) 5102.479

Short Tem lnstallment Summary

I0 $ l0 t0Iohl!: t0 t0 l0 l0

Lono Term lnrlallmsnt Summaru

$0 $0 s0 $0 $0 $150.000lr8dian Relandscaoino s5,000 $57,00u

Ilt II 30 t0 t0 it50.000fohh: 31000 557.000

Crvor FoLsolir
Lnruoscnprrue eND LTGHTTNG Dtsrntcrs
ENGTNEER's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SGlConsultlngGroup

Page 170

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 94

gj/,ilng Fund Balan@ (6 of AUil 2021)

€siimlBd Rosm lo,imn@ qprcx. tt 16 MlEof 2l-22
s87,508.24

($10,841.06)

hEeEEq!-ged!

Ofrdd lAlnt n.ne Cotll
1. Sdrodjod $'r1,000.00

i5,000.ct
01,250.00

16,000.00

2. Unelpdrled
3. Sbstight!
4. ltrigaljo Pldr

Sadlca cortr
5. El€ctd@l

6. Wator

02,000.00

03,750.00

corMt Yor lmrowffil ProleL
7. F6n6r€pla€muT6wo* $'t3,000.00

Subbtd ol ll4n 7 $13,000.00 _
$2,000 00Subbt l

brlllEu.Cll!
8. Pol6limal Ssvl63 (EngiM/8 Reod and lP)

9. Cont&t Sqvl@3 (all oho. oobmts and sNi$)
10. Pddietssn4ailing8/Cmubalions
11. sbfl
12. owt$d
13. ComtyAudibrF6

01,000.00

$3, 100.00

1250.00

s3,709.00

1477.00

$683.00

Subiotj $,11r.00

Tohl lnprowMt Codr $54rlltio

tusnrn ps Slngh Farfly Equiwlenl
Shgb Fadt Eqiwlst B€mfit Unit8

TobltusMt

$r57.68
154

t\ zn

lnddlMtCo.b ls lndrllMtPl.n.nd Sunmlry nldm.l

Shqt-lm lnlbllMt Plan (prdiourly @ll€ot€d)

Long-Tm lNlallmnt Plan (p@iody @lltrtoo
SM-lm ln.lrlMt Phn (coll€ct6d lhls !ear)
Lono-Im lnllrlrmnl Plan (@lh.t€d lhls y6I)
Tobl lnddlmt Corb

$68,376.00

$74,000,00

t5,000.00

96,500.00

1ra,r76.00

{st Arsmnl C.laHlon
AsrMt
Swdu or Ddcil (MdB i8 eburcted; delEit i8 added)

NoIAMt

a?/.n2t2
ll0,l,3,O.l0
lla,€3o12

Dldrft:t B.hne
TolrlAffit
Tolalltrplffit Cods

Subtotal

Total Awiloue Fun&
Tobl Funds

Told lnsbllmnl CGt
CmlibutoN from ohq w@

llol 8shn6

924,28,.,72
(051.419.001

(127,136.20)

' lze.eel.tg
$,19,s27.90

{9'153,876.00)

(1104,348.10)

Dl.blotBjil6 (.urplur l.+; d8fion h 0) ($01,3{110)

clg of Folsm
Slmphchro knd$.plne rnd Llghtng Dlddct

Fund 25,|

2@1-22

Alloc{d ild As.tMt io Pm8tv
NolAesmnt
Shgl€ Fadly Eqlitdent 8€neft Units

All@bd NotAffitto Prcp€dy

ti2t,a{.12
151

It35.27

coil.rlsn ol l{d AlsrMt and A'stffit
Alldl.d ihl Ar.aMt !o P,opcrty
Alloc.t d
Pd P.r6l Surtlu. (+) or mt (.)

(1t1t.27)

ll57.6t
(ltt7.5l)

Cwor FoLsoM

LlruoscRptrue nND LtcHTtNG Dtsrntcts
ENGTT,TEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

-

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 171

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 95

SreeplecnasE - INSTALLMENT SUMMARY

Distric{: Steeolechase

Fiscal Year: 2021.22

:und Bahnco (20211 s87.508

Shorl Term lnatallment Summrrv
luol.

T.aC

Pid6d FIbYffi Ysl Ys2 Ys3 Yd5 Rdisd
lruirlndi Cota.6m NT ?o1a 2At9 2'}21

-and$@ Re!lsem€n!Ril6Y $5,000 s20.376 $5.000 $5,000 $5,000 s5.m0 s20.000

endErm-modld and otk $5,0m $7,m0 s0 s0 $0 t0 $0 $25,000

lmove R@ts in od(/reDlse tud s10.000 s15.000 $0 $0 s0 30 s40.0m

fr* Removal (Drkl $3,000 $6,000 st) t0 $0 $0 $0 s12.0m

tolal!: 123,000 3/|8.3?6 15.000 t5,000 t5,000 5.0m t5.000 t97.000

Lono Tam lnstrllment Summan

Amr.
Totd

Ptdd YstY BldY.n Ydl Yen2.5 YmSl0 YmlG20 Y.nrO-T RdrH
lnd*ndt CoMaa ni 2018 ,o19 7m1

iend R6bldement-Rilev $2,500 sc 500 s2.500 32.500 $2.500 $2.500 31 5m s25 (m

s2.500 $4.500 w s0 s0 $0 $0 $30.000

Sionils Rooair/R€Dlff emont $5,m0 s7.000 30 $0 $0 s0 38.000

movate turf in mini-sk $10.000 $19,000 s2.000 s2.000 $2,000 $2.m0 $2,m0 s/|I) 000

sr.000 $4,000 $1,m0 st 0m sl (m )m s't.000 $8.000

frm & lsdsam imlrovemilts $1,000 s4.000 $1.000 s1.000 $'1.000 tm0 s1 m0 s8.000

(or r€ola€mtrts)
fobh: 322.000 t18,000 18.500 t6.500 t6.500 t6.500 16,500 t't't7,000

Crv or Folsou
LRrrroscRprruc nND LTcHTTNG Dtsrntcrs
ErucrruEen's Rrponr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 172

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnce 96

@,289.80
($4,060.26)

mpMantCob

@t!Li$!$E-serts
L SdEdded p,750.m

$1,500.m

s00.00
$50.m

2. Unsh€dulod

3. StEtights
4. lnjgaliqPdto

S.rvi6ffi
5. gebid
6. Watlr

s25.m
s860.m

Cumnt Yor lmwmnt Prohct
7. T@rplffit $,000.m

sul/IotdoltlffiT ---EmJo
$rbtot l lla?roo

ogCrfitg&
8. Prct6*)nd Swi6 (En{ino€i's Ropod sd lP)

9. Conbetsfli6(allofsmLdsadwi6)
10. Publi@ton8lMdling./cmmwielions
'11, stEff

12. Owhord
13. CostyAuditorFe

$r,000.m
s,100.00

u50.00
s't,056.m

sr74.m

014.75

S{Hobl

Tolll lnp@d.nt Cob

15,5S.75

t?"l6ars

Iturruntto Pro$du lcuMtl

AssrMl por Singlo Fmify Equivdsnt

sh0h Fmly Equivdflt Boretit Uniir

Tot lA.tsmnt

s63.68
x

lrprzoo

n.tdlmt C6b b$ lnrtllmit Pl.n .rd Summil mxt oe)

Shod-]€m lnddkrffit Plm (p@iNCy odlstod)

Long-Tom ln8lCkffit Pla (pFviouCy oolleted)

shod-Tsm lnddhmt Plan (coll6'tod his yor)
Long-Tm lnstdhffit Plil (@ll€ct6d hi8 tsd)
Tobl lmbllmst co.b

$0.m
$7,758.m

$0.m
$1,1m.m

$1,!58-Oo

)btid&h6
ToldAMt
Totd lmprcmt Cod6

Subiotd

Iold Availd€ FuMg
Told Fund6

Iotd lndalmnl Cdt
Contibulim lrcm ohs $u@

N€l Bdd@

s.G2,m
($17,868.75)

{$,776.75)
' ire.229.5a

19,452.79
($8,S5S.m)

0694.79

Dlttrlct tuhn6 (&dr lt r; d!tut lt 0) 3sr.n

l.tArdmntCiculdd
Asgmnl 19,119200

$591.?91

t6,197.21

suptus q DsfKit (edus is sbfadod; dofdt i6 addod)

N6lAffimnl

Alldtd ll.tAtd.mnt to Pro*rtt
N6lAffit 16,19t.2t

E
SB9.t0

CitY ot Fdem
$om Elt tlt Lrndrqplng and LJghdng Dldrlct

Fund 231

2021.22

Shgh Family Equivdst Bomlit Unit6

N@dod N€l Ae8mnt b Prcpqty

ComErLd o, lld Alutmit rd A.tdMi
Alhc.t d lLt A$arMt b PrcFny
Alhc.t dA[a.mitlol@
P.r P.rc.| Sunl6 (+) q D.frclt (.)

(t3o.lo)
sF3,€6
l23t9

CrYor Forcou
LRruoscnprruc RND LTcHTTNG Dtsrnrcrs
ENGTNEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClGonsultingGroup

Page 173

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnoe 97

SrnRl Esnres - lnsrnluurlTSUMMARv

District; Slena Estates

Fl.c.l Yarr: m21-t2

:und Balancs (2021 $22,2W

Iol|l.: t! l!

Lono Term lnrtrllment Summarv

52 158 $500 s5m s500 3500 t500 $s.m0$500

$100 $200 $l 0u st00 $100 s100 s100 s8.000

5500 sl.000 s500 s500 s500 s500 t500 55.000

lor €olmmn0

rl-tm sl_lm 3t-t00 3t-tn0 tzt.000fohb: $.tm t3.356 $,r00

Cwor Forcom
LRr,rosceprruc Rruo Lrcnrrne DtsrRtcrs
Er'rcrNeeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClGoneultlngGroup

Page 174

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnoe 98

EdinCed Rsem lo /tM@ wox. tuC 6 nwillF olzLn
(aotN2ul) ($156,417.79)

([6.820.78)

Clty ot Fdem
Willow Ooet Etlirr E rt Lrndsplng md Llghdng olrtict

Fund 2il0

2021-22

Aurmd b Prosrtv {Cumnt}

Asw{ p6r Singlo Fmity Equivd€nt

shglo Fmly Equivdst Bqetit Unil8

Tot lArurmnt

$00.40
747

160,05E.4

Shod-Tm ln{dlMt Ple (pr*ioudy cdlstod)
Lmg-Tm lnstClMt Pl' (pFvioudy ooll€ctod)

Short-Tm lnddlmt Pltr (6llel6d hi8 yd)
Long-Tm lNtdlmt Plo (coll€.1€d his t6{)
Toi.l lnrtdlmnt C6b

s.m
s4,m0.m

s.m
s.m

l3l/000.00

il.trlct Bd.6
Totd AssEnt
Totd lmprcwntoods

Subbtd

Totd Avaldlo Fundg

TolC Funds

Iotd lnddmt Coet

Conbibulions lrcm otEr su@
Nal Bdm€

$60,068,80

{e5,m0.ml
s5,068.80

' ($lrz,ess.szl

($rm,$e.z)
(F4,om.m)

($'r36,839.r/)

Dlrtrlqt BrLnc. (.urplo lr +i d!ficit lt 0) (tls"i3s?0

{.t A.tamt C.l{l.0on
AsMt
Surphs or D6lioit ($rplu5 is sbh&l€d; dof.il i8 6ddod)

N€tAwFnt

$0,056.0
lls,li!.17
Its,l$.5'

lmoffitC6b

Gd.nl lralntailno C6b
1. SdFdulod
2. Un$dul€d
3. stH[ight6
4. lnigaliq

$0.m
$o.m
$0.m
s.m

S.dlo Cotb
5. Elet id
6. lvator

$i0,om.m
$15,0m.m

Cumt Yqr lmruamnt Prol.ctt
7. Nodilnodprcirts 9.m

&,blofe, ot ftM 7 SIO
&hotll $5,m0.00

biled..CerE
L Poladqd Swi6 (Enlinei's R6pod dd lP)

9. Conh&t Sflic$ (a[ ous onlrds ild $Ni6)
10. Publi€liotiMaitngsrcommuni@tong
,l1. 

Stsf,

12. owhod
,l3, CountyAuditorFs

S.m
s.m
s.m
s.m
S.oo
$0.m

$ho||l

Tobl lmFwm.nt C6b

91.00

t spooJo

$$,s.''
f17

D63.SE

Allqtld tht A$6.n.nt to Proorrtv
NotAwmnt
Snglo Family Equivdflt Bffilit Units

Allocat6d Net Asmnt lo Pmpsrty

comqdron ol l{d Atr..mfft .rd Arsmdt
Alhatrd l{.t Attdm.nt b Prut rty
Albodld Alsmil to Prc?diy
P.r P.rc.| s{nlut (+) or D.ficit ('}

(l2a.5e)
14.40

(lr13.lo)

Crvor Folsom
l-ANDscAptNc AND LrcHTtNc DtsrRrcrs
Erucrrueen's Reponr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 175

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 99

Wllow Cneer Esreres Elsr- lrsrn-urenr Suuumv

Willow Creek Eetatee EastDistrict:

Fhcal Year: m21-22

ts1 55 ,Fund Balanco (2021)

nl x0 cl t0 30 30fotlb: l0 l0

Lond Tern lnrtallmenl Summarv

s0 s0 530.m0endscaoe Reolmments-O* 91.m0 s3.000 $ l0 $

sn s{l s0 560.000andsca0e Reol*meil.Blue t1.000 $3.000 t0 $0

avlne

s0 s0 50 s{l 325.000rioation Rooairs,/uoomds $1.000 s3.000 $0

4 conlroll€al

s0 s0 st) 50 s0 s80.000$2.000 $6,000

lorHl*emnt)

s0 s0 30 l0 l0 s70.000-md3ceoe,llrioalion molea/oak st.000 53,000

s3.m0 $0 $0 s0 t0 s0 $30.000tl.{rco
loanidl

s13.000 $0 s0 $0 30 30 $17.00051.000

{or r€olacom€nts}

t8-m[ t3a,00D l0 l0 t0 30 t0 $tzo0Toblr:

Avsnm madian

Cwor Folsot't
LRruoscRprNo nruo LrcHrrrue DrsrRnrs
ENGTNEER's RrpoRr, FY 2021-22

-

SClGoneultlngGroup

Page 176

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnoe 100

gelkg Fund BahM (N ol Aptil 2021)

Esti?rdddRsffi to ltuffi awrox. tusl6 nwtlad2l-22
$1A,G!4.47

{$32,955.S)

Clty of Folrcm
WillowCErk Edrts. Ertt llo.2 Lrnderplng rnd l.lghdng Dhtict

Fund 20,1

2021-22

Arstmnt io hoBrtv lcudnt)

Arsrynilt per sinde Fmily Equivdent

Singlo Fsily Equivahnt Bffilit Units

Tot ltu.a.mdt

s9.53
741.46

rt\tEt !,

lnddlMtCdt (c lnrt llm.ntPlm.nd Slmmil n.dq!.)

Shod-Tm lnstdlmnt Pln (previoudy 6l6tod)
Long.Tm lnstdLnent Plan (p@iously @ll6iod)

Shod-Tm lnslClMt Pla (@[oc,lod this yer)
Long.Tm loddhEnt Plan (6ll€obd 0tis Far)
Tot llmt llmntcod.

9.oo
S.oo
9.m
s.00

9JO

Dlrtdct Bftnc!
Told Aw6nt
TotallmplwntCdb

Subtolal

TotslAvddle FMds

lotd Fsdg
Told lnddlmntCGt
Cfilributions lrom otEr w@

N€t Bdfi€

$73,797.m
($192,r/5.00)
(ti18,9r/.98)

' $go.oze.gl
(cs,rrr.44)

t0.00

$m
($28,299.44)

(1il,r!4{1)

N.tAsd.MtC.lluhffon
ArwEnt
su.plc q D€fEit ($rplus is ebtel€d; d€lidt is add)
NotAswnl

f'q79.02
128,2S.14

lroao96.16

lmmsmnt Cotb

Ganml Malnbnpo Coda
'l Sdloduled

2. UnsdEduled

3. StEtliqhts

$39,800.00

0m,000.m
$20,000.00

S.dl6 Cob
4. El6triql
5. Wats

$9,000.00

$9,300.m

Cumnt Yar lnpp.mrii PrclFb
6. 916 Reim lrcnlago lddspdmonumnt ig0s $75,000.00

$ispm!0Suhdal ol ltffi 7

Subtotd ll7:t,'l00.00

lmld.ntl Corb
7. Prcfeiond Sili@ (Engin€/s Repod and lP)

8. Contrert S6ryi6 (dl olh€r onbels and sryi6)
L PublicdionslMriling€rcomunioatjon8

10. Stalf
11. Ov6doad
12. ComlyAldito.F€

01,0m.00

u,lm.00
e50.00

$13,789.m

E,@6.m
s440.m

Subt t l 119175.00

Totlllmpumdt Corb lt14r'sJo

1102,0$.16

_____J!-
3,l37.70

Alloqtld il.t A$rumnt to ProErlv
NotAwont
Singh Fmly Equivabnt Bmfil Units

Allocded Not A$@Ml lo Prcp€dy

comildtd of ll.t A$otm.nl.nd Atumd
Alloebd N.tAndrmnt b ftop.rty
Allc.tld A..6rMt b Prcp.dy
P.r Pr6l Surplw (+)or lr.ficlt (-)

(l'r37.?o)

iE .53

(13t 14

Crv or Folsol,t
LRr,roscnprruc RND LtcHTtNG DrsrRrcrs

ENGTNEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

4
SClConsultingGroup

Page 177

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 101

WLlow Cneex Esrnres Ensr No. 2 - hsru-meNT SUMMARY

District: Willow Greek Estates East No 2

Fimal Yaar: m21.n

Fund B€hncs (2021) s123.634

Shoil Torm lnltallment Summarv

gl t0 g,loblr: to t0 t0 l0 l0

Lono Term lnrtellment Summarv

gl gl l{l s0 t0obla: t0 l0 l0

Ctwor Folsom
LRruoscRprr'rG Rt,to Lteuttrue Dtsrntcrs
EruerrueeR's Reponr, FY 2021-22

SClGonsultingcroup

Page 178

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pree 102

s/.oding Fnd Balil@ (6 ol M 2021)

EdirEted RM fo itmm Wox M 6 nwbB ol 21-22

s53,714,A
($71,738.92)

Oty of Foltom
Y$llowcmk Efitr! South Lmdtcrplng rnd Llghdng Dltttlot

Frnd 25il

m21.2.

Awnilt por Single Fmily Equivdont

Singlo Fmily Equivdont Berelit Units

Tot lA$smit

$1@.88

1,461.98

lr6oeaz$

nabllmnt Cab lK lBtdlmnt Pls.d Sunmil ndt lsl

Shod-Tem lndalmnt Plil (p@ioudy cddt€d) $0.m
si9,0m.m

s.m
$15,0m.m

Lon!-T6m lnddlmt Plan (p@ioudy @llodod)

(cdle,tod lhis y€{)
(@il*bd lhio y€ar)Long-Tom lndalmnt Pls

Tohl lEbllmd Colt s01,000.00

)b&lcl 8.Ln6
TotdAffit
Totd lmFoEmst CodB

Sublotd
Iotd Avdld€ Fund8

Totd Fsds
Totd lndallmnt C6t
Conhibuliom tom olh€r suG

N6l Bds€

$160,642.36
($151,3S.5n

w,2n.79
' $ssr.gzs.gz

s91.2,l8.17
($394,0m.00)

sm
$197,218.17

Dldrict 8.hn6 (.urplu. L +; d.frolt b 0) ct$s€c

{.t A86.mnl C.ldldd
Asndt
Surdus or D6ticit (eryls iB sbbad€d; dofcjl is add)
N€tAsffinl

1160,6125

64t!,lttl!l
lt50-rzr.60)

Allstld ll.t A$oMl io Prosrtt,
NotAs9s.Ent
Sind€ Fmily Equivdst &n€lit Units

Allo€led N6t Affit to Popody

(42il.323.601

1462

Il171.tt

Cm[d6 ol lLt Arurm.nt .nd Aaaotmdt
All6.t!d iht Arsrmntlo PEpdty
All6.t d A.Bm.ntb PFp.rty
P.r PrE.l $,plu! (+) or D,.ficit (-)

,171.2.

fi0'.08
stst.l0

lmoffitCob

(hnml i,hlnt ilE C6b
1. s**uua
?. Unsdrduled
L shsuiqhts
?. tnigaio

016,210.m

$15,0m.m
g,5m,m

$r0,0m.m

S.dl6 C6tr
5. El*ticd
'0. water

fio,0m.m
$5,0m.m

,lrEdJsrlErl $E!!l.bj!$
7. Sign deign, lr8 ftrk, nd pldling

&rbloHolllM I
SuHot l

ncld.nbl Corlr
t. *otsima swies (Engirw/s R€port and IP)

's. Cotr*tS*elatoUerontadsandwi6)

$25,0m.m

$25,000.m

$35,710.00

10.

h.
12.

R bli*lione/Mailhgs/Comnieliong
Stalf
OHh€ed

$1,0m.00

s.rm.m
u50.m

$4,586.m

s,891.m
$62.57CountyAudibl Fs

Srbtolrl

Tot l lmpmmnt Cotb

lrseaost

ll5t,3$.t

Grvop Fot-sol,t

LnruoscRprtrrG RND LtcHTtNG DlsrRrcrs
ENGTNEER's Rgponr, FY 2021-22

4
SClConsultingGroup

Page 179

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Peee 103

Wr-r-ow Cneex Sourn - lHsrn-lmenr SUMMARy

Districl: Willow Creek Estates South

Fiscal Year: 2021.22

'und tsalance (2021) ri653./14

Short Term lnstallment Summeru
ADdor
Td

Ploircl Yodly PlnYe{s Y6 Yw2 YF Y81 Yet 5 RddrEd
hst*lleni Colhclirls 2014 mm m21

Iotels: It 50 $ t0 t0 l0

Lono Tem lnstallment Summarv

Aodor"
Totd

Poif,t Yeely P'iT Yffi Yd Ym2-5 Ym' Ymlt}zl Ymz&10 RSutr{
lnElatn€nl ColtscLns N 2014 2n zInO m21

StEet Paver reolmement s't.000 $97.500 500 $2.500 500 $2.500 $2.500 s90.000

$1,000 $40.500 $2.s00 $2.500 $2.500 s2.500 $2.500 $30.000

free & landscaDe imomvements $1,000 $15,500 $: 500 $2,500 $; 500 $2,500 $2,500 $30,0u0
(or molement)
/Vall PainUmwerwmh 13500 ftl $1.000 $77.500 500 $2.500 500 s2.500 $2,500 $105,000

Si0naae RetrotruEplmement $1,000 $75.500 $l s2.500 $2.500 s2.s00 $i0.000
(brick and shn)

Silberhom relandscaoino $1,000 $12,500 500 $2,500 $, 500 $2,500 $2,500 $80,000

Totrls: t6.000 t319,000 sll t00 t't5,000 lll t00 5't5,000 115,000 w5,000

Crv or Folsou
LRruoscRptr,to RND LtGHTtNc DrstRtcrs
Erucrrueen's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

SClConsultingGroup

Page 180

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pncr 104

&anilg FMd Bela@ (8 ol M 2U1)
Edimled R@ lo /hffie Wox. tug 6 mnltu of 21-22

$48,542.05
($6,4e6.95)

Clty of Fohom
lvillow Springr Lrndlcrphg rnd Llghtlng Dbbict

2021.22

mmEmilt C6b

Gananl Malntanarc. Cort

't. sdt"dul"d
?. Unsdreduled

3. sueettlghts

8.d16 Cab
?-El""l,i.d
6. watsr

Cumt Y{r lmoMmnt ProLct!
t. LED mnwsion

$0.00

$o.oo

$3,000.00

t6,2fl).00
S.oo

$15,0m.00

Su8(/ldolftffi' $15P00n0
Subtotrl

nold.ntlCob--T-. p.t*i.e s*i6 {Engirecs Repod dd tP)

6. cmtmtseruieldlohdMlrebddsrui6)
6. Publieliona/Mdlhgs/Commni@lions

'to sr*

12/|,z)0.00

\.
12.

OwrlEad
County Auditor Foo

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

s.00
$306.00

$306.03

S!bt6{d l8tt.03

1r4"8i1.03Tohl lmpEmdt C6b

l.s0nmt to Pd.rtv lcumntl

Assnt pq Singlo Famly Equivalont

Sindo Fami' Equivalst Bomlit unib
Tot lAwmant

$28.i4
517

11a,51t.36

lnaiallmnlC6b (rs inrLllm.ntPhn and $rmnail naripeal

Shod-T€m lnddlml Plan (p@iouCy @llocted)

Lqg-Tm lnddmnt Plan (p@idsty @ll€ctod)

Short-T€m lnddlml Plan {6leted this tEar)
L@g-Tm lnEtdmnt Plan (cdletod his!es)
Tot l lmhllmnt Co.b

$1r,500.m
$0.00

$1,mo.m
$0.00

14500.00

Dbtrlcl Erlm6
TotCAffit $14,548.38

(P4,811.03)Totd lmFwmntC6tg
Subtotal

Iotd Avail*lo Fund8

lotd Fund8

Fotd ln6tdlmnt Cct
Conbibutds from olhor $u@

Not Bdre

($10,262.66)

' $lg,zoo.ro
s8,997.45

{$12,5m.00)

s00
P6,197.45

0ldriot 8.1.[6 (.urpl[ L +; d.flclt b 0) caEr3rc

l{.1fu.dm.it C.l@|.!on
Awnt
Surplw or Dolicit ($rptus is sbtetedi dslidt i5 ad&)
Net Affirent

$'r4sE.n
l3az682.OI

62'.134.t0)

Alloqtd t{.t tu.d.ffit b ProBrtr
NotAwmnt
Shglo Failt Equival€nt &nstit Unib

Aleatod Not Awnt 1o Prcpody

62l.134.10r

517

1351.a21

Conpdaon of l{al At$$runt .rd ArtilMt
Alloc.t d N.tArtdrm.ntto Prlp.rty
Alloqt dAsdrMtb Prcp{ty
Pq P.Bl Surplur (+) or lhficlt (.)

tst.12
$It.11
$2.58

Crvor Folsol,t
Lnruoscnprruc RND LTHTrNG DrsTRtcTs

EruerrueeR's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

ffi
SClConsultingGroup

Page 181

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pnee 105

Wrllow Spnncs - hsmuuerr SUMMARv

District: Willow Sorinqs

Fircal Yaar: m21-Xt

Fund Balance (202'1) s4E.542

Short Tarm lnstallment Summeru

ioht oole reoair/reolacement sl 000 s7 500 s1.000 $1.000 s1.000 $1.m0 s 1.000 $45.000

37_500 sl-000 xt_000 s1.000 xt-m0 x1-000 l{5-000foblr: 51.000

Lono Term ln3lrllment Summerv

t0 s0 t0 l0 t0 l0 s0

Crv or Folsoril
l-ANDscAptNG At,to LtcHlt',tc DtsrRtcrs
ErucrrueeR's Reponr, FY 2021-22

4
SClConsultingcroup

Page 182

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



Pner 106

Appenox B -AssessMENT RoLL,FY 2021-22

Reference is hereby made to the Assessment Roll in and for the assessment proceedings

on file with the City of Folsom City Clerk, as the Assessment Roll is too voluminous to be

bound with this Enginee/s Report,

Cwor Fosol,t
LRruosceprrue nND LTGHTTNG DrsrRrcrs
Eruerrueen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 183

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 184

07/13/2021 Item No.8.



i I i l,'f i i'!r'.1

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recofllmends that the City Council
introduce and conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 13 15 - An Ordinance Repealing and

Re-enacting Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Water System Cross-

Connection Control.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code, entitled Water System Cross-Connection
Control, provides the City with the means of implementing a cross-connection control program

to comply with the California State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking
Water (DDW) rules and regulations.

The Water Quality Division of the Environmental and Water Resources Department (EWR)
oversees the program, which requires the annual testing of more than2,500 cross-connection
control devices to prevent backflow into the potable water system. Through this program, City
staff issues notification to customers when tests are due, and customers then arrange for testing
of devices by certified testers. Presently, the testers, who submit the required test report via a
web portal, purchase tags from the City and attach these to devices to indicate completion of
successful testing.

1

MEETING DATE: 7lt3l202t

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1315 - An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting
Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Water
System Cross-Connection Control (Introduction and First
Reading)

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 185

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



The current process requires the City to purchase tags to sell to testers, at an expense of
approximately $1,300 per year. The tags are only available to purchase in person during
business hours, which is both an imposition on testers' time, and a safety concern due to
increased foot traffic to City facilities. In some instances, testers have submitted reports
without purchasing a tag, thereby avoiding paying the associated fee. With the growth and

modernization of the City, the program is growing as the number of devices that require annual
testing is increasing.

To reduce costs associated with production of tags, enhance safety by reducing foot traffic to
City facilities, and improve overall customer service and efficiency, the Water Quality
Division is proposing discontinuing the requirement to attach tags to devices on completion of
testing. Staff has access to all testing records via the web portal, negating the need to use the
tags, and program revenue would be maintained by charging a test submission fee in place of
the backflow testing tag fee. The web portal is an online database that contains backflow
prevention device records and test results.

Backflow tags will continue to be used for temporary backflow devices. Temporary devices

represent a very small proportion of the overall program. Their records are maintained in-house
and are not submitted to the web portal.

As testers will now be charged when submitting a test report, EWR requests that the Council
authorize a Test Submission Fee of $15 to be included in the User Fee Schedule for Water and

Wastewater Services pursuant to FMC 13.22.090(E). The $15 backflow Test Submission Fee

is the same amount as the current Backflow Testing Tag Fee, which will continue to be used

for tags for temporary backflow devices.

This opportunity was used to review all sections of the Water System Cross-Connection
Control ordinance to identiff other updates. The language in Section 13.22.050 has been

modified to provide the City's public water protection from cross-contamination when
residential homes have two sources of water (public water and well water). In addition, new
verbiage allows the City to require non-residential buildings to upgrade to the minimum level
of cross connection protection at the point of contact to the public water system any time a

building permit is pulled, for any reason. In addition, nomenclature of State and City
departments has been corrected throughout to accurately reflect current titles.

This Ordinance takes the required step to repeal and replace the current Folsom Municipal
Code to reflect this proposal, to allow provision of a more efficient Water System Cross-

Connection Control program, and to bring all sections of Chapter 13.22 up to date.

OUTREACI{/FEEDBACK

This Ordinance does not directly impact the general population of Folsom. Due to the nature
of the suggested changes, the only people who will be directly impacted by the change in
Ordinance are backflow testers. They will no longer need to purchase tags for testing of
permanent devices in person and will instead pay when submitting test reports.

2Page 186

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



EWR Department staff knows many of the backflow testers directly and has engaged in
conversations with many of them over the past year regarding the suggested changes. The

overall feedback has been very positive. Testers appreciate the increased efficiency of the
proposal, in particular the removal of the need to collect back flow tags in person.

DISCUSSION

The changes to Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code facilitate provision of a more

efficient program with reduced costs, enhanced safety, and improved customer service.

In summary, the proposed changes remove any references to the purchase and use of
department supplied tags on permanent devices, while inserting references to instructions
provided on annual notices.

Discontinuing the requirement for physical tags removes the corresponding purchase costs as

well as staff time associated with handling the sale of the tags. Safety and customer service are

also enhanced by negating the requirement for testers to purchase tags in person at City
facilities. Test results will be submitted, and corresponding fees paid, in one transaction

through the web portal. With fees being paid at the time of submitting the report, there is
reduced risk of avoidance of payment.

EWR is requesting establishment of a new $15 Test Submission Fee pursuant to FMC
13.22.090(E), which is the same amount as the backflow tag fee.

Additional modifications increase the City's ability to enforce protection of the public water
supply and bring the overall chapter up to date.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

This proposed ordinance does not have any foreseeable negative financial impact to the Water

Fund. Program revenue will not be affected as fees cunently collected through the sale of tags

will still be collected through the equivalent test submission fee, while the cost of producing

tags will be removed.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15307 and 15308.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Ordinance No. 1315 - An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 13.22 of the
Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Water System Cross-Connection Control

JPage 187

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



2. Revisions to Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code Water System Cross-

Connection Control Ordinance, with track changes to show edits.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

4Page 188

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 189

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



ORDINANCE NO. 1315

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND RE.ENACTING CHAPTER 13.22 OF'THE
F'OLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO WATER SYSTEM CROSS.

CONNECTION CONTROL

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to repeal and re-enact Chapter 13.22 (Water System

Cross-Connection Control) of Title 13 (Water and Sewage) of the Folsom Municipal Code to

allow provision of a more efficient Water System Cross-Connection Control program, with
reduced costs, enhanced safety, and improved customer service, and to bring all sections of the

previous Chapter 13.22 up to date.

SECTION 2 REPEAL AND RE-ENACTMENT TO CODE

Chapter 13.22 of Title 13 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby repealed and re-

enacted to read as follows:

Chapter 13.22

WATER SYSTEM CROSS.COIINECTION CONTROL

Sections:
13.22.010
13.22.020
13.22.030
t3.22.040
13.22.050
t3.22.060
t3.22.070
t3.22.080
13.22.090
13.22.t00
t3.22.rr0
13.22.120
13.22.130
13.22.140
t3.22.150
t3.22.160
13.22.170
t3.22.180

Definitions.
Application.
City responsibility.
Cross-connection control program.
Evaluation ofhazard.
Level of cross-connection protection required.
Approval of backflow prevention devices.

Location of backflow prevention devices.

Backflow prevention device testing, maintenance, and inspection.
Responsible customer representative.
Temporary backflow protection devices.

Backflow prevention device repair, replacement and relocation.
Discontinuance of water service.
Unauthorized activity.
Violation declared a nuisance.
Enforcement.
Penalties.
Remedies cumulative.

13.22.010 Definitions.

Ordinance No. l3l5
Page I ofll Page 190

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



A. "Air-gap separation (AG)" means a physical break between the supply line and a
receiving vessel or drain. The air-gap shall be at least two diameters of the supply pipe measured

vertically above the top rim of the vessel or drain and in no case less than one inch.

B. "Approved backflow prevention device (ABPD)" means an effective assembly used to
prevent backflow into a potable water system which has passed laboratory and field tests by a
testing organization recognized by the DDW and is listed on the approved and published list
maintained by the University of Southern California Foundation for Cross-Connection Control
and Hydraulic Research (US C-FCCCHR).

C. "Approved water supply" means the City's potable water supply or any other water supply

that is regulated by DDW.

D. "Auxiliary supply" means any water supply other than a potable supply regulated by DDW
that is available to the customer.

E. "Backflow" means the reversal of flow of water or mixtures of water and other liquids,
gases or other substances into the distribution pipes of a potable supply of water from any source

or sources.

F. ooDDW' means the Califomia State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking
Water.

G. "CA-NV Section AWWA" means the California-Nevada Section of the American Water

Works Association (AWWA).

H. "Certified backflow prevention assembly tester" means an individual who holds a current

certificate as a backflow prevention assembly tester as issued by CA-NV Section AWWA, or
equivalent orgartization as recognized by DDW and is certified by Sacramento County's
Environmental Management Department.

I. "City" means the City of Folsom.

J. "City water system" means those facilities within and without the City that the City uses to
deliver potable water as the DDW recognized water purveyor.

K. "Contamination" means degradation of the quality of the potable water by any substance

which creates ahazard to the public health or which may impair the usefulness or quality of
water.

L. 'oCross-connection" means any unprotected actual or potential connection between a public
or customer's potable water system and any source or system through which it is possible to

Ordinance No. 1315
Page 2 of ll Page 191

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



introduce into any part of the potable system any used water, contaminant or other substance

other than the potable water with which the system is supplied.

M. ooCross-connection control specialist" means an individual who holds a valid certificate as a

cross-connection control specialist as issued by CA-NV Section AWWA, or equivalent

organization as recognized by DDW and has been designated as the City's cross-connection

control specialist by the Department.

N. o'Customer" means any person or entity including the City using water supplied by the City
water system. ooCustomer" includes tenants of single-family dwellings or duplexes, owners of
real property and management companies responsible for property management of real property.

O. ooDepartment" means the City of Folsom Environmental and Water Resources Department.

P. ooDirector" means the Director of the Department or his or her designee, unless otherwise

stated or indicated by context.

a. ooDiscontinued service" means having the water service turned off by the Department.

R. ooDouble check valve backflow prevention assembly (DC)" means an assembly composed of
two independently acting check valves, including shut-off valves and test cocks, that is an

ABPD.

S. "Fire Chief'means the Fire Chief of the City of Folsom, or designee unless otherwise stated

or indicated by context.

T. ooPremises" means any and all areas on a customer's property which are served or have the
potential to be served by the City water system.

U. "Private fire service" means a private fire service main and appurtenances installed in
accordance with NFPA 24 on private property and maintained by the property owner for the

explicit intent of providing fire flows either through fire hydrants, fire sprinkler systems, or other

water-based fire protection systems.

V. "Reclaimed water" shall mean wastewater or other water which as a result of treatment is

suitable for nonpotable use.

W. ooReduced pressure principle backflow prevention device (RP)" means a device

incorporating two check valves and an automatically operating differential relief valve located

between the two checks, a tightly closing shut-off valve on each side of the check valve

assembly, and equipped with necessary test cocks for testing, that is an ABPD.

X. "service connection" shall refer to the point of connection of the customer's piping to the

Crty's water system.

Ordinance No. 1315

Page3ofll
Page 192

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



Y "Single-family dwelling unit" means a building designed for one family and containing one

kitchen.

Z. "Water distribution supervisor" means the water distribution supervisor in the Department

or his or her designee unless otherwise stated or indicated by context.

13.22.020 Application.

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all customers of the City water system.

13.22.030 City responsibility.

The City, and its duly authorized employees, shall operate the public water system and

implement a cross-connection control program. The purpose of this Chapter is to: (A) protect the

City water system against actual or potential cross-connections by isolating within the premises

contamination that may occur because of some undiscovered or unauthorized cross-collllection
on the premises; (B) eliminate existing connections between potable water systems and

nonpotable systems that create ahazardto public health; (C) eliminate existing cross-connections

between potable water systems and sources of contamination; and (D) prevent the making of
cross-connections in the future.

13.22,040 Cross-connection control program.

A. The Director is authoized to develop a cross-connection control program that is consistent

with the intent of this Chapter, DDW regulations, California Code of Regulations, and any

applicable laws. At a minimum, the program shall have the following elements:

1. Conducting surveys as required identiffing those water users where cross-connections

are likely to occur;

2. Require the provision of backflow protection by the water user at the water user's

service connection(s) or within the user's premises or both if required based on the

potential for a cross-connection;

3. Establishment of procedures for testing backflow prevention devices, and maintenance

ofrecords oflocations, tests, and repairs ofthese devices; and

4. Maintain a list of certified backflow prevention assembly testers from the list compiled
by the Sacramento County Environmental Management Department's list.

B. The Director shall oversee this Chapter's implementation, compliance with DDW
Regulations, and any laws regulating cross-connection control.

13.22.050 Evaluation of hazard.

OrdinanceNo. l3l5
Page4ofll

Page 193

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



The Department is authorized to evaluate the degree of potential health hazard to the City water

system which may be created either as a result of conditions existing or potential created by a
customer on their premises. The Department shall not be responsible for abatement of cross-

connections which may exist on the customer's premises. Evaluation of the potential for health

hazard, as a minimum, shall consider: (1) existence of cross-connections; (2) nature of materials

on the premises and method of handling; (3) probability of backflow occurring; and (a)

complexity and potential for modifications of piping system.

A. In the evaluation of the degree of potentialhazard, consideration shall be given to premises

with the following conditions:

1. Substances harmful to health handled in a manner which could permit their entry into
the city water system. This includes chemical and biological process waters, water from an

approved water supply which has been subjected to deterioration in sanitary quality, and

water from an auxiliary supply.

2. Internal cross-connections that are not corrected or abated to the satisfaction of the

cross-connection control administrator.

3. Cross-connections are likely to occur and entry is restricted so that cross-connection

inspections cannot be made on short notice or with the frequency given in
Section 13.22.090 to assure that cross-connections do not occur.

4. Repeated history of cross-connections being established or reestablished.

B. Periodic inspections of the customer's premises may be required either to evaluate the
potential for cross-connections or adequacy ofbackflow prevention devices or practices. These

inspections may be in response to activities such as changes in use or ownership of the premises.

The City shall provide twenty-four hours' notice prior to inspection of the premises, unless

conditions dictate that alonger or shorter notice period is more reasonable. Failure to provide the

City with access to conduct an inspection shall constitute a violation of this Chapter.

C. Cross-connection control requirements in this Chapter shall be included as a condition of
approval for water service for any new development or redevelopment project, with the

exception of single-family dwelling units unless the single-family dwelling unit meets the

condition as identified in subsection D below. Plans and specifications for any project other than

single-family dwelling units (with the exception of single-family dwelling units meeting the

condition in subsection D) requiring a building permit shall be required to install the minimum
level of cross-connection protection at the point of connection to the public water system as

defined by Section 13.22.060.

D. Any single-family dwelling unit that includes an on-site domestic water pump, fire
protection pump, water well or wastewater pump station will be required to install the minimum

Ordinance No. l3l5
Page5ofll Page 194

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



level of cross-connection protection at the point of connection to the public water system as

defined by Section 13.22.060.

13.22.060 Level of cross-connection protection required.

The level of protection required shall be commensurate with the degree of potential public health

hazardthat exists or potentially exists on the customer's premises.

The minimum level of protection for all applications shall be a reduced pressure principle
backflow prevention device (RP) with the exception that the retrofit of fire protection systems,

private and public, without access to an auxiliary supply or other cross-connection shall be

subject to the conditions of the permit from the fire department required for modifications to the

fire system in accordance with Chapter 8.36. The customer may choose a higher level of
protection than that required by the cross-connection control program; however, the customer

shall be responsible for installation in accordance with Section13.22.080.

13.22,070 Approval of backflow prevention devices.

The cross-connection control specialist, after determining the level of protection required per the

requirements of Sections 13.22.050 and 13.22.060, shall approve the backflow prevention device

to be installed. The proposed device shall be an approved backflow prevention device as defined
in this chapter and shall be located per the requirements of Sectionl3,22.080. Any interior or
exterior coating of the backflow prevention device shall be American National Standards

InstituteA.{ational Sanitation Foundation (ANSIA{SF) Standard 6l approved coating, in
accordance with AWWA specifi cation.

13.22.080 Location of backllow prevention devices.

A. Backflow prevention devices shall be located as close as practical to the customer's

connection and shall be a minimum of twelve inches and a maximum of thirty-six inches above

finished grade as measured from the bottom of the device. Alternative locations shall be subject

to review and approval in writing by the cross-connection control specialist. There shall be a
minimum of twelve inches of side clearance on the side with the test cocks.

B. Air-gap separation device (AG) shall be located as close as practical to the customer's

connection and all piping between the customer's connection and the receiving tank shall be

entirely visible unless impractical based on existing conditions and as otherwise approved in
writing by the cross-connection control specialist.

13.22.090 Backllow prevention device testingo maintenance, and inspection.

A. Backflow prevention device testing shall be in accordance with the field test procedures as

outlined in the latest edition of Manual of Cross-Connection Control, University of Southern
California, Foundation for Cross-Connection Control and Hydraulic Research. All tests shall be

performed by a certified tester, from the list of certified testers maintained by the County of

Ordinance No. 1315

Page6ofll Page 195

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



Sacramento Environmental Management Department and the results of the test shall be

submitted to the Department. No new, repaired, or relocated device that fails the test shall be

placed in service.

B. Customers with a backflow prevention device on their premises shall have the device

inspected and tested on an annual basis by a certified tester. The Department may require a more

frequent testing schedule if is determined to be necessary based on the criteria presented in
Section 13.22.050. When devices are determined to be defective they shall be repaired or

replaced by the customer within fourteen calendar days or a shorter time period based on any

hazardous condition that might impact the City water system or other customer connections, or

service will be discontinued. If service is discontinued, the customer shall pay the City's turn

on/off service fee, as set by ordinance or resolution of the City Council.

C. The Department will notiff the customer annually that the backflow prevention device

needs to be tested. This notice shall contain the date when the testing must be completed, at least

thirty days from the date of mailing, and instruction for how to submit the test results. If forty-
five calendar days after the date of mailing, the customer has not submitted the required test

report, the department will test the backflow prevention device and the customer will be charged

a fee for this service as set by ordinance or resolution of the City Council. In the event the

backflow prevention device fails to pass the test, the customer shall, within fourteen calendar

days, either repair or replace the backflow prevention device as provided in this section, or

service will be discontinued. The customer shall pay the City's fee for testing the backflow
prevention device and the turn on/off service fee if required.

D. Upon completion of a test of the backflow prevention device, the tester shall follow the

instructions provided in the notice to submit the test report and pay the associated fee.

E. Test Submission Fee. The City Council hereby establish a fee of $15 for the submission of
backflow device test results under the provisions of this Chapter. This fee may be amended by

resolution of the City Council from time to time.

F. Discontinuance of service shall be cause for retesting of the backflow device on the service

in accordance with the procedures outlined above.

13.22.100 Responsible customer representative.

Al1 customers required to submit a backflow prevention device inspection report per the

requirements of Section13.22.090 shall designate an individual responsible for monitoring the

backflow prevention device and avoidance of cross-connections during operation and

maintenance of the customer's on-site pipelines and equipment, or any modifications thereto. In
addition, this representative shall be responsible for noti$ing the cross-connection control

specialist of any potential contamination or pollution of the city water system due to a cross-

connection on the customer's premises. Current contact information shall be supplied annually if
not more frequently on the inspection report. In the event the department is unable to contact a

Ordinance No. 1315

PageTofll Page 196

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



responsible customer representative after a cross-connection is discovered, service may be

temporarily discontinued at the discretion of the director until such testing occurs.

13,22,110 Tempo rary backflow p rotection devices.

A. Temporary backflow protection devices of all types shall be subject to the approval of the

cross-connection control specialist. An inspection report for the device shall be submitted for
review and the tester will attach a department supplied tag to the device.

B. Temporary connections for construction water or other approved uses shall be subject to the

conditions and fees identified on the Department's temporary water use application.

13.22.120 Backllow prevention device repair, replacement and relocation.

The customer shall obtain approval from the cross-connection control specialist before a
backflow prevention device is replaced or relocated.

A. Repair. A backflow prevention device may be removed for repair; provided, that the water

use is discontinued until the device is returned to service, or the service connection is equipped

with a temporary backflow prevention device that is approved by the cross-connection control
specialist. A device returned to service must be tested and pass before being placed in service in
accordance with Section 13.22.090.

B. Replacement. A backflow prevention device may be removed and replaced; provided, that
the water use is discontinued until the replacement device is installed, tested, and passes before
being placed in service in accordance with Section 13.22.090.

C. Relocation. A backflow prevention device may be relocated upon approval by the cross-

connection control specialist. The relocated device shall continue to provide the current level of
protection or higher as determined by the cross-connection control specialist and shall satisfy
installation requirements as given in Section 13.22.080. The device shall be tested and pass

before being placed in service in accordance with Section 13.22.090.

13.22.130 Discontinuance of water service.

A. The Director may discontinue service to a customer's nonfire connection to the City water

system at the time the Director issues to the customer a second notice of violation of any
provision of this Chapter or determines that immediate discontinuance is necessary for the
protection of the City's water system. If the customer's water service is discontinued due to
violations of this Chapter, the customer shall be subject to penalties specified in
Section 13.22.170. Upon seeking renewed service from the City, the backflow prevention device
being returned to service must be tested in accordance with Section 13.22.090. The customer
shall pay the City's water turn off/on service fee and any other appropriate fees as set by
ordinance or resolution of the City Council. Any decision by the Director to discontinue service

may be appealed as specified in Section 13.22.170(C).

Ordinance No. l3l5
Page8ofll Page 197

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



B. Property owners with private fire services, upon being issued a notice of violation by the
Director of any provision of this Chapter, shall have thirty calendar days to submit a plan of
correction to the Director. Prior to making any modifications or alterations to the on-site fire
service, a permit shall be obtained from the Folsom Fire Department in accordance with
Chapter 8.36. Failure to comply with this section shall subject the property owner to the penalties
specified in Section 13.22.170, and the service may be discontinued at the discretion of the
Director and the Fire Chief when discontinuance is required to protect the City water system or
other customer connections. Devices used on fire services shall be approved by the DDW and

listed for fire service use and maintained in accordance with State Fire Marshall regulations.

13.22.140 Unauthorized activity.

A. Any temporary or permanent connection to the City water system made without review by
the Department, whether it needs a backflow prevention device or not, shall subject the customer
to the oenalties snecified in Section 13.22.170.

B. Any person who makes, maintains, or causes to be maintained a temporary or permanent
cross-connection shall be subject to the penalties specified in Section 13.22.170.

C. Any customer who maintains any plumbing fixture as defined by the California Plumbing
Code, or other appurtenance that discharges to a sanitary sewer, which by reason of its
construction may or potentially may cause contamination of the City water system shall be

subject to the penalties specified in Section 13.22.170.

13.22.150 Violation declared a nuisance.

Any activity in violation of this Chapter will adversely and seriously affect the public health,
safety and welfare, is hereby declared to be a public nuisance and may be remedied as provided
in this Chapter, any other applicable portion of the Folsom Municipal Code or applicable state

law.

13.22.160 Enforcem ent.

A. This Chapter shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 1.08to 1.10,

inclusive, and any other enforcement mechanism available to the City under the Folsom
Municipal Code and/or applicable law.

B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Chapter, the Director shall enforce the
provisions of this Chapter.

13,22.170 Penalties.

A. The goal of the provisions of this Chapter is to achieve voluntary compliance from the
customer, and the City will take reasonable measures to assure the customer has information
available to promptly and efficiently address cross-connection control issues. Where voluntary

Ordinance No. 1315

Page9ofll Page 198

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



compliance cannot be achieved through initial contacts and warnings, then appropriate
administrative penalties and further action are required. Except as otherwise provided herein,
violations of any provision of this Chapter shall be addressed as follows:

Penalty

Written notification and issuance
of a notice to correct.

Issuance of an administrative
penalty, discontinued water
service and/or other penalties as

provided in the notice of violation
and as determined by the
Director.

B. Penalties

1. A violation of this Chapter shall also be an administrative violation as defined in
Section 1.08.020.

2. Each of the sanctions for administrative violations identified in Section 1.09.013 shall
be available for enforcement of the provisions of this Chapter. Based on the criteria for
imposition of administrative sanctions set forth in Section 1.09.014, each day a violation of
this Chapter continues it shall be deemed a Level A violation as that term is described in
Section 1.09.012 with an initial penalty of up to one hundred dollars.

3. Violations of this Chapter which are deemed to be willful noncompliance or unlawful
connections may be subject up to a Level E violation as determined by the Director.

C. Appeal. There shall be no appeal of the level of protection required as identified in
Section 13.22.060 and any appeal of administrative penalties shall follow the request for hearing
procedures provided in Chapter L09. Any order to discontinue water service or any other orders

or decisions of the Director shall be appealable to the City Manager pursuant to
Section 2.08.060; provided, however, that the City Manager's decision shall be final and there
shall be no right of appeal to the City Council.

13.22.180 Remedies cumulative.

The remedies set forth in this Chapter are cumulative to any other remedy available to the City.
Pursuit of one remedy shall not preclude any other remedy, and nothing contained in this Chapter
shall limit or be deemed to prevent the City from pursuing any other remedy available to the City
under the Folsom Municipal Code or other applicable law.

SECTION 3 SCOPE

Ordinance No. l3l5
Page l0 of I I

Violation

First

Second

Page 199

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



Except as set forth in this Ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code

shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 NO MAND TORY DI]TY OF' CARE

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a manner
that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care towards
persons and property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis of civil liability for
damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

SECTION 5 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part
thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the
remaining portions of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would
have passed each section irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection,

sentence, clause, or phrase be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 6 EFF'ECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and

adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read atthe regular meeting of the City
Council on July 13, 2021 and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City
Council on July 27,2021.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member
the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of

the City of Folsom, State of Califomia, this2Th day of July 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. l3l5
Page ll of11

Page 200

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT 2

Revisions to Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code

Water System Cross-Connection Control Ordinance,
with track changes to show edits.

Page 201

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



Chapter 13.22

WATE R SYSTEM CROSS-CON N ECTION CONTROL

Sections:

13.22.010
13.22.020
13.22.030
13,22.040
13.22.050
13.22,060
13.22.070
13.22.080
13.22.090
13.22,100
13.22.110
13.22,120
13.22.130
13.22.140
13.22.150
13.22,160
13.22.170
13,22.180

Definitions.
Application.
City responsibility.
Cross-con nection control program.
Evaluation of hazard.
Level of cross-connection protection required.
Approval of backflow prevention devices.

Location of backflow prevention devices.

Backflow prevention device testing, maintenance, and inspection.

Responsible customer representative.
Temporary backflow protection devices.

Backflow prevention device repair, replacement and relocation.

Discontinuance of water service.

U na uthorized activity.
Violation declared a nuisance.
Enforcement.
Penalties.
Remedies cumulative.

13.22.010 Defi n itio ns.

A. 'Air-gap separation (AG)" means a physical break between the supply line and a receiving

vessel or drain. The air-gap shall be at least two diameters of the supply pipe measured vertically

above the top rim of the vessel or drain and in no case less than one inch.

B. 'Approved backflow prevention device (ABPD)" means an effective assembly used to prevent

backflow into a potable water system which has passed laboratory and field tests by a testing

organization recognized by the €DPHDDW and is listed on the approved and published list

maintained by the University of Southern California Foundation for Cross-Connection Control

and Hydraulic Research (USC-FCCCH R).

C. 'Approved water supply" means the €iry5e1ry! potable water supply or any other water

supply that is regulated by €DPHDDW.

D. 'Auxiliary suppl/' means any water supply other than a potable supply regulated by

CDPHDDW that is available to the customer.

Page 202

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



E. "Backflow" means the reversal of flow of water or mixtures of water and other liquids, gases

or other substances into the distribution pipes of a potable supply of water from any source or
sources.

F. "CDPH.DD!V" means the Califernia Department ef Publie Health California State Water

Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water.

G. "CA-NV Section AWWA" means the California-Nevada Section of the American Water Works

Association (AWWA).

H. "Certified backflow prevention assembly tester" means an individual who holds a current

certificate as a backflow prevention assembly tester as issued by CA-NV Section AWWA, or
equivalent organization as recognized by €DPHDDW and is certified by Sacramento Countys

health effieerFnvi ron menta I Ma nagement Depa rtment.

l. "City" means the €i+ygty of Folsom.

J. "City water system" means those facilities within and without the eiV ef FelsemCity that the

€ftye1y uses to deliver potable water as the €DP++DD!V recognized water purveyor.

K. "Contamination" means degradation of the quality of the potable water by any substance

which creates a hazard to the public health or which may impair the usefulness or quality of
water.

L. "Cross-connection" means any unprotected actual or potential connection between a public

or customer's potable water system and any source or system through which it is possible to
introduce into any part of the potable system any used water, contaminant or other substance

other than the potable water with which the system is supplied.

M. "Cross-connection control specialist" means an individual who holds a valid certificate as a

cross-connection control specialist as issued by CA-NV Section AWWA, or equivalent organization

as recognized byCDPHDDW and has been designated as the €ftybe{y! cross-connection control

specialistbythe@.

N. "Customer" means any person or entity including the €ftygily using water supplied by the
eityejU water system. "Customer" includes tenants of single-family dwellings or duplexes, owners

of real property and management companies responsible for property management of real

property.

O. "Department" means the €irygjlry of Folsom

Deoa rtment deBartment.

P. "Director" means the eW-ef+-ek@of @ or his or her

designee. unless otherwise stated or indicated by context.

Page 203

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



a. "Discontinued service" means having the water service turned off by the

desarEmentDeoa rtment.

R. "Double check valve backflow prevention assembly (DC)" means an assembly composed of
two independently acting check valves, including shut-offvalves and test cocks, that is an ABPD.

S. "Fire ehiefehj€f" means the fke-ehiefEue{htef of the €tVetry of Folsom, or designee unless

otherwise stated or indicated by context.

T. "Premises" means any and all areas on a customer's property which are served or have the
potentialto be served by the €tryetry water system.

U. "Private fire service" means a private fire service main and appurtenances installed in

accordance with NFPA 24 on private property and maintained by the property owner for the

explicit intent of providing fire flows either through fire hydrants, fire sprinkler systems, or other

water-based fire protection systems.

V. "Reclaimed water" shall mean wastewater or other water which as a result of treatment is

suitable for nonpotable use.

W. "Reduced pressure principle backflow prevention device (RP)" means a device incorporating

two check valves and an automatically operating differential relief valve located between the two

checks, a tightly closing shut-off valve on each side of the check valve assembly, and equipped

with necessary test cocks for testing, that is an ABPD.

X. "service connection" shall refer to the point of connection of the customer's piping to the

€Ey3ejty5 water system.

Y. "single-family dwelling unit" means a building designed for one family and containing one

kitchen

Z. 'Water distribution supervisor" means the water distribution supervisor in the

@orhisorherdesigneeunlessotherwisestatedorindicatedbycontext.

13.22.020 Ap pl ication.

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all customers of the €ttyetry water system.

13.22.030 City responsi bi I ity.

The eftyety, and its duly authorized employees, shall operate the public water system and

implement a cross-connection control program. The purpose of this enap+e+eheEf is to: (A)

protect the ei$eity water system against actual or potential cross-connections by isolating within

Page 204

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



the premises contamination that may occur because of some undiscovered or unauthorized

cross-connection on the premises; (B) eliminate existing connections between potable water

systems and nonpotable systems that create a hazard to public health; (C) eliminate existing

cross-connections between potable water systems and sources of contamination; and (D)

prevent the making of cross-connections in the future.

13.22.040 Cross-connection control progra m.

A. The Cir€€te+Djrcetq is authorized to develop a cross-connection control program that is

consistent with the intent of this €hep€rghAplet €DPHDDIV regulations, California Code of
Regulations, and any applicable laws. At a minimum, the program shall have the following

elements:

1. Conducting surveys as required identifying those water users where cross-connections

are likely to occur;

2, Require the provision of backflow protection by the water user at the water user's

service connection(s) or within the user's premises or both if required based on the
potential for a cross-connection;

3. Establishment of procedures for testing backflow prevention devices, and maintenance

of records of locations, tests, and repairs of these devices; and

4,MaintainalistofcertifiedbackflowpreventionassemblyteSterSffi
compiled by the Sacramento County heafthgnvironmental lVan

department's list.

B. The C+re€tefDtreclqt shall oversee this €hepte#5gheple6 implementation, compliance with

CDPHnDW Regulations, and any laws regulating cross-connection control.

13.22.050 Evaluation of hazard.

rhe@isauthorizedtoevaluatethedegreeofpotentialhealthhazardto
the eityQly water system which may be created either as a result of conditions existing or
potentialcreatedbyacustomerontheirpremises.The@shallnotbe
responsible for abatement of cross-connections which may exist on the customer's premises.

Evaluation of the potential for health hazard, as a minimum, shall consider: (1) existence of cross-

connections; (2) nature of materials on the premises and method of handling; (3) probability of
backflow occurring; and (4) complexity and potential for modifications of piping system.

A. ln the evaluation of the degree of potential hazard, consideration shall be given to premises

with the following conditions:

Page 205

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



1. Substances harmful to health handled in a manner which could permit their entry into
the city water system. This includes chemical and biological process waters, water from an

approved water supply which has been subjected to deterioration in sanitary quality, and

water from an auxiliary supply.

2. lnternal cross-connections that are not corrected or abated to the satisfaction of the
cross-connection control ad mi nistrator.

3. Cross-connections are-likely to occur and entry is restricted so that cross-connection

inspections cannot be made on short notice or with the frequency given in

Section 13,22.090 to assure that cross-connections do not occur.

4. Repeated history of cross-connections being established or reestablished.

B. Periodic inspections of the customer's premises may be required either to evaluate the
potential for cross-connections or adequacy of backflow prevention devices or practices. These

inspections may be in response to activities such as changes in use or ownership of the premises.

The dryeily shall provide twenty-four hours' notice prior to inspection of the premises, unless

conditions dictate that a longer or shorter notice period is more reasonable. Failure to provide

the er$etly with access to conduct an inspection shall constitute a violation of this
enapk+ehepter.

C. Cross-connection control requirements in this eneprc+gheptg shall be included as a

condition of approval for water service for any new development or redevelopment project, with
the exception of single-family dwelling units unless the single-

condition as identified in subsection D below. Plans and specifications for any project other than
single-family dwelling units (with the exception of single-family dwelling units meeting the
condition in subsection D) requiring a building permit shall be suhjeet te review and appreval by

the eress eenneetien eentrel speeialist fer eenfermanee with this ehapter required to install the
minimum level of cross-connection protection at the point of connection to the public water
svstem as defined bv Section 13.22.060.

D-Any single-family dwelling unit that includes an on-site domestic water pump. fire protectM
pump. water well or wastewater pump station
eress-eenneetien eentrel speeialist fer eenfermanee with this ehapter, (Ord, 1136 5 2 (part)r

204€)will be required to install the minimum level of cross-connection protection at the point of
connection to the public water system as defined by Section 13.22.060.

13.22.060 Level of cross-connection protection required.

The level of protection required shall be commensurate with the degree of potential public health

hazard that exists or potentially exists on the customer's premises.

Page 206

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



The minimum level of protection for all applications shall be a reduced pressure principle

backflow prevention device (RP) with the exception that the retrofit of fire protection systems,

private and public, without access to an auxiliary supply or other cross-connection shall be

subject to the conditions of the permit from the fire department required for modifications to
the fire system in accordance with Chapter 8.36. The customer may choose a higher level of
protection than that required by the cross-connection control program; however, the customer

shall be responsible for installation in accordance with Section 13,22.080.

13.22.070 Approval of backflow prevention devices.

The cross-connection control specialist, after determining the level of protection required per the
requirements of Sections 1 3.22.050 and 13.22.060, shall approve the backflow prevention device

to be installed. The proposed device shall be an approved backflow prevention device as defined

in this chapter and shall be located per the requirements of Section 13.22.080. Any interior or
exterior coating of the backflow prevention device shall be American National Standards

lnstitute/National Sanitation Foundation (ANSI/NSF) Standard 61 approved coating, in

accordance with AWWA specification.

13.22.080 Location of backflow prevention devices.

A. Backflow prevention devices shall be located as close as practical to the customer's

connection and shall be a minimum of twelve inches and a maximum of thirty-six inches above

finished grade as measured from the bottom of the device. Alternative locations shall be subject

to review and approval in writing by the cross-connection control specialist. There shall be a
minimum of twelve inches of side clearance on the side with the test cocks.

B. Air-gap separation device (AG) shall be located as close as practical to the customer's

connection and all piping between the customeds connection and the receiving tank shall be

entirely visible unless impractical based on existing conditions and as otherwise approved in

writing by the cross-connection control specialist.

13.22.090 Backflow prevention device testing, maintenance,
and inspection.

A. Backflow prevention device testing shall be in accordance with the field test procedures as

outlined in the latest edition of Manual of Cross-Connection Control, University of Southern

California, Foundation for Cross-Connection Control and Hydraulic Research. All tests shall be

performed by a certified tester, from the list of certified tester$ maintained by the C

Sacramento Environmental Management Department and the results of the test shall be

submitted to the Department . No new,

repaired, or relocated device that fails the test shall be placed in service.

Page 207

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



AB. Customers with a backflow prevention device on their premises shall have the device

inspectedandtestedonanannualbasisbyacertifiedteSter.The@may
require a more frequent testing schedule if is determined to be necessary based on the criteria
presented in Section 13.22.050. When devices are determined to be defective they shall be

repaired or replaced by the customer within fourteen calendar days or a shorter time period

based on any hazardous condition that might impact the €i+yety water system or other customer

connections, or service will be discontinued. lf service is discontinued, the customer shall pay the

€ftysej!Eturnon/offservicefee,aSsetbyordinanceorresolutionofthe€i@.

Be.The@willnotifythecustomerannuallythatthebackflowprevention
device needs to be tested. This notice shall contain the date when the testing must be completed,

at least thirty days from the date of mailing, and instruction for how to submit the test results. lf,

forty-five calendar days after the date of mailing, the customer has not submitted the required

test report, the department will test the backflow prevention device and the customer will be

chargedafeeforthisserviceaSsetbyordinanceorresolutionofthe@.ln
the event the backflow prevention device fails to pass the test, the customer shall, within fourteen

calendar days, either repair or replace the backflow prevention device as provided in this section,

or service will be discontinued. The customer shall pay the eitySgllyS fee for testing the backflow
prevention device and the turn on/off service fee if required.

eD. Upon completion of a sueees#ul-test of the backflow prevention device, ths €u€t€\q€lr

tester shall follow the instructions provided in the notice to submit the test report and pay the

associated fee plaee a department s

and passed, and any ether infermatien as direeted by the department, Failure te attaeh a

eempleted tag te the baekflew preventien deviee within fifteen days ef submittingthe test result

inspeetien, the e ustemer shall pay a tag replaeement fee, Tag fees; initial issue and replaeementr
.

E. Test Submission Fee. The City Council hereby establish a fee of $15 for the submission of
backflow device test results under the provisions of this Chapter. This fee may be amended by

resolution of the City Councilfrom time to time.

DE. Discontinuance of service shall be cause for retesting of the backflow device on the service

in accordance with the procedures outlined above.

13.22.'100 Responsible customer representative.

All customers required to submit a backflow prevention device inspection report per the
requirements of Section 13.22.090 shall designate an individual responsible for monitoring the

backflow prevention device and avoidance of cross-connections during operation and

maintenance of the customer's on-site pipelines and equipment, or any modifications thereto. ln

addition, this representative shall be responsible for notifying the cross-connection control
specialist of any potential contamination or pollution of the city water system due to a cross-

Page 208

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



connection on the customer's premises. Current contact information shall be supplied annually
if not more frequently on the inspection report. ln the event the department is unable to contact
a responsible customer representative after a cross-connection is discovered, service may be

temporarily discontinued at the discretion of the director until such testing occurs.

13.22.11 0 Temporary backflow protection devices.

A. Temporary backflow protection devices of all types shall be subject to the approval of the
cross-connection control specialist. An inspection report for the device shall be submitted for
review and the tester will attach a department supplied tag to the device shall have a eurrent

.

B. Temporary connections for construction water or other approved uses shall be subject to
theconditionsandfeesidentifiedonthetemporarywateruse
application.

13.22.120 Backflow prevention device repair, replacement and
relocation.

The customer shall obtain approval from the cross-connection control specialist before a
backflow prevention device is replaced or relocated.

A. Repair. A backflow prevention device may be removed for repair; provided, that the water
use is discontinued untilthe device is returned to service, orthe service connection is equipped
with a temporary backflow prevention device that is approved by the cross-connection control
specialist. A device returned to service must be tested and pass before being placed in service in
accorda nce with Sectio n 13.22.090.

B. Replacement. A backflow prevention device may be removed and replaced; provided, that
the water use is discontinued untilthe replacement device is installed, tested, and passes before
being placed in service in accordance with Section 13.22.090.

C. Relocation. A backflow prevention device may be relocated upon approval by the cross-

connection control specialist, The relocated device shall continue to provide the current level of
protection or higher as determined by the cross-connection control specialist and shall satisfy
installation requirements as given in Section 13.22,080, The device shall be tested and pass

before being placed in service in accordance with Section 13.22.09A,

13.22.130 Discontinuance of water service.

A. The Ci+e€terDlleetgl may discontinue service to a customer's nonfire connection to the
€ttyejty water system at the time the d+eete+Dtfeetgf issues to the customer a second notice of
violation of any provision of this enaprc+ghaptg or determines that immediate discontinuance

Page 209

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



is necessary for the protection of the €ftybgty! water system. lf the customer's water service is

discontinued due to violations of this enap+e+gheptet, the customer shall be subject to penalties

specified in Section 13.22.170. Upon seeking renewed service from the €irygty, the backflow
prevention device being returned to service must be tested in accordance with Section 13.22,090.

The customer shall pay the €iryberyS water turn off/on service fee and any other appropriate
feesassetbyordinanceorresolutionofthe@.Anydecisionbythe
C+ee+e+Dtfeetgf to discontinue service may be appealed as specified in Section 13.22j70(C).

B. Property owners with private fire services, upon being issued a notice of violation by the
direeterDjreelgf of any provision of this€heptergheptel shall have thirty calendar days to submit
a plan of correction to the Ci+€€te+Djleetel. Prior to making any modifications or alterations to
theon-sitefireservice,apermitshallbeobtainedfromthe@
Department in accordance with Chapter 8.36. Failure to comply with this section shall subject the
property owner to the penalties specified in Section 13.22.170, and the service may be

discontinuedatthediscretionofthedi+eete+D!ree!grandthe@when
discontinuance is required to protect the €ftyejry water system or other customer connections.
Devices used on fire services shall be approved by the CDP++DDW and listed for fire service use

and maintained in accordance with State Fire Marshall regulations.

13.22.140 U nauthorized activity.

A. Any temporary or permanent connection to the €ttyejty water system made without review
bythe@,whetheritneedsabackflowpreventiondeviceornot,shall
subject the customer to the penalties specified in Section 13.22J70.

B. Any person who makes, maintains, or causes to be maintained a temporary or permanent
cross-connection shall be subject to the penalties specified in Section 13.22.170,

C. Any customer who maintains any plumbing fixture as defined by the California Plumbing
Code, or other appurtenance that discharges to a sanitary sewer, which by reason of its
construction may or potentially may cause contamination of the €ftygty water system shall be

subject to the penalties specified in Section 13.22.170,

13.22.150 Violation declared a nuisance.

Any activity in violation of this ehepte+-ehaplef-r will adversely and seriously affect the public

health, safety and welfare, is hereby declared to be a public nuisance and may be remedied as

provided in this €hap€#ehaptg, any other applicable portion of the Folsom Municipal Code or
applicable state law.

13.22.160 E nfo rcement.

Page 210

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



A. This ehapereheptg shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 1.08 to 1.10,

inclusive, and any other enforcement mechanism available to the €rtyejry under the Folsom

Municipal Code and/or applicable law.

B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this enaprc+gheptet, the direeterDirector shall
enforce the provisions of this ehapk+ehapter.

13.22.170 Penalties.

A. The goal of the provisions of this enapte+eheptg is to achieve voluntary compliance from
the customer, and the €+ryelly will take reasonable measures to assure the customer has

information available to promptly and efficiently address cross-connection control issues. Where
voluntary compliance cannot be achieved through initial contacts and warnings, then appropriate
administrative penalties and further action are required. Except as otherwise provided herein,
violations of any provision of this enapte+frptcf shall be addressed as follows:

Violation Penalty

First Written notification and issuance of a
notice to correct.

Second lssuance of an administrative penalty,
discontinued water service and/or
other penalties as provided in the
notice of violation and as determined
bv th e u+ili+iesd+ree+e+D i recto r.

B. Penalties

1, A violation of this €hepft+ghAplef shall also be an administrative violation as defined
in Section 1.08.020.

2. Each of the sanctions for administrative violations identified in Section 1.09.013 shall
be available for enforcement of the provisions of this €hapte#gh€ptel. Based on the criteria
for imposition of administrative sanctions set forth in Section 1 ,Q9.014, each day a violation
of this €hep+ergheptet continues it shall be deemed a Level A violation as that term is

described in Section 1.09.012 with an initial penalty of up to one hundred dollars.

3. Violations of this enaperghaptef which are deemed to be willful noncompliance or
unlawful connections may be subject up to a Level E violation as determined by the
direete+Director.

C. Appeal. There shall be no appeal of the level of protection required as identified in
Section 13.22.060 and any appeal of administrative penalties shall follow the request for hearing
procedures provided in Chapter 1.09. Any order to discontinue water service or any other orders
ordecisionsofthec+eete+Dtreg!qshallbeappealabletotheei@

Page 211

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



pursuanttoSection2.08.060;provided,however,thatthedecision
shallbefinalandthereshallbenorightofappealtotheei@.

13.22.180 Remed ies cu mu lative.

The remedies set forth in this €hepterchap[er are cumulative to any other remedy available to
the €tryeiry. Pursuit of one remedy shall not preclude any other remedy, and nothing contained
in this enapte+ghaptq shall limit or be deemed to prevent the Gt+yetry from pursuing any other
remedy available to the €ftyglly under the Folsom Municipal Code or other applicable law.

Page 212

07/13/2021 Item No.9.



riLrlL6*{r$t
!

OL Olr I 6lla I lT !Atud I

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: 7lt3l202r

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Consideration of FY 2l-22 Funding Allocation for
Homelessness Support and Direction to Staff on Expenditure of
Funds

X'ROM: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The City Manager is requesting direction from the City Council regarding the expenditure of
$25,000 approved for Homelessness Support.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

During the FY 2021-22 annual operating budget process, an amount of $25,000 was proposed
and approved for Homelessness Support. At this time, staff is requesting direction from the
City Council on how they would like to allocate the funds during the fiscal year.

Submitted,

Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director/CFO

1

Page 213

07/13/2021 Item No.10.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 214

07/13/2021 Item No.10.



: j:i':'l ,l :\'l

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 71131202r

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Presentation and Public Workshop Regarding Solid Waste Rate
Studies and City Council Direction to Staff

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

City staff is requesting feedback and direction from the City Council on the rate structure as it
relates to cost recovery for unfunded mandates. This includes recommendations for isolating a
portion of costs associated with programs currently funded through the all-inclusive residential
rates and the timing of any rate adjustments. Additionally, staff is requesting direction to
proceed with the Proposition 218 noticing to begin the process of adjusting the Solid Waste
rates.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

ln20l9 the Solid Waste Division (Division) conducted a comprehensive rate study including
evaluation of operational and capital needs. R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) along with City
staff analyzed the revenue requirements and rate structures for each line of service.

The rate study incorporated costs associated with meeting current needs; however, it did not
account for additional staffing or other operational costs required to meet pending regulatory
requirements relating to California's Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Strategy (SB
1383). The regulations necessary for compliance with SB 1383 were still being developed so

the costs were unknown.

At the time of the rate study, solid waste rates had not increased since 2003. Despite the
impending unknown expenses associated with SB 1383, the financial position of the Division
necessitated proceeding with a rate adjustment in advance of the regulations. Staff expressed

to City Council thatitwould be necessary to return with additional increases once the costs of

1

Page 215

07/13/2021 Item No.11.



SB 1383 could be predicted. The regulations were finalized in November of 2020 and the
Division is now able to anticipate the cost of compliance.

The mandated programs required by SB 1383 will significantly increase costs. These include
weekly collection of all organic material from all residents and businesses, community
outreach and education, procurement of products made from recycled organic material, edible
food recovery, and enforcement. The Division has been working with R3 over the past few
months to incorporate the new program expenses into the City's existing rate model.

In addition, there are increases in two existing expenses included in the updated rate model.
Since our last rate study Sacramento County has significantly increased the tipping fees (the

cost to dispose of material) at Kiefer Landfill. Currently, the City of Folsom is contracted to
take material to Kiefer at a reduced rate of $33.65 per ton, which is based on the tipping fee
when the contract was executed. This has kept Folsom far below the current gate rate of $52.85
per ton. The agreement expires June 30, 2022, so staff reached out to County staff to inquire
what we should anticipate paying in the future. Based on our tonnage, we will continue to
qualifu for a discount, but for planning purpose should anticipate about $51.44 per ton. Folsom
currently delivers about 4I,300 tons of material each year so our initial year increase will be

about $735,000.

The other large expense not directly related to SB 1383 is the addition of two electric collection
trucks to our fleet. In September of 2020 Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-79-20
requiring all heavy-duty trucks to be zero emission by 2045. Since this technology has the
potential to save costs in the long run, the Division is requesting funding to pilot two vehicles
to evaluate their effectiveness in the operation. The Division has been awarded some grant
funding; however, due to the high initial cost of converting to clean energy, there is still a

significant investment required from the City.

ANALYSIS

User rates must be set at a level where a utility's operating and capital expenses match the
revenues received from customers. To evaluate the adequacy of the existing rates, a
comprehensive rate study is often performed. A comprehensive rate study consists of three
interrelated analyses. Figure 1 provides an overview of these analyses. The City utilized this
process when establishing the current Solid Waste rates.

Compares the sources of funds (revenues)
to the expenses of the utility to determine

the overall rate adjustment required

Allocates the revenue requirements to the
various customer classes of service in a

"fair and equitable" manner

2

l,'igurc I
()r'crvicrv ol' thc ('orrtprrltcnsir c l{a(c .,\nalvscs

Revenue Requirement Analysis

Cost of Service Analysis

Page 216

07/13/2021 Item No.11.



Rate Design Analysis
Considers both the level and structure
ofthe rate design to collect the target

level ofrevenues

As a practical matter, all utilities should consider setting rates around some generally accepted

or global principles and guidelines. Utility rates should be:

o Cost-based and set at a level that meets the utility's fuIl revenue requirement.

o Equitably distributed across each customer class, meaning that the rate does not exceed

the proportional cost of service attributed to that customer.
. Easy to understand and administer.
o Designed to conform with oogenerally accepted" rate setting techniques.
o Stable in their ability to provide adequate revenues for meeting the utility's financial,

operating, and regulatory requirements.
r Established at a level that is stable from year-to-year from a customer's perspective.
o In compliance with State legal regulations.

These guiding principles were utilized within the comprehensive rate study to develop utility
rates that are cost-based and proportional to the cost of service attributed to a specific customer
class. Currently, the City uses the oocash basis" approach for establishing their revenue

requirement and setting rates. This approach conforms to most public utility budgetary
requirements and the calculation is easy to understand. A public utility totals its cash

expenditures for a period of time to determine required revenues.

Under the oocash basis" approach, the sum of the total O&M expenses plus the total capital
expenses equals the utility's revenue requirement during any selected period of time (historical
or projected). Table 1 may be helpful in providing an overview and summarizing the "cash
basis" revenue requirement methodology.

+ O&M Expense

+ Taxes or Transfer Payments

+ Capital Improvements Financed with Rate Revenues (> Depreciation
Exp.)

+ Debt Service (P+D

: Total Revenue Requirements

- Miscellaneous Revenues (Excludins Connection Fees)

Tahlc I
()r'crvicw of the 'o(l:rsh l|:rsiso' llcvcnuc llcquircmcnt Mcthotlologv

J
Page 217

07/13/2021 Item No.11.



: Balance Required from Rate Revenues

After the total revenue requirement is determined for each utility, it is then proportionally
allocated to the users of the specific service. The allocation, usually analyzedthrough a cost of
service analysis, reflects the cost relationships for collecting and disposing of solid waste. At
the conclusion of the cost of service study, two key pieces of information are provided. First,
the cost ofservice provides an understanding ofthe total revenues to be collected from each

class of service. The other important piece of information provided by the cost of service
analysis is the average unit costs.

To incorporate the new program costs into the City's comprehensive rate model each program
was evaluated to determine which specific customers will be served by each program. The
programs expenses were then added to the model and rates adjusted to recover the expenses

for each service. Since the cost of providing each service is increasing, the Division also added
options to the model to break down the all-inclusive residential rates to recover some cost from
those who directly use the services. This includes adding charges for bulky waste and
household hazardous waste collection and increasing the fees for extra recycle and green waste
cans to represent actual cost. Currently a second green waste and recycle can are included in
the standard rate. The model now includes only one green waste and recycle in the base rate
for service.

Utilitv Commission & Public Outresch

The impacts of SB 1383 on rates were presented and discussed at Utility Commission (UC) on
February 16,202I, May 18, 202I, June 15, 2021, and in a special meeting on July 6,202I.

Potential methods of addressing the increasing expenses included:
o Addition of rate increase on January l, 2022 in addition to currently approved

increases.
o Addition of two additional years of rate increases to the currently approved increases.
o Fees for direct users of currently included services such as extra cans, and bulky waste

and househ old hazar dous waste collection.
. Seeking a one-time, internal, low-interest loan.
o Adding a temporary SB 1383 surcharge to pay for initial capital expenses.

City staff and consultants will present initial findings of the updated rate study and update City
Council with input and feedback received from the Utility Commission in the development of
the rate adjustment recommendations.

Included in the discussion will be UC and staff recommendations of:
. Capital investment to meet regulatory requirements.
o Staffing needs to meet regulatory requirements.
o Operational cost increases to meet regulatory requirements.
o Potential pilot program of electric collection trucks.

4Page 218

07/13/2021 Item No.11.



Increased cost of solid waste disposal.
Projected monthly rate adjustment associated with unfunded mandates.

New fees for extra services.

Timing of proposed adjustments.
An average monthly bill for each of the options discussed with the UC.

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

5
Page 219

07/13/2021 Item No.11.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 220

07/13/2021 Item No.11.


	Top
	07/13/2021 Item No.1.	Approval of June 22, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	07-13 STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF JUNE 22, 2021

	07/13/2021 Item No.2.	Resolution No. 10659 - A Resolution Amending Resolution No. 10638 to Correct the Yearly Not-To-Exceed Amount of the Agreement with Badger Meter, Inc. for the Purchase of 1-inch Water Meters
	07-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10659 PURCHASE WATER METERS

	07/13/2021 Item No.3.	Resolution No. 10662 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-031) with HydroScience Engineers, Inc. for Design Services for the Ashland Water Rehabilitation Project No. 1
	07-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10662 AMEND 1 ASHLAND WATER REHAB PROJECT

	07/13/2021 Item No.4.	Resolution No. 10664 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Calpo, Hom and Dong Architects for Fire Station 34 Architectural Services and Appropriation of Funds
	07-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10664 FIRE STATION 34 ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

	07/13/2021 Item No.5.	Resolution No. 10665 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with FDC Consultants for Fire Station 34 Construction Management Services and Appropriation of Funds
	07-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10665 FIRE STATION 34 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES

	07/13/2021 Item No.6.	Resolution No. 10667 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with California Wood Recycling, Inc. dba Agromin for Organic Waste Diversion Services
	07-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10667 ORGANIC WASTE DIVERSION SERVICES

	07/13/2021 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 10668 – A Resolution Accepting Three Regional Early Action Planning Grant Awards to Further Housing Program Goals and Appropriation of Funds
	07-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10668 GRANT FOR HOUSING PROGRAM GOALS

	07/13/2021 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 10666 - A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer’s Report, Confirming the Diagrams and Assessments, and Ordering the Continued Levying Of Assessments for Maintenance and Servicing of Improvements Within the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 for American River Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2,  American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge II/Reflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prospect Ridge, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon II,  Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs
	07-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10666 L AND L ENGINEERS REPORT

	07/13/2021 Item No.9.	Ordinance No. 1315 – An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Water System Cross-Connection Control (Introduction and First Reading)
	07-13 STAFF REPORT ORD 1315 WATER SYSTEM CROSS-CONNECTION CONTROL

	07/13/2021 Item No.10.	Consideration of FY 2021-22 Funding Allocation for Homelessness Support and Direction to Staff on Expenditure of Funds
	07-13 STAFF REPORT FUNDING ALLOCATION FOR HOMELESSNESS SUPPORT

	07/13/2021 Item No.11.	Presentation and Public Workshop Regarding Solid Waste Rate Studies and City Council Direction to Staff
	07-13 STAFF REPORT SOLID WASTE RATE STUDIES WORKSHOP

	Bottom

